F-M Motorparts Limited (formerly known as F-M International Limited)

Company Number 1073619

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31st December 2014

The directors present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

Principal activities, review of the business and future developments

The principal activity of the Company 1s that of an investment holding company and 1t 1s not envisaged
that this will change 1n the foreseeable future

Results for the year can be found on page 6. The Company made a loss after tax of £5,152,332
(2013: profit £709,067) which included an impairment charge of £6,068,218 (2013 £ml) which reduced
the carrying value of the Company’s investments

The directors do not recommend payment of a dividend. (2013 £202,617,223)

In preparing this report, the directors have taken advantage of the small companies exemption provided
by s 415A of the Companies Act 2006

Change of company name

On 2 October 2014 the Company changed its name from F-M International Limited to F-M Motorparts
Limited

Treasury Policies

Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments compnse of balances with group undertakings and cash at bank
These financial instruments are used to fund the Company’s operations It 1s, and has been throughout the
period under review, the Company’s policy that no trading 1n financial instruments shall be undertaken

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company’s transactions are in sterling As a member of a multi-national group, the Company does
not hedge currency exposure, and, any gains and losses are reflected in the profit and loss account as they
anse.

Interest Rate Risk

The 1nterest rates applying to loans with fellow group undertakings are linked to a bank rate and so are

floaing As this interest 1s with fellow group undertakings and therefore there 15 no interest rate nsk at
group level, the Company does not hedge this interest rate exposure
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F-M Motorparts Limited

Company Number 1073619

Duirectors' Report for the Year Ended 3 [ st December 2014 (continued)

Directors
The following served as Directors during (and, unless otherwise indicated, throughout) the year -

E J. Milner
B Pynnonen

Disclosure of information to auditors

In accordance with 5.418(2) of the Compamies Act 2006, each of the directors:
e 15 not aware of any relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and
o has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of

any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that
information

On behalf of the Board

lea‘—:\
E J Milner
Director

Date. _lMa\,.j 2015




F-M MOTORPARTS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements 1n accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law
the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements m accordance with Unmited Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under
company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affaus of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that
peniod In prepanng those financial statements, the directors are required to

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that
the Company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregularities




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF F-M
MOTORPARTS LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of F-M Motorparts Limited for the year ended 31
December 2014 which compnise the Profit & Loss Account, the Statement of Total Recogmsed
Gamns and Losses, the Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to 13 The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, n accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 3, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opimion on the
financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
(APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit mvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error Ths includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropnate to the Company's circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information 1n the Directors Report to 1dentify
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opimion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

e  give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2014
and of 1ts loss for the year then ended;

e  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

. have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF F-M
MOTORPARTS LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by excention

We have nothing to report n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, 1n our opinion-

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
e  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

e the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption from
the requirement to prepare a Strategic Report or in preparing the Directors’ Report

Clrond— W Vi L—Z_,"D

Stuart Muskett

Semor Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Manchester

& conyy 2015




F-M MOTORPARTS LIMITED
PROFIT AND L.OSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2014

Notes 2014 2013
£ £
Foreign currency loss (956) (3,686)
Operating loss excluding exceptional items (956) (3,686)
Exceptional item - provision against investments 2 (6,068,218) -
Operating charges (6,069,174) (3,686)
Operating loss (6,069,174) (3,686)
Income from shares 1n associated undertakings 277,156 271,179
Net interest receivable 3 631,603 506,586
{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation (5,160,415) 774,079
Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities 5 8,083 (65,012)
Retained (loss)/profit on ordinary activities after taxation 10 {5,152,332) 709,067

A reconciliation of movements 1n shareholders” funds 15 given 1n note 10 of the financial statements
All results have been denved from continuing operations
STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

The Company has no recogmsed gains or losses other than the loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
profit for the year ended 31 December 2013

There 15 no difference between the result disclosed above and the result on an unmodified historical cost basis




F-M MOTORPARTS LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
’ AS AT 318T DECEMBER 2014
Notes 2014 2013
£ £

Fixed Assets
Investments 6 8,761 447 16,172,665
Current Assets
Debtors amounts falling due within one year 7 3,609,003 3,516,929
Cash at bank 22,227 408 20,082,601

25,836,411 23,599,530
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 8 29,442 51,447
Net current assets 25,806,969 23,548,083
Net assets 34,568,416 39,720,748
Capital and Reserves
Called up share capital 9 110 110
Share premium account 10 9,577,260 9,577,260
Profit & loss account 10 24,991,046 30,143,378
Shareholders’ funds — equty 34,568,416 39,720,748

The financial statements on pages 6 to 13 were approved by the Board on 1 M@ 2015 and were signed on

1ts behaif by -

A

E J Milner
Director




F-M MOTORPARTS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The pnneipal accounting policies of the Company remain unchanged from previous years and are set out

below

(a)

(b

(©)

(d)

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with apphcable UK Accounting
Standards and under the historical cost convention

Foreign currency translation

Transactions mn foreign currency are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of transaction Any
monetary assets or habihties denominated 1n foreign currency are retranslated at the year end rate

Exchange differences ansing in the ordinary course of business are included 1n profit on ordinary
activities before taxation

Investments
Investments are held at cost less provision for impatrment

Deferred taxation

The taxation charge 1s based on the result for the period and takes into account taxation deferred
because of timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting
purposes Deferred tax 1s recognised 1n respect of all uming differences that have onginated but
not reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or events have occurred at that date that
will result 1n an obligation to pay more, or right to pay less or to receive more, tax with the
following excephons

s Provision 15 made for gains on disposals of fixed assets that have been rolled over into
replacement assets only where, at the balance sheet date, there 1s a commitment to dispose of
the replacement assets,

s Deferred tax assets are recogmsed only to the extent that the directors consider that 1t 1s more
likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the
underlying timing differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 15 measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply 1n
the penods 1in which the nming differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date




F-M MOTORPARTS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{e) Consolidation and related party disclosures

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking 1s Icahn Enterprnises L.P, a company hsted on the
New York Stock Exchange The Company 1s included n the consolidated financial statements of
Icahn Enterprises L P, which are publicly availlable Consequently, the Company has taken
advantage of the exemption from preparing a cash flow statement under the terms of Financial
Reporting Standard 1 (revised 1996) The Company 1s also exempt under the terms of Financial
Reporting Standard 8 from disclosing related party transactions with entities that are part of the
Icahn Enterprises Group or investees of the Icahn Enterprises Group

The Company and all of 1ts subsidiary undertakings are included in consohidated accounts for a
larger group, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation, drawn up to the same date 1n the same
financial year and those accounts are drawn up 1n accordance with the provisions of the Seventh
Directive (83/349/EEC) or 1n a manner equivalent to consohdated accounts and consolidated
annual reports so drawn up Accordingly the Company, in accordance with the exemption 1n
5 401 of the Compantes Act, has not prepared consolidated financial statements The financial
statements therefore contain information about F-M Motorparts Limited as an individual
company and not as a group

2 OPERATING LOSS

(a) Exceptional item — provision against investments
Following an impairment review of the Company’s investments, 1t was decided that a provision

was required and £6,068,218 (2013 £ml) was charged m the profit and loss account to reduce the
carrving value accordingly

(b) The audit fees of £4,000 (2013 £3,850) were borne by a fellow group company during the year
There were audit fees and fees for other services payable to the Company’s auditor and its

associates durning the year 1n respect of the Company's subsidiary undertakings amounting to
£11,977 (2013 £13,718)

3 NET INTEREST RECEIVABLE 2014 2013
£ £
Interest recervable from group companies 74,981 77,713
[nterest recervable on bank accounts 556,622 428,873
Net interest recetvable 631,603 506,586
4 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

None of the directors of the Company received any emoluments 1n respect of their services as a director
of the Company (2013 £Nil)

There are no employees of the Company (2013 Nil)




F-M MOTORPARTS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

TAXATION
(a) Analysis of charge n the period

2014 2013

£ £

Current tax
UK Corporation tax
UK corporation tax @ 21 5% (2013 — 23 25%) on profits of the 331 368,081
period
Advanced corporation tax 134,617 (316,628)
Adjustments 1n respect of previous periods (156,953) -

(22,005) 51,453
Foreign tax
Current year 13,922 13,559
Total current tax (note 5(b})) {8,083) 65,012

{b) Factors affecting tax charge for period

The tax assessed on the loss (2013: profit) on ordinary activities for the year 1s higher than (2013

lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 21 5% (2013 2325%) The
differences are explained below

2014 2013

£ £

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation {5,160,415) 774,079
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activitiecs multuplied by the standard
rate of corporation tax in the UK of 21 5% (2013 23 25%) {1,109,489) 179,973
Effect of
UK UK transfer pricing adjustment {7 286,032
Advanced corporation tax utihised 134,617 (316,628)
Non-taxable income (59,589) (63,049)
Group relief surrendered for nil payment (135,582) (34,875)
Adjustment 1n respect of previous periods (156,953) -
Withholding tax 13,922 13,559
Non-deductible expenses 331 -
Impairment of 1nvestments treated as non-deductible 1,304,667 -
Current tax (credit)/charge for period (note 5(a)) (8,083) 65,012

10




F-M MOTORPARTS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

5 TAXATION (continued)
(¢} Factors that may affect future tax charges

The Company has unrestricted capital losses available to carry forward of £1,591,304
(2013 £1,591,304) The Company has unrecogmsed ACT camed forward of £5,557,702
(2013 £5,422,457), the future recoverability of which 1s uncertain

No deferred tax 1s recognised on the unremitted earmings of overseas subsidianes, associates and

joint ventures

No deferred tax has been provided for tax that may become payable if re-valued assets were

disposed of at their re-valued amounts

The Finance Act 2013 included changes which affect future tax charges The rate of corporation tax
was reduced to 21% from 1 April 2014 and will reduce to 20% from 1 April 2015 The rate changes
will impact the amount of future cash tax payments made by the Company

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Subsidiary Associated Total
Undertakings Undertakings
Equaty Equity
£ £ £
Cost
At | January 2014 11,552,624 5,117,041 16,669,665
Disposal 1n year (1,840,000) - (1,840,000)
At 31 December 2014 9,712,624 5,117,041 14,829,665
Provisions
At 1 January 2014 (497,000) - (497,000)
Released on disposal 497,000 - 497.000
Charge for the year {6,068,218) - (6,068,218)
At 31 December 2014 (6,068,218) - (6,068,218)
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 3,644,406 5,117,041 8,761,447
At 31 December 2013 11,055,624 5,117,041 16,172,655

There were no listed investments in Subsidiary Undertakings held by the Company

The Associated Undertaking 1s a listed investment The market value of the Company’s investment at 31

December 2014 15 £8 8m (2013 £9 5m)

11




F-M MOTORPARTS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

6 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (continued)

Details of the investments in which the Company holds 20% or more of the normnal value of any class of share capital are disclosed
below

Name of Company Country of Holding Proportion of For the year Agpregate amount | Profit or (loss) Nature of

incorporatton 1f voting nghts ending (*) of capital and for the year Business

outside Great Britain and shares held reserves at the end £
% of 1ts most recent
financial year
£

Federal-Mogul Spamn Subseribed 100 31122013 6,362,876 91,800 Friction
Fnction Products Shares products
SA
K-B Autosys Co South Korea Cominon stock 3361 31122013 39,254,545 3,064,344 Friction
Limited products

(*} Financial information taken from the latest audited financial statements

The principal subsidianies and associated undertakings are set out 1in note i1. In accordance with FRS11,

the directors have compared the carrying value of investments to their value 1n use to the Company and
recorded an impairment charge for any individual investments that they considered 1mpaired

The value 1 use has been denved from discounted cash flow projections using nominal discount rates
congistent with each apphicable global industry sector, ranging from 11 5% to 12.5% (2013 11% to
12 5%) on a pre-tax basis A long-term growth rate of 2 5% has been assumed

7 DEBTORS Amounts falling due within one year 2014 2013
£ £
Amounts owed by fellow subsidhary undertakings 3,609,003 3,516,929
8 CREDITORS Amounts falling due within 2014 2013
one year £ £
Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary undertakings 29,442 -
UK Taxation - 51,447
29,442 51,447
9 SHARE CAPITAL 2014 2013
£ £
Authonsed
150 ordinary shares of £1 each 150 150
Issued and fully paid

110 ordinary shares of £1 each 110 110

12
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E-M MOTORPARTS LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Share
Share Premum  profit and loss Total
Capital Account Account
£ £ £ £
At 1 January 2013 110 9,577,260 232,051,534 241,628,904
Profit for the year 2013 - - 709,067 709,067
Interim Dividends Paid - - (202,617,223) (202,617,223)
At 31 December 2013 110 9,577,260 30,143,378 39,720,748
Loss for the year 2014 - - (5,152,332) (5,152,332)
At 31 December 2014 110 9,577,260 24,991,046 34,568,416

GROUP COMPANIES

The following mformation 1s given regarding the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 315t December 2014
The compames are incorporated in the countries indicated The share capital of these companies 1s wholly-
owned by F-M Motorparts Limuted directly and consists of ordinary shares or stock

Country of Principal products
1ncorporation or acttvity
Federal-Mogul Friction Products SA Spam Friction products

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS8, para 3c, not to disclose transactions with
other group compames which meet the critenia that all substdiary undertakings which are party to the
transactions are wholly owned by the ultimate controlling parent

K-B Autosys Co Limuted does not quahfy as a related company as the Company has no directors on 1ts
board and has no influence over 1ts operating and financial policies

There are no other related party transactions

ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The Company's parent company 18 FDML Holdings Ltd which 1s registered in England and Wales Its
ultimate parent company and controlling party 15 Icahn Enterpnises L P which 1s registered in the USA
Copies of the Icahn Enterprises L P Annual Report and Accounts can be obtaned from Icahn Enterpnises
L P, 767 Fifth Avenue, 47" Floor, New York, NY 10153, USA

13




THESE ACCOUNTS
£ORM PART OF THE

AROUR ACCOUNTS

UNITED STATES OF COMPANY

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Wasbmgon b 30549\ N 107361
FORM 10-K ereee |

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31,2014
Commussion File Number 001-34029

FEDERAL-MOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 46-5182047
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or srganization) (IRS Employer I D No)
27300 West L1 Mile Road, Southfield, Michigan 48034
{Address of principal executive offices) {Zip code)

Registrant’s telephone number including area code (248) 354-7700

Secunties registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act

Title of Each Clasy Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock par value $0 Gl per share The NASDAQ Global Select Market

Secunties registered pursuant to Sectron 12(g) of the Act
Title of Class

Warrants to purchase Common Stock, par value $0 01 per share
Indicate by check mark if the registrant 1s a well-known scasored 1ssuer, as defined 1n Rule 105 of the Securmes Act Yes O No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant 1» not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) ot the Act  Yes [0 No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant () has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15{d) of the Secuniies Exchange Act of 1934 durning the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter peried that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such fibng requirements for the past 90 days  Yes B No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submiited electronically and posted on its corporate Web aite 1f any, every Interactve Data File required to be submitted and posted
pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulanon 5-T {2232 405 of this chapter) duning the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and pest such
files) Yes B No O

Indicate by check mark 1f disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulatton 5-K (§ 229 405) 15 not contamed herein and will not be contained to the best of
registrant’s knowledge, in definitn e proxy or mformantien statements incerporated by reference in Part I of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K &

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant 15 a large accelerated filer, an aceelerated filer, o non-acculerated filer, or a smaller reporing company See defimiton of * large
accelerated filer ‘accelerated fiter” and “smaller reporting company™ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act {check one)

Large aceclerated filer [ Accelerated filer x® Non-accelerated filer a Smaller Reporting Company o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant i5 a shell company (as defined 1n Rule 12b-2 of the Act)  Yes O No E

The aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant was approximately $585 mallion as of June 30 2014 bascd on the reported last sale price as
reported on the NASDAQ Glebal Select Market on that date

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Secrion 12 13 or 15{d) of the Securines Exchange Act of 1934 subscquent to
the distnbution of secunties under o plan confirmed by a court Yes B No O

The Registrant had 150,029,244 shares of common stock outstanding as of February 19 2015
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Regstrant’s Proxy Statement for 1ts 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorporated by refereace into Part Il of this Annual Report
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained or incorporated 1n this Annual Report on Form 10-K which are not statements of histoncal fact constitute “Forward-Looking
Statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Ligation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Reform Act™)

e " (LI

Forward-looking statements give cument expectations or forecasts of future events Words such as “anticipate,” * believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” * intend,”
“may” “plan" “seek” and other words and terms of simlar meaning 1n connection with discussions of future operating or financial performance signify
forward-looking statements Federal-Mogul Corporation (the “Company™) also, from time to time, may provide orl or vnitten forward-looking statements in
other matenals released to the public Such statements are made 1n good faith by the Company pursuant to the “Safe Harbor” provisions ofthe Reform Act

Any or all forward-looking statements mncluded 1n this report orin any other public statements may ultimately be incommect Forward-looking statements may
nvolve known and unknown nsks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause the actual results, performance, expenience or achievements of the
Company to differ matenally from any future results, performance, expenence or achievements expressed or imphed by such forward-locking statements The
Company undertakes no abhgation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise

Listed below are some of the factors that could potentially cause actual results to differ materially from historical and expected future results Other factors
besides these listed here could also matenally affect the Company’s business

. The Company's ability to separate its Powertrain and Motorparts divisions into two independent, publicly traded companies may not be
completed on the terms or imeline currently contemplated, 1t at all

. Vanations tn current and anucipated future production volumes, financial condition, or operational circumstances of the Company s significant
customers particularly the worid’s onginal equipment manufacturers of commercial and passenger vehicles

. The Company’s ability to generate cost savings or manufactunng cfficiencies to offsct or exceed contractually or compentively required pnce
reductions or pnice reductions to obtain new business

. The Company’s ability to obtain cash adequate to fund its needs, including availability of borrowings under its vanous credit facilities

. Fluctuations 1n the price and availability of raw materals and other supplies used in the manufactuning and distnbution of the Company’s
praducts

. Material shortages, transportation system delays, or other difficulties in markets where the Company purchases supplies for the manufacturing of
its products

. Significant work stoppages, disputes, or any other difficulties 1n labor markets where the Company obtains matenals necessary for the
manufacturing of 1ts products or where 1ts products are manufactured, distnbuted orsold

. The Company’s ability to increase 1ts development of fuel cell, hybnd-electric or other altemative energy technologtes

. Changes in actuanal assumptions, interest costs and discount rates, and fluctuations 1n the global secunties markets which directly impact the
valuation of assets and liabilities associated wath the Company’s pension and other postemployment benefit plans

. Vanous worldwide economic, polincal and socal factors, changes in economic conditions, currency fluctuations and devaluations, credit nsks
in emerging markets or political instability in foreign countnes where the Company has signmificant manufactunng operations, customers or
suppliers

. Legal actions and claums of undetermined ment and amount invelving, among other things, product liability, patent infringement, warranty,

recalls of products manufactured or sold by the Company, and environmental and safety 1ssues involving the Company’s products or facilitics

. Legislative activities of govemments, agencies, and similar orgamzations, both 1n the United States and in other countnes that may atfect the
operations of the Company

. Physical damage to, or loss of, significant manufacturing or disttnbution property, plant and equipment due to fire, weather or other factors
beyond the Company's control

. Possible terronst attacks or acts of aggression or wat, that could exacerbate other risks such as slowed vehicle production or the availabtlity of
supplies for the manufactunng ofthe Company's products

. The Company’s ability to effectively transition 1is information system infrastructure and functions to newer generation systems
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PARTI

ITEM 1 BUSINESS
The Company

On Apnl 15, 2014, Federal-Mogul Corporation completed a holding company reerganization (the “Reorganization™) As a result of the Reorganization, the
outstanding shares of Federal-Mogul Corporation common stock were automatically converted on a one-for-one basis 1nto shares of Federal-Mogul Holdings
Corporation common stock, and all of the stockholders of Federal-Mogul Corporation immediately pnor to the Reorgamzation automatically became
stockholders of Federal-Mogul Holdings Comoration The nghts of stockholders of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation are generally governed by
Delaware law and Federal-Mogul Holdings Comporation’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws, which are the same 1n all matenal respects as those of
Federal-Mogul Corporation immediately pnor to the Reorgamization In additzon, the board of directors ot Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation and 1its
Audit Commttee and Compensation Commuttee are composed of the same members as the board of directors, Audit Commuttee and Compensation
Commuttee of Federal-Mogul Corporation pnor to the Reorganization

References herein to the “Company,” “Federal-Mogul,” “we,” “us,” “our” refer to Federal-Mogul Corporation for the penod prior to the effective ime of the
Reorganization on Apnl 15, 2014 and to Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation for the period after the effective time of the Reorgamization

On September 3, 2014, the Company announced 1ts plan to separate 1ts Powertrain and Motorparts divisions 1nto two independent, publhicly-traded
compantes serving the global onginal cquipment and aftermarket industnes The planned separation will be implemented through a tax-free distnbution of
Federal-Mogul’s Motorpans division to shareholders of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation Completion of the transaction 1s subject to customary
conditions, including among others, the Company’s receipt of an IRS ruling or opimion of counsel to the effect that the distnbution will qualify as a
transaction that 1s generally tax-free for US Federal Income tax purposes, as well as effectiveness of a Form 10 Registration Statement to be filed with the
SEC On February 24, 2015, the Company announced that it would defer the previously announced spin-off ot 1ts Motorparts division to allow for the
integration of 1ts recently completed brake component, chassis and valvetrain acquisitions and to recogmize the benefits of the strategic imitiatives 1n the
Motorparts division As a result of the deferral and the recent closing of the acquisition of TRW's valvetrain business, the Company will commence a
common stock nghts offenng to strengthen its balance sheet The Company's board of directors intends to revisit the iming of the spin-off prior to yearend
Meanwhile the company will contiue to operate as two separate, independent divisions Neo assurances can be given regarding the ultumate tumng of the
scparation or that 1t will be consummated

Business Overview

The Company 1s a leading global supplier of technology and innovation mn vehscle and industrial products for fuel economy, emissions reduction and safety
systems The Company serves the world’s foremost onginal equipment manufacturers (“OEM™) and servicers (“OES") (collectively “OE”) of autometive,
hight, medium and heavy-duty commercial vehicles, off-road, agncultural, manne, rail, aerospace, power generation and industnial equipment, as well as the
worldwide aftermarket The Company seeks to participate in both of these markets by leveraging 1ts onginal equipment product engineenng and
development capability, manufactuning know-how, and expertise in managing a broad and deep range of replacement parts to service the aftermarket The
Company believes that 1t ts uniquely positioned to effectively manage the Iife cycle of a broad range of products to a diverse customer base Federal-Mogul
1s a leading technology supplier and a market share leader in several product categones As of December 31, 2014, the Company had current OEM products
included on more than 300 global vehicle platforms and more than 700 global powertrains used 1n light, medium and heavy-duty vehicles The Company
offers prermium brands, OE replacement and entry/mid level products for all aftermarket customers Therefore, the Company can be first to the aftermarket
with new products, service expertise and customer support This broad range of vehicle and powertrain applications reinforces the Company's belief in 1ts
unique market position

The Company operates with two end-customer focused business segments The Powertrain segment focuses on onginal equipment products for automotive,
heavy duty and industnal applications The Motorparts segment sclls and distnbutes a broad portfolio of products in the global aftermarket, while also
serving onginal equipment manufacturers with products including braking, chassis, wipers and other vehicle components This organizational model allows
for a strong product line focus benefitting both onginal equipment and aftermarket customers and enables the global Federal-Mogul teams to be responsive
to customers’ needs for supenor products and to promote greater 1dentification with Federal-Mogul premivm brands Additionaily, this organizaiional model
enhances management focus to capitalize on opportunities for orgamic or acquisition growth, profit improvement, resource utilization and business model
optimizatton 1n line with the unique requirements of the two different customer bases
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Powertrain offers 1ts customers a diverse array of market-leadimg products for OF applications, including pistons, piston nngs, piston pins, cylinder liners,
valve seats and guides, 1gnitron products, dynamic seals, bonded piston seals, combustion and exhaust gaskets, static gaskets and seals, ngid heat shields,
engite beanngs, industnal beanngs, bushings and washers, plus element resistant systems protection sleeving products, acoustic shielding and flexible heat
shields Motorpants offers powertrain products manufactured by Powertrain, disinbuted through globally-recognized aflermarket brands 1o the mdependent
aftermarket and also offers brake disc pads, brake hnings. brake blocks, brake system components, chassis products, wipers, and other product lines to OE and
aftenmarket customers

The Company has manufactunng facilities and/or distribution centers in 26 countnes and, accordingly, the Company’s reporting segments denve sales from
both domestic and international markets The aitendant nsks of the Company s intemational operations are pnmanly related to cumency fluctuations,
changes in local cconomuc and political conditions, cxtratemtonal cffects of United States laws such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, and changes in
laws and regulations

The following tables set forth net sales and net propenty, plant and equipment (“PP&E™) by geographic region as a percentage of total net sales and net PP&E,
respectively

Net Sales Net PPEE
Year knded December 31 December 31
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013

United States 6% 3% 8% ~28%  27%)
Mexico 5% 5% 5% 7% 7%
Camada — "~ T 1% 2% -
Total North America 43% o w43% :45% 35% 34%
]

Gemmany % 0% 18% 20% 21%
Fagce s & &% 3% 4
Belgium 4% 5% 4% 1% 1%
Maly  C LTI sl e T A% 3% a%]
Unuted Kingdom 3% 3% 4% 4% 4%
Other EMEA 7T 7 og% 6% 6% % 3%
Total EMEA 44% 44% 42% 44% 47%
l

Chwa 7 o 6% Tosw T T T T awm T T T w T T aw%
[ T A . . - S )
South America B N % . 2% 2%
Other Ty 3% 3% I TV A
Total Rest of World 13% 13% 13% 21% 19%
v ) 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%)

The following table sets forth net sales by reporting segment as a percentage of total net sales

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Netsalesby eporting segment T
Powertrain 57% 371% _56%
Motopas T 77 a3 T a3% T aa%!
100% 100% 100%




Strategy

The Company’'s strategy 15 designed to create sustanable global profitable growth by levenging existing and developing new competitive advantages This
strategy coasists of the following primary elements

. Provide value-added products to customers in all markets served through leading technology and innovation,

. Develop products to enable increased fuel economy and reduce vehicle emissions, plus enable the use of altemative energies,

. Utihize the Company’s leading technology resources to develop advanced and innovauve products, processes and manufacturing capabilibes,

- Extend the Company's global reach to support its OE customers, fiurthering us relationships with leading Asian OFEs and strengthening market share
with US and European OEs,

. Assess acquisition and investment opportunities that provide product line expansion, technological advancements, geographic posihoning,
penetration of emerging markets (including the BRIC™ markets of Brazil, Russia, India and China) and market share growth,

. Leverage the strength of the Company’s global afiermarket leading brand positiens, product portfolio and range, markeung and selling expertise,
and distnbution and logistics capabilintes, and

. Aggressively pursue cost competitiveness in all business segments by continuing to drive productivity in existing operations, consohidating and
relecating manufactuning operations to best cost countries, utihzing the Company’s strategic alliances, and rationalizing business resources and
infrastructure

The Company’s strategy 1s to develop and dehiver leading techneology and mnnovation which results in market share expansion 1n the OE market and
aftermarket The Company assesses individual opportumties to execute its strategy based upon estimated sales and margin growth, cost reduction potential,
internal investment retums, and other cntena, and makes investment decistons on & case-by-case basis Opportunities meeting or exceeding benchmark return
cnitena may be undertaken through research and development activities, acquisitions, and other strategic alliances, or restuctuning activities as further
discussed below

Research and Development The Company maintains technical centers throughout the world designed 1o

. provide solutions for customers and bring new, innovative products to market,

. integrate the Company s leading technolegies into advanced products and processes,
. provide engineenng support for all of the Company’s manufactunng sites, and

. provide technological expertise in engineenng and design development

Federal-Mogul’s research and development activities are conducted at the Company’s research and development locations Within the United States, these
centers are located in Skokie, Ilhinois, Ann Arbor, Michigan, Plymouth, Michigan, St Lows, Missoun, Exton, Pennsylvania, and Waupun, Wisconsin
Intemationally, the Company’s rescarch and development centers are located 1n Araras, Brazl, Aubange, Belgium, Noyon Codex, France, Chapel-en-le-Fnth,
Umted Kingdom, Coventry, United Kingdom, Burscheid, Germany, Nuremberg, Gemany, Wiesbaden, Germany, Bad Camberg, Germany, and Shanghai,
China

Each of the Company’s business units 1s engaged i1n engmneering, research and development efforts working closely with customers 1o develop custom
solutions to mect their needs Total expenditures for rescarch and development activities, including product engineenng and validation costs, were $192
mullion, $173 mullion and $173 million for the years ended December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively

Non-Consolidated Affiltates The Company forms certain affiliations, including joint ventures, to gain share 1n emerging markets, facihitate the exchange of
technical information and development of new products, extend cument product offenngs, provide best cost manufacturing operations, and broaden 1ts
customer base The Company believes that certain of these affihations have provided, and wall continue to provide, opportunities to expand business
relatronships with Asian and other OEs operating 1n BRIC growth markets The Company 1s currently involved 1n 29 such affiliations located in 14 different
countnes throughout the world, including China India, Korea, Russia, Turkey and the United States Of these affiliations, the Company maimntains a
controiliag interest in 16 entities and accordingly, the financial resulis of these entities are included 1in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company The Company has a non-ontrolling interest 1n 13 of 1ts affiliates, of which & are accounted for under the equity method and 5 are accounted for
under the cost method The Company does not consolidate any enuty for which st has a vanable intercst based solely on power to direct the activities and
significant participation 1n the entity’s expected results that would not otherwise be consolidated based on control through voting interests Further, the
Company'’s affiliations are businesses estabhshed and maintained 1n connection with 1ts operating strategy
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Net sales for the Company’s 16 consohdated affiliates were approximately 5%, §% and 9% of conselidated net sales for the years ended December 31,2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively The Company’s investments in non-<onsohidated affihiates totaled $269 million and $253 milhion as of December 31,2014 and
2013, respectively, and the equity 1n eamings of such affiliates amounted to $48 mullion, $34 millron and $34 mullion for the years ended December 31,
2014,2013 and 2012, respectively

Acquisitons On February 6, 2015, the Company completed the purchase ot certain business assets of the TRW engine components business The business
was acquired through a combination of asset and stock purchases for a base purchase pnce of approximately $313 mullion, funded pnmanly from the
available Replacement Revolver Facility, and subject to certain customary closing and post-closing adjustments The purchase of TRW's engine valve
business adds a completely new product line to the Company's portfoho, strengthens the Company's position as a leading developer and suppher of core
components for engines, and enhances the Company’s ability to support 1ts customers to improve fucl economy and reduce cmissions

The assets acquired and lLiabilities assumed will be recorded at fair value as of the acquisitton date 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805, Business
Combinations The preliminary allocation of the purchase price will occur in the first quarter of 2015 There were no revenues or eamings related to TRW
mcluded i the Company's condensed consohdated statement of income

In July 2014, the Company completed the purchase of certain business assets of the Honeywell brake component business including two recently estabhished
manufactunng facilities in China and Romamia which substantially strengthens the manufactunng and engineerng capabibties of the Company's current
global braking portfolio The business was acquired through a combination of asset and stack purchases for a base purchase price of $169 million and a
provisional estimate of $15 million subject to certain customary post-clesing adjustments, contingent consideration and other habilities

In May 2014, the Company completed the purchase of the Affinia chassis business This business serves leading U S aftermarket customers with private label
chassis product lines and wall allow the Company to broaden its product offenng, previde operational synergies and betier serviee customers globally The
purchase price was 3149 mullion, net of acquired cash

See Note 5, Acquistnons to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included in ftem 8 of thas report

Drvestitures In connection with 1ts strategic planning process, the Company assesses 1ts operations for market position, product technology and capability,
and profitability Those businesses determuned by management not to have a sustainable competitive advantage are considered non-core and may be
constdered for divesuture or other exit activities Dunng the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company divested its sintered components operations
located in France, its connecting rod manutactunng facthty located in Canada, 1ts camshaft toundry located n the Umted Kingdom and 1its fuel pump
business, which included an aftermarket business component and a manufactunng and research and development facility located in the United States These
divestitures have been presented as discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations See Note 6, Disconttnued Operations, to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, included 1n Item 8 of this report

Restructuring Activittes. The Company’s restructuring activities are undertaken as necessary to exccute management’s stratcgy and strcamline operations,
consolidate and take advantage of available capacity and resources, and ultimately achieve net cost reductions Restructuning activities mclude efforts to
ntegrate and rationahize the Company s businesses and to relocate manufactunng operations 1o best cost manufactunng locations

Dunng the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded $86 million, $40 mullion and $26 mllion, respectively, in net
restructunng expenses

The Company’s restructunng activities are further discussed in [tem 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results ot
Operations and Note 2, Restructuring, to the Consohdated Financial Siatements, included in Item 8 of this report

The Company’s Products
The fellowing provides an overview of products manufactured and disinbuted by the Company’s reporing segments

Powertrain. The Powertrain segment pnmanly represents the Company’s OE business About 93% of Powertrain's revenue 1s from OE customers, with the
remaining 7% of 1ts revenue being sold directly to the Company’s Motorpants segment for eventual distnbution, by Motorparts, to customers 1n the
independent attermarket

Powertrain operates 66 manufactunng sites 1n 18 countnes, serving a large number of major automotive, heavy-duty manne and industnal customers
worldwide Powenirmin denved 34% of 1ts 2014 OE sales 1n North Amernica, 48% in Europe, the Middle-East and Afnca ("EMEA™) and 18% 1n the rest of the
world (* Rest of World” or* ROW™)




Federal-Mogul 15 one of the world’s leading powertrain component and assembly providers Comprehensive design capability and an extensive product
pontfolic enable effective delivery of a broad range of engine and dnveline components as well as engineered solutrons to tmprove fuel economy, reduce
emussions or enhance vehicle performance and durability Products in this segment include pistons, piston nings, piston pins, cylinder liners, valve seats and

gwides, engine beanngs, industnal beanngs, bushings and washers, 1igntion products, dynamic seals, bonded piston seals, combustion and exhaust gaskets,

static gaskets and seals, ngtd heat shields, element resistant systems protection sleeving products, flexible heat shiclds and highting products Powertrain
products are used 1n automotive, motoreyele, hght truck, heavy-duty, industnal, commercial equipment (construction, agticultural, power generation, manne
and ratiway), aerospace, and small aircooled engine applications The following provides a description of the vanous products manufactured by Powertrain

Product

Pistons

Piston Rings

Piston Pins

Cylinder Liners

Valve Seats and Guides

Engine Beanngs

Description

The main task of the piston 15 to compress the air and fuel mixture 1n advance of igmtion Following combustion, the
piston relays the combustion energy into mechanical energy In this process, substantial pressures are exerted on the
piston, imposing high demands on 1t 1n terms of ngidity and temperature resistance Product offenngs include Monosteel
and DuraBowl prstons, winners of the 2006 and 2010 PACE awards (Premuer Automotive Suppliers’ Contnbution to
Excellence Award) respectively

The three main tasks of piston nngs in intemal combustion engines include (1) sealing the combustion chamber, (2)
supporting heat transfer from the piston to the cylinder wall, and (3) regulaung lubncation and o1l consumption Products
imclude GDC and LKZ Rings, winners of the 2007 and 2011 PACE awards, respectively

Piston pins attach the piston to the end of the connecting rod, allowing the piston to pivot in each cycle of the engine and
following the revolution of the crankshaft

Cyhnder liners, or sleeves are specially enginecred where surfaces formed within the engine block, working 1n tandem
with the piston and ring, as the chamber in which the thermal energy of the combustion process 1s converted mto
mechanical energy

Federal-Mogul designs and manufactures a wide vanety of powdered metal inserts used 1n engines and general industnal
apphications, which are spectally designed to meet customer requirements for extreme hardness

Engine beanngs provide an intermediate surface between the connecting rod and crankshaft and between the crankshaft
and engine block Their purpose 1s to facilitate the conversion of combustion energy 1nto mechanical energy by allowing
low-friction movement of the connecting rods and crankshaft when absorbing the power created 1n the combustion
chamber They opemte pnincipally under hydrodynamic lubneation conditions

The Company’s beanng product hine includes lead-free aluminum engine beanngs commonly used n gasoline engines
and bronze beanngs used 1n highly-loaded compression engines such as diesel or gasoline turbocharged models The
Company’s portfolio mcludes a full range ot lead-tree beanngs, winner of the 2014 PACE award, developed to meet EU
requirements and covers a range ot electroplated and sputter coated beanngs These extremely high performance matenals
support the downsizing of engines and consequent improved fuel economy and CO; reduction The Company’s product
range also includes innovative polymer coated bearings (IROX®) for automotive engines, winner of the 2013 PACE
award These beanngs have a spectal pelymer coated shell that helps to withstand high reciprocating mechanical loads
produced by hcavily boosted engines The innovatve IROX® beanng coating with embedded dry lubncant design
enables these beanngs to operate in low lubnication condittons found in hybnd or start-stop engines
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Industnal Beanngs

Bushings and Washers

fgmition

Dynamic Seals

Bonded Piston Seals

Combustion and Exhaust Gaskcts

Static Gaskets and Scals

Rigid Heat Shields

Element Resistant Sleeving

Flexible Heat Shields

Lighting

Motorparts. Motorparts sells and

Sold under the Deva®and Glycodur® brands, industrtal beanngs are pnmarily dedicated to applications operating n
mixed or low lubrication conditions Applications are marnly diverse industnal motors or converters and include wind
turbimes and hydroelectne power generation equipment

Bushings and washers are used 1n engines and transmissions to ensure low friction rotation or oscillation of shafts They
are made of bronze, alurmnum or polymer matenal

Igmition products include spark plugs, glow plugs, igmtion coils and accessortes for automounve commercial and
imdustnal applications

Dynamuc seals are used between a housing or body structure and rotating or moving shafts to contan lubncants, fluids
and pressure wnside the housing, while keeping out dust and other contamunates There are numerous areas of application
mcluding engine crankshaft transmission dnveshaft, pinion and axle, and wheel seals

Bonded piston seals use hydraulic pressure 1n transmmssions to facilitate gearshift These products are used 1n automatic,
dual clutch transmussions and continuously vanable transmissions

Combustion and exhaust gaskets arc used between two surtaces to contain gas and pressure produced from combustion
These gaskets are pnmanly used on intemal combustion engine applications including cyhinder head, exhaust mamfold,
exhaust takedown, exhaust gas recircuiation and turbocharger gaskets

Static gaskets and scals create a bamer between two surfaces to contain fluids, pressure and gases while keeping out dust
and other contaminants There are numercus areas of apphcation including engine covers, o1l pans, intake manifolds,
transrmission covers and differential covers

Rigad heat shields are designed te provide a heat and sound bamer to emitting components These products cover a futl
range of application on a vehicle from engine to tailpipe

Element resistant sleeving products provide protection of wires, hoses, sensors, and mechamcal components and
assemblies from heat, electro-magnetic interference, dirt, vibration and moisture Element resistant sleeving products
melude

« automotive wire hamesses and hoses,

« abrasion protection and wire management of cable assemblies,
» dielectne protection of electnical leads,

* thermal and mechanical protection of hose assemblies, and

= acoustic insulating and sound-dampening matenals

Flexible heat shields are designed to provide a heat bamer and for thermal management wsually in the e¢ngine
compartment

Automotive highting products include power and lighting systems, and interior and extertor ighting components

distnbutes a broad portfolie of products 1n the global vehicle aftermarket Approximately 75% of Motorpants’ sales are

denved from sales to customers in the aftermarket and approximately 25% are attnibutable to sales to the OE market Motorparts operates 33 manufactunng
sttes tn 16 countries and 24 distnbution centers 1n 14 countnes Motorparts denved 55% of its sales through North Amenca, 39% in EMEA and 6% in Rest of

World

Motorpans’ products are designed to solve a problem, facilitate installatron and improve safety, durability and vehicle performance Motorparts' products are
utilized wadely 1n vehicle braking systems and chassis, as well as in engine and sealing apphcations and general service Motorparts sells 1ts products, which
total more than 570,000 SKUs, nto the independent automotive, heavy-duiy and specialty replacement markets Through global market insight, supply
chain expertise and brand and product line management, aftermarket and OE customers worldwide benefit from the Company's innovative technology,
manufacturing, supply chan and distnbution expertise




The following table sets forth a descnpuon of the pnneipal products sold by the Company

Product

Light Vehicle Disc
Pads

Cuommercaial Vehicle
Disc Pads

Light Vehicle Drum
Brake Linings

Commercial Vehicle
Full Length Linings

Commercial Vehicle
Half Blocks

Railway Brake
Blocks

Chassis

Dnveline Universal
Joints

Combustion and
Exhaust Gaskets

Static Gaskets and
Seals

Wipers

Description
A light vehicle disc pad assembly consists of

friction matenal, which dissipates forward momentum by converting
energy nto heat,

underlayer, which 1s a layer of different fnction matenal placed between
the backplate and fnction matenal to improve strength, provide a thermal
bamer, corrosion resistance, no1se performance or a combination of these
charactenstics,

backplate, to support and locatc the friction matcnal in the caliper; and

shim, which 15 a ubber/metal laminate developed to suppress notse

Commercial vehicle disc brake pads are a growing segment of the fnction market,
superseding drum brakes on trucks, buses tractor units and trailers The basic
construction of a commercial vehicle disc pad 1s the same as a light vehicle disc pad

Drum brake Linings are fiiction matenal affixed to a brake shoe and fitted on the rear
setvice brake, rear parking brake and/or transmission brake application

Full length linings are the commercial vehicle equivalent of hight vehicle drum brake
linings

Half blocks are segments of fnction matenal made to be nveted onto drum brake
shoes They are used on heavier vehicle apphications where discs are not used

Railway brake blocks work by acting on the circumference of the wheel They are
lighter and quieter 1n operetion than cast iron blocks However, fiiction performance
15 designed to replicate that of cast 1ron blocks

Chassis parts include ball joints, tie rod ends, sway barlinks, 1dler arms, and pitman
arms These components affect vehicle steenng and vehicle nde qualuy

Drnveline universal joints which provide a linkage betwcen a power unit and output
device such as a wheel end or service device

Combustion and exhaust gaskets are used between two surfaces to contain gas and
pressure produced from combustion These gaskets are pnmanly used on intemal
combustion engine apphications including cylinder head, exhaust manitold, exhaust
takedown. exhaust gas recirculation and turbocharger gaskets

Static gaskets and seals create a bamer between two surfaces to contain fluids,
pressure and gases while keeping out dust and other contamunants There are
numerous areas of application including engine covers, o1l pans, intake man: folds,
shaft scals, transmussion covers and differential covers

Windshield wiper paits include cenventional and profile style wiper blades, blade
refills and wiper arms

Brands }
|

Wagner®, Abex®, Ferodo®,
Jund®, Stop" QuickStop® and
ThermoQuiet®

Ferodo®, Beral®, Abex®and
Stop'

Ferodo® and Wagner®

Ferodo®, Beral®, Abex® and
Jund”

Ferodo®, Beral®, Abex®and
Jund®

Ferodo® and Jund®

MOOG® and QuickSteer®

MOOG"

Fel-Pro*, Payen® and Goetze®

Fel-Pro® Payen®, Goetze* and
National®

ANCO® and Champion® |




The main task of the piston 1s to compress the airand fuel mixture 1n advance of

1ignitton Following combustion, the piston relays the combustion energy into Sealed Power®, Speed Pro®, FP
mechanical energy In this process, substantial pressures are exerted on the piston, Diesel® and Nural®

imposing high demands on 1t in terms of rigidity and temperature resistance

Pistons

The three main tasks of piston nngs 1n intemnal combustion engines are (1) sealing the
Piston Rings combustion chamber, {2) supporting heat transfer from the piston to the cylinder wall
and (3) regulating lubncation and o1l consumption

Sealed Power®, Speed Pro®, FP
Diesel® and Goetze®

Cylinder liners, or sleeves, are speciaily engineered where surfaces form within the
Cylinder hners cngine block, working in tandem with the piston and nng, as the chamber tn which FP Diesel”® and Goetze®
the thermal energy of the combustion process 1s converted into mechanical energy

[gnition products inctude spark plugs, glow plugs, 1gnition coils and accessones for

Igmition
g automotive, commercial and industnal applications

Champion® and Beru®

Lighting Replacement vehicle lighting products for automotive and commercial applications  Wagner®

Reporting Segment Frnancial Informasian. The following tables summanze net sales, cost of products sold, gross profit and total assets for each reporting
segment Foradditional information related to the Company’s reperting segmeants, refer to Note 24, Operations by Reporting Segment and Geographic Area,
to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item § ot this report

Net sales
Year Ended December 31
20t4 2013 2012
{Millions of Dollars)

Powetrm T S 4#%0§ 4173 3 39%]
Matorparts 3,192 2935 2,853
Intersegmentehmunations 7 T T T ogesy T (333) (335

Total 3 7,317 3% 6,786 § 6,444

Cost of products sold

Year Ended Becember 31

2014 2013 2012
(Mllions of Dollars)
Powettnn T T T TS U389 S (656) 8 (3A70))
Motorparts (2,668) {2,432) {2,390
Intersegmentelwmnaons %05 0 32 0 335
Total Reporting Segment {6,260} (5,766} (5,525)
Coporme _ = = @)
Total Company 3 (6,260) $ {5,766) % (5,531




Gross profit

Year Ended December 31
2014 W13 2012
(Mullions of Dollars)

Powertram T T ) I D 517§ 456 |
Motorparts 524 503 463

,ﬂ mm':M'WI'Mowtal Reporung SngEent .::.:"::—— 1,057 1,020 919 j
Corporate L — — (6)
:ljfj‘m‘i,c,‘lﬁ’!ii"h - $ 1,057 % 1,020 S 913 |

Total assets

December 3t
2014 2013
(Milbons of Dollars)

Powettram e ) 8 3ags s 3373
Moterparts 3,355 3,055
" Total Reporng Segment T m T 6,340 6428
Corporate 227 754
7 Total Co;n;;ny Assgts s 7067 8§ 71821

The Company’s Industry

The automotive light vehicle market, as well as the medium duty/heavy duty commercial market, 15 compnsed of two pnmary segments the OE market 1n
which the Company’s products are used in the manufacture of new vehicles and OE dealer service parts and the global aftermarket, in which the Company’s
products are used as replacement parts forall vehicles 1n operation on the road, including all previous models

The OE Market Demand for component parts 1n the OE market 1s generally a function ot the number of new vehicles produced, which 1s dnven by macro-
economic factors such as mnterest rates, fuel prices, consumer confidence, employment trends, regulatory requirernents and trade agreements Although OF
demand 15 tied to planned vehicle production, parts suppliers also have the opportunity to grow through increasing their product content per vehicle, by
increasing markel share and by expanding inte new or emerging markets Companmies with a global presence, leading technolegy and innovation, and
advanced product engineenng, manufactunng and customer suppert capabilities are best positioned to take advantage of these opportunities

There are currently several sigmificant trends that are impacting the OE market, including the following

Global Production — The global light and commercial vehicle production 1n developed markets dunng 2014 and 2013 was as follows

Global Light and Commercial Vehicle Production

2014 2013
Millions of Vehicles
Amemca | MA 214
EMEA 223 211
A s T a3

While global OE production increased at a moderate pace the demand tor parts, including parts produced the by Company also increased
moderately dunng 2014 due to steady demand in the Americas and EMEA and increased demand in Asia

Automotive Supply Consolidation — Consolidation within the automotive supply base 1s expected to continue as the entire industry evolves and as
the industry responds to the need to achieve economues of scale and global capabilities to serve vehicle manufacturers who are increasingly global
in their production Suppliers will seek opportunities to achieve synergies in their operations through consolidation, while stnving to acquire
complementary businesses to improve global competitiveness or to strategically enhance a product offenng to global customers
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. Globalization of Aytomotive Indusiry — OEs are increasingly designing global platforms where the basic design of the vehicle 1s performed tn one
location, but the vehicle 1s produced and sold 1n numerous geographic markets to realize significant economies of scale by Linuting vanations across
product designs and geographic regions While developed markets in North America and Europe continue to remain important to OEs, increased
focus 1s being placed upen expanded design, development and production winhin emerging markets for growth opportuntuies, espectally in the
BRIC markets As a result, suppliers must be prepared to provide product and technical resources in support of their customers within these emerging
markets Furthermore, OEs are moving their operabions to best cost geographies outside the US and Western European markets and, accordingly
OEs are increasingly requinng suppliers to provide parts on a global basis Finally, the Asian OEs continue to expand their reach and market share in
relation to traditional North Amencan and Evropean manufacturers As this trend 1s expected to continue into the foreseeable future, supphiers must
be geographically and technically positioned to meet the needs of the Asian OEs

. Focus on Fuel Economy, Reduced Emissigns and Altemative Energy Sources — Increased fuel economy and decreased vehicle emissions are of great
imponance to OEs as legislators and customers continue to demand more efficient and cleaner operating vehicles Increasingly stnngent fuel
cconomy standards and cnvironmental regulations are dnving OEs to focus on new technelogies including downsized, higher output and
turbocharged gasoling engines, diesel and turbocharged diesel, brto-mass and hybnd diesel applications and hybnd, electnc and alternative energy
engines As a result, the number of powertrain configurations will increase 1n response to the proliferaticn of commercially available energy sources
Suppliers offenng solutions to OEs related to numerous vehicle fuel and powertrain configurations possess a distinct competitive advantage, which
15 dnving accelerated new product development cycles

. Focus on Vehicle Safety — Vehicle safety continues to receive industry attention by OEs as customers view safety as a fundamental dnver in
consumer purchasing decisions and legislation looks on improved vehicle safety as a public health 1ssue Accordingly, OEs are seeking supphers
with new technologies capabiliiies and products that have the ability to advance vehicle safety Suppliers that are able to enhance vehicle safety
through innovative products and technologies have a distinct competitive advantage

. Pncing Pressures — OEs provide extensive pricing incentives and financing altematives to consumers 1n order to generate sales of new vehicles and
retain or gain market share These actions, coupled with the increasing content requured to meet regulations, have placed pressures on the OEs’
profits and, 1n tum, the OEs expect certain recovery from their supply base Suppliers must continually 1dentify and implement product innovation
and cost reduction activities to fund customer annual pnce concession expectations tn order to retatn current bustness as well as to be competitively
positioned for future new business opportumties

. Raw Matenal Cost Fluctuations — There have been significant fluctuations 1n recent penods 1n global prices of aluminum, copper, lead, nickel,
platinum, resins, steel, cther base raw matenals and energy Suppliers must continue to identify leading design and innovative technological
solutions and matenal substitution options n order to retain a competitive advantage to the extent that cost increases are not passed on to
customers

. Engrgy, Industnal and Transpopt Markets — Customers continue to develop altematives to historic infrastructure in the energy, industnal and
transport markets This includes power gencrators and other power conversion devices as well as growth in the acrospace and high speed railway
markets and ocean transport Suppliers with the capability to utihze automotive experfise to service these and other related markets have a
competitive advantage

The Afiermarket Business Products for the global vehicle aftermarket are sold directly to a wide range of distnbutors, retail parts stores and mass merchants
that distnbute these products to professional service providers, “do-it-yourself’ consumers and 1n some cases, directly to service chains Demand for
aftermarket products historically has been dnven by three pnmary factors (1) the number of vehicles in operation, (1) the average age of vehicles, and
(1) vehicle usage trends These factors, while apphcable 1n all regions, vary depending on the composition of the car parc and other factors, which are
discussed 1n greater detail below

Number of Vehicles in Operation The global car parc 15 expected to grow to aver 1 5 bilhion by 2020 The car parc growth in certain emerging
markets, such as China, 15 increasing at the highest rate, while more mature markets are expected to continue to remarn stable or to grow modestly
in size, indicating that new car sales are well beyond the replacement rate for serapped vehicles

Increase tn dverage Age of Vehicles The average age of vehicles on the road 1n the Unuted States has increased since 2002 from 9 6
years to an estimated 10 7 years in 2014 and 1s projected to remain relatively constant at approximately 11 8 years through 2020 dnving the
need for maintenance and repair work and thereby increasing the overall demand for aftermarket replacement parts 1n the Untted States
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More recent trends in the global afiermarket include

Channel Consolidatton In the more mature markets of the United States and Westem Europe, there has been increasing consolidation in
aftermarket distnbution networks with larger, more sophisticated aftermarket distnbuters and retailers grining market share These distnbutors
generally require larger, more sophisticated supphiers with product expertise, category management and supply chain services and capabthties, as
well as a global manufactunng and services footprint

Growth of Online Capabiliies Reaching consumers directly through online capabilities, including c-commerce, 15 cxpected to have an
ncreasing impact on the global aftermarket industry and how aftermarket products are sold Establishment of a robust onhine presence will be
cntical for suppliers regardless of whether they intend to participate directly 1in e<ommerce

Inciease in Private Label Brands and Low-Cost Country Imports In the Unned States, there has been an mncrease 1n pnvate label or store brands
sold by retailers and distnbutors at a lower pnice point than premium brands of the same products However, in many cases, retailers or wholesale
distnibutors creating pnivate label brands will still rely on established suppliers, like Motorparts, to manufacture their private label products and,
1n some cases, utthze co-branding to support thetr pnvate label offenngs

Changes in Consumer Behavior The aftermarket 1s ympacted by changes in economic conditions, volatility in fuel pnices, and expanding focus
on environmental and energy conservation For example, the number of consumers wath the abulity to purchase new vehicles in Europe has been
reduced due to adverse economic conditions, which 1s likely to increase demand for repairs in order to keep older vehicles road-worthy I[ncreased
environmental regulation will lead to additional replacement pans being required on a more frequent basts to meet more exaching standards
Recent falling tuel pnces in the United States are hikely to lead consumers to drive more and 10 imcrease disposable income available for
consumers to purchase aftermarket automotive parts and complete necessary repairs

The Company’s Customers

The Company supplies OEs with a wide vanety of technologically innovative parts, substantially all of which are manufactured by the Company The
Company’s OE customers consist of automotive and heavy-duty vehicle manufacturers as well as agncultural, off-highway, manne, railroad, aerospace, high
performance and industnal application manufacturers The Company has well-established relationships with substanually all major Amencan, European and
Asian automotive QEs

The Company's aftennarket customers include independent warehouse distnbutors who redisinbute products to local parts suppliers, distnbutors of heavy-
duty vehicular parts, engine rebuilders, retail parts stores and mass merchants The breadth of the Company’s product lines, the strength of 1ts leading brand
names, marketing experuise, sizable sales force, and 1ts distnbution and logistics capabiiity are central to the success of the Company’s Motorparts operations

No individual customer accounted for more than 6% of the Company’s direct sales dunng 2014

The Company's Competition

The global vehicular parts business 15 highly competitive The Company competes with many ndependent manu facturers and distnbutors of component
parts globally In general, competitton for sales 1s based on pnce product quahity, technology delivery, customer service and the breadth of products offered
by a given supplier The Company 15 meeting these compenitive challenges by developing leading technelogies, efficiently integrating 1ts manufactuning
and distnbution operations, expanding 1ts product coverage within its core businesses, restructunng s operations and transferring production to best cost
countnies, and utihzing 1ts worldwide technical centers to develop and provide value-added solutions to 1ts customers A summary of the Company s pnmary
independent competitors by reporting segment 1s set forth below

. Powertrain — Pnmary competitors include Aisin, Ant Metal, BinZou, Bleistahl, Bosch, Daido, Dana/Remz, Delfingen, Denso, DongYang,
ElnngKlinger, Freudenberg, GKN, Hella, Hitachi-Automotive, Kolbenschmidt, Mahle, Miba, NGK. NOK, NPR, Osram, Pall, Riken Sinteron, and
Stanley

. Motorparts - Pnmary competitors include Akebono Brake Corporation, Autolite, Brake Parts [nc , Bosch Group, Centnic Parts, Crowne Group LLC,
De¢lpht Automotive LLP, Dense Corporation, Dorman Products, Inc , GRI Engineenng and Development LLC {MAT Holdings Inc), Mahle GmbH
Mevotech Inc, NGK Spark Plug Co, Lid, NTN Beanng Corporation, Neapco Inc, Old World Industnes LLC Phillips Industnes, Pylon
Manufactunng Cormporation, Ram-X (ITW Globat Brands), SKF Group, Osram Sylvania Lid, TRW Automotive Holdings Corp, The Timken
Company, Trico Products Corporation and Valeo Group
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The Company’s Backlog

For OE customers, the Company generally receives purchase orders for specific products supplied for particular vehicles These supply relationships typically
extend over the life of the related vehicle, subject to intenm design and technical specification revisions, and do not requare the customer to purchase a
minimum guantity In addition to customary commercial terms and conditions, purchase orders generally provide for annual pnce reductions based upon
expected productivity improvements and other factors Customers typically retain the nght to terminate purchase orders but the Company genenally cannot
terminate purchase orders OE order fulfillment 1s typically manufactured in response to customer purchase order releases, and the Company ships directly
from a manufacturning location to the customer for use 1n vehicle production and assembly Accordingly, the Company’s manufactunng locations tum
finished goods inventory relatively quickly, producing from on-hand raw matenals and work-1n-process inventory within relatively short manufactunng
cycles Significant nsks to the Company include a change 1n engine production, dnven by mix changes, for powerirain componcents {c g a change from diesel
to gasoline engines) lower than expected vehicle or engine production by one or more of its QOE customers or termunation of the business based upon
percerved or actual shortfalls in delivery quality or value

For 1ts Global Aftermarket customers, the Company genemlly establishes product line arrangements that encompass all parts offered within a particular
product hine These are typically open-ended arrangements that are subject to termination by either the Company or the customer at any time Pricing 1s
market responsive and subject to adjustment based upon competitive pressures, matenal costs and other commercial factors Global Aftermarket order
fulfillment 15 largely perfermed from fimshed goods inventory stocked in the Company’s worldwide distnbution network Inventory stocking levels in the
Company’s distribution centers are established based upon histoncal and anticipated future customer demand

Although customer programs typically extend to future penods, and although there 1s an expectation that the Company will supply certain levels of OE
production and aftermarket shipments over such periods, the Company believes that outstanding purchase orders and product line ammangements do not
constitute firm orders Firm orders are limted to specific and authonzed customer purchase order releases placed with 1ts manufactunng and distnbution
centers for actual production and order fulfiltment Firm orders are typically fulfilled as promptly as possible after receipt from the conversion of available
raw matenals and work-in-process inventory for OF orders and from cument on-hand fimshed goods wnventory for aftermarket orders The dollar amount of
such purchase order releases on hand and not processed at any point in time 1s not believed to be significant based upon the iumeframe involved

The Company’s Raw Materials and Supphers

The Company purchases various raw materials and component parts for use in 1ts manufactunng processes, including ferrous and non-ferrous metals, non-
metallic raw matenals, stampings, castings and forgings The Company alse purchases parts manufactured by other manufacturers for sale 1n the aftermarket
The Company has not expenenced any sigmificant shortages of raw matenals, components or finished parts and normally does not carry inventones of raw
matenals or finished parts in excess of those reasonably required to meet its production and shipping schedules In 2014, no cutside supplier of the Company
provided products that accounted for more than 3% of the Company’s annual purchases

Insight Portfolie Group LLC (formally known as Ieahn Sourcing, LLC) - Related Party

[eahn Sourcing, LLC {(“Icahn Sourcing™) 1s an entity formed and controlled by Mr Icahn 1 order to maximmze the potential buying power of a group of
entities with which Mr Icahn has a relationship i negotiaung with a wide range of supphers of goods, services and tangible and ntangible property at
negotiated rates The Company was a member of the buying group 1n 2012 Prior to December 31, 2012, the Company did not pay Icahn Sourcing any fees or
other amounts with respect to the buying group arrangement

In December, 2012, Icahn Sourcing advised the Company that effective January 1, 2013 1t would testructure 1ts ownership and change 1ts name to Insight
Portfolio Group LLC (“Insight Portfolio Group™) In connection with the restructunng, the Company acquired a minonty equety interest in Insight Portfolio
Group and agreed to pay a pertion of Insight Portfolio Group's operating expenses 1in 2013 The Company’s payments to [nsight Portfolio Group were less
than $0 5 mullion durnng 2013 and 2014

Seasonality of the Company’s Business

The Company’s business 15 moderately seasonal because many North Amernican OF customers typically close assembly plants for two weeks in July for model
year changeovers, and for an additional week duning the December holiday season OE customers in Europe historically shut down vehicle production dunng
portions of July and August and one week in December Shut-down penods in the Rest of World generally vary by country The aftermarket expenences
seasonal fluctuations 1n sales due to demands caused by weather and dnving patterns Histoncally, the Companys szles and operating profits have been the
strongest 1n the second quarter For additional informauon, refer to the Company’s quarterly financial results contained 1n Note 25, Quarterly Financial Data
(Unaudited), to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in [tem 8 of this report
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The Company’s Employee Relations
The Company had 48,600 employees as of December 31,2014

Varous umons represent approximately 31% of the Company’s US hourly employees and approximately 1% of the Company’s non-US hourly
employees With the exception of two facthities in the U S, most of the Company’s umomzed manufactuning facilities have their own contracts with thewr
own expiration dates and, as a result, no contract expiration date affects more than one facility

impact of Environmental Regulations on the Company

The Company’s operations, consistent with those of the manufactunng sector in general, are subject to numerous existing and proposed laws and
govemmental regulations designed to protect the environment, particularly regarding plant wastes and emusstons and solid waste disposal Capital
cxpenditures for property, plant and equipment for cnvironmental control activitics did not have a matenal impact on the Company’s financial position or
cash flows 1n 2014 and are not expected to have a matenal impact on the Company’s financial position or cash flows in 2815

The Company’s intellectual Property

The Company holds 1n excess of 5,700 patents and patent applications on a worldwide basis, of which more than 1,160 have been filed in the United States
Of the approximately 5,700 patents and patent applications, approximately 30% are 1n production use and/or are hcensed to third parties, and the remaining
70% are being considered for future production use or provide a strategic technological benefit to the Company

The Company does not matenally rely on any smgle patent, nor will the expiration of any single patent matenally affect the Company’s business The
Company’s cument patents expire over various penods into the year 2036 The Company 1s actively introducing and patenting new technology to replace
formerly patented technology before the expiration of the existing patents In the apgregate, the Company’s worldwide patent portfolio 15 matenally
important to 1ts business because 1t enables the Company to achieve technological ditferentiation from 1ts competitors

The Company also maintains more than 6,800 active trademark registrations and applications worldwide In excess of 90% of these trademark registrations
and applications are in commercial use by the Company or are licensed to third parties

Interests Held by an Entity Controlled by Mr. Carl C. Icahn

An entity mdirectly owned and controlled by Mr Icahn filed a Schedule 13D and amendments therein with the Secunties and Exchange Comnussion
indicating that such entity has a beneficial iterest of approximately 80 73% of the Company’s outstanding shares of common stock As a result, Mr [cahn
has the indirect abihty to nominate and elect all of the directors on the Company’s Board of Directors Under applicable law and the Company’'s certificate of
tncorporation and by-laws, certatn actions cannot be taken without the approval of helders of 8 majonty of the Company’s voting stock including, without
limitation, mergers, the sale of substantially all of the Company s assets, and amendments to its certificate of incorporation and by-laws So leng as Mr [cahn
continucs to contrel a majonty of the Company’s outstanding capital stock, he will continue to have these govemance nghts and the abihity to control the
Company

The Company’s Web Site and Access to Filed Reports

The Company maintains an intemet Web site at www federalmogul com The contents of the Company’s Web site are not incorporated by reference 1n this
report The Company provides access to 1ts annual and penodic reponts filed with the SEC free of charge through this Web site The Company’s Integnty
Policy 1s also available on 1ts Web site The SEC maintains a Web site at www SEC gov where reports, proxy and mformation statements, and other
information about the Company may be obtamned Paper copies of annual and perodic reports filed with the SEC may be obtained free of charge by
contacting the Company’s headquarters at the address located within the SEC Filings or under [nvestor Relations on the Company’s Web site
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ITEM 1 A. RISK FACTORS

An mvestment m Federal-Mogul ivolves varous risks The nsks discussed below are not the only ones faced by the Company Please also read the
cautionary note regarding “Forward-Looking Statemenis” beginning on page 2

The separation of the Company's Powertrain and Motorparts divisions into two independent, publicly traded companies may not be completed on the
terms or temeline currently contemplated, if at all Further, the separation will requure significant tume, resources and attention from management, which
may distract maragement from the operation of our business and the execution of our other imtratives On September 3, 2014 the Company announced 1ts
intention to pursue the separation of 1ts Powertrain and Moterparts divisions into two independent, publicly traded companies (the “Separation
Transaction™) Unanticipated developments ¢could delay or negatively impact the Separation Transaction or increase the Company's expenses relating to the
transaction The Company cannot assure that 1t will be able to complete the Separation Transaction on the terms that were announced or on the antictpated
tumeline, 1f at all  If the Company 15 unable to consummate the Scparation Transaction, 1t will have incurred costs without realizing the benefits of such
transaction  Further, the Separation Transaction will require significant time, resources and attention from management, which may distract management
from the operation of our business and the execution of our other imittatives Our employees may also be distracted due to uncertainty about their future roles
pending the completion of the Separation Transaction Ifthe Separation Transaction is completed, such transaction may not achieve the intended results Any
such difficulties could have a matenal adverse effect on The Company's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows

The Company's hquidity may be impacted in the short term from its growth activities and strategic tutiatives The Company 1s pursuing a number of
orgamic and morganic growth activities, restructuning plans and strategic imitiatives to increase and improve the Company’s business and profitabihty
Management believes these activities will enhance the Company’s long term shareholder value, however, the (nvestment to effectuate these activities may
have an impact on the Company’s short term liquidity and may create the need tor additional borrowing which may be at higher interest rates given the
Company’s cumrent level of indebtedness

The Company has substantial indebtedness, which could resirict the Company's business activities and could subject the Company to sigmficant interest
rate sk As of December 31, 2014, the Company had approximately $2 7 billion of outstanding indebtedness The Company s pertmitted by the temms of uts
debt instruments to incur additional indebtedness, subject to the restnictions therein The Company’s inability to generate sufficient cash flow to satisfy its
debt obligations, or to refinance its debt obligations on commercially reasonable terms. would have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial condition and results of operations In addition, covenants 1n the Company’s debt agreements could hmut its ability to engage n cerlain
transactions and pursue 1ts business strategies, which could adversely affect hquidity

The Company’s mdebtedness could

’ limut the Company’s ability to borrow money for working capital, capital expenditures, debt service requirements or other corporate purposes,
guarantee addinional debt ot 1ssuc redeemable, convertible of prefermed equaty,

. himit the Company’s ability to make distnbutions or prepay its debt, incur liens, enter into agreements that restnct distnbutions from
restncted subsidianes, sell or otherwise dispose of assets (including capital stock of subsidianes), enter 1nto transactions with affihates and
merger, consoiidate or sell substantially all of its assets,

. require the Company to dedicate a substantial portion of 1ts cash flow 1o payments on indebtedness, which would reduce the amount of cash
flow available to fund working capital, capital expenditures, product development and other corporate requirements,

. increase the Company’s vulnerability to general adverse economuic and industry conditions, and

. lirmut the Company’s ability to respond to business opportunities

Asignificant portion of the Company’s indebtedness accrues interest at vanable rates To the extent market interest rates nse, the cost of the Company’s debt
would increase, adversely affecting the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows

The Company’s restructuring activities may nol result tn the anticipated synergies and cost savings It 1s possible that the achievement of expected
synergies and cost savings associated with restructuring activities will require additional costs or charges to eamings 1n future penods It 1s also possible that
the expected synergies may not be achieved Any costs or charges could adversely impact the business, results of operations, iquidity and financial
condition
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The Company may pursue acquisitions or other affiliations that invelve utherent nisks, any of which may cause the Company not to realize anticipated
benefirs, and the Company may have difficulty integrating the operations of any companies that may be acquired, winch may adversely affect the
Company's results of operations In the past, the Company has grown through acquisitions, and may engage 1n acquisttions n the future as part of the
Company’s sustainable global profitable growth strategy The full benefits of these acqusitions, however, require integration of manufactunng,
admunistrative, financial, sales, and marketing approaches and personnel If the Company 1s unable to successfully integrate its acquisitions, it may not
realize the benefits of the acquisitions, the financial results may be negatively affected, or additronal cash may be required to integrate such operations

In the future, the Company may not be able to successfully identify suitable acquisition or affiliation opportumities or complete any particular acquisition,
combiation, affiliation or other transaction on acceptable terms The Company’s identification of suitable acquisition candidates and affiliation
opporunities and the mtegration of acquired business operations mvolve nsks inherent 1n assessing the values, strengths, weaknesses, nsks and profitabality
of these opportunities This includes the effects on the Company’s business, diversion of management’s attention and nsks associated with unanticipated
problems or unforeseen habilities, and may require significant financial resources that would otherwise be used for the ongoing development of the
Company’s business

The difficulties of integration may be increased by the necessity of coordinating geographically dispersed orgamizations, integrating personnel with disparate
business backgrounds and combining different corporate cultures These difficulties could be further increased to the extent the Company pursues
acquisition or affihation opportumties internationally The Company may not be effective mn retaiming key employees or customers of the combimed
businesses The Company may face integration 1ssues pertaining to the intemnal controls and operations functions of the acquired compantes and also may
not realize cost efticiencies or synergies that were anticipated when selecting the acquisition candidates The Company may experience managenal or other
conflicts with its affihation partners Any of these 1tems could adversely affect the Company's results of operations

The Company’s failure to identify suitable acquisition or joint venture opportunittes may testrict the Company’s ability to grow its business If the Company
15 successful in pursuing future acquisitions or other affiliations, the Company may be required to expend significant funds, incur additionai debt and/or
15sue additional secunties, which may matenally adversely affect results of operations [f the Company spends significant funds or incurs additional debt, the
Company’s ability to obtain financing for working capital or other purposes could dechine and the Company may be more vulnerable to cconomic downtums
and competitive pressures

Adverse conditrons n the autemonve market adversely affect demand for the Company'’s products and exposes the Company to credit risks of us
cusiomers The revenues of the Company s operations are closely tied to global OE automobile sales, production levels, and independent aftermarket parts
replacement activity The OF market 15 charactenzed by short-term volatility, with overall expected long-term growth 1n global vehicle sales and production

Automotive production 1n the local markets served by the Company can be affected by macroeconomic factors such as interest rates, fuel prices, consumer
confidence employment trends, regulatory and legislative oversight requirements and trade agreements A vanation 1n the level of automebile production
would affect not only sales to OF customers but., depending on the reasons for the change, could impact demand from aftermarket customers The Company’s
results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected 1f the Company fails to respond 1 a timely and appropriate manner to changes in the
demand for its products

Accounts receivable potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit nsk The Company’s customer base includes virtually every significant
global automotive manufacturer, numerous Tier 1 automotive suppliers, and a large number of distnbuters and mstallers of automotive aftermarket parts

Censclidation and increased market power of the Company's independent aftermarket customers could negatvely affect the Companys financial
performance- The Company’s independent aftermarket customers are continuing to consohdate and gaimn purchasing power and the ability to demand
extended payment terms and other pncing concessions If these trends continue the financial results of the Company's Motorparts business segment could be
negatively impacted

If the Company loses any of its executive officers or key employees, the Company s operations and abuity to manage the day-to-day aspects of its business
may be materially adversely affected The Company’s future performance substantially depends on its ability to retain and motivate executive officers and
key employees, both individually and as a group If the Company loses any of its executive officers or key employees, which have many years of expenence
with the Company and within the automotive industry and other manufactuning industnies or ts unable to recruit qualified personnel, the Company’s ability
to manage the day-to-day aspects of 1ts business may be matenally adversely affected The loss of the services of one or more executive officers or key
employees, who also have strong personal ties with customers and suppliers, could have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition and results of operations

The Company does not currently maintain “key person” life 1nsurance




The Company’s operations in foreign countries expose the Company to rnisks related to econome and political conditions, currency fluctuations,
tmport/expoit restrictions, regulatory and other risks. The Company has manufactunng and distnbution facilities 1n many countnes Intemational
operations are subject to certain nsks tneluding

. exposure to local economic conditions,

. exposure to local pohtical conditions {including the nsk of se1zure of assets by foreign govemments),

. currency exchange rate fluctuations (including, but not mited to, matenal exchange rate fluctuations, such as devaluations) and currency controls
. export and (mport restrictions and

. compliance with US laws such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, and local laws prahibiting inappropnate payments

The likehhood of such occurrences and their potential effect on the Company are unpredictable and vary from country-to-country

Certain of the Company’s operating entities report thetr financial condition and results of operations in currencies other than the U S dollar (including, but
not iimited to, Brazihan real, Brtish pound, Chinese yuan renmnbi, Czech crown, euro, Indian rupee, Mexican peso, Polish zloty, Russian ruble, South
Korcan won and Swedish krona) In reporting 1ts consolidated statements of operations, the Company translates the reported results of these entities into U S
dollars at the applicable exchange rates As a result, fluctuations in the dollar against foreign cumrencies will affect the value at which the results of these
entittes are included within Federal-Mogul’s consolidated results

The Company 15 exposed to a nsk of gain ot loss from changes 1n foreign exchange rates whenever the Company, or one of 1ts foreign subsidianies, enters into
a purchase or sales agreement 1n a currency other than its functtonal currency Whale the Company reduces such exposure by matching most revenues and
costs within the same currency, changes in exchange rates could unpact the Company’s financial condition or results of operations

The Company s subject te possible insolvency of financeal counterparties The Company engages in numerous financial transactions and contracts
including insurance policies, letters of crednt, credit hine agreements. financial denvatives and 1nvestment management agreements involving vanous
counterparties The Company 1s subject to the nsk that one or more of these counterparties may become 1nsolvent and therefore be unable to discharge 1ts
obhigations under such contracts

The automottve mdustry 15 ighly competitive and the Company’s success depends upon its ability to compele effectively 1n the market: The Company
operates 1 an extremely competitive industry, dnven by global vehicle production volumes and part replacement trends Business 1s typically awarded to
the supplier offering the most favorable combinanon of cost, quality, technology and service [n addition, customers continue to require penodic pnce
reductions that requure the Company to continually assess, redefine and 1mprove its operations, products and manufoctunng capabilities to maintain and
mmprove profitability The Company’s management continues to develop and execute initiatives to meet the challenges of the industry and to achieve 1ts
strategy. however, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to compete effectively i1n the automotive market

The Company’s pension obliganons and other postemployment benefits could adversely impact the Companys operating margwns and cash flows, The
automotive industry, tike other industnes, continues to be impacted by the nsing cost of providing pension and other postemployment benefits In addition,
the Company sponsors certain defined benefit plans worldwide that arc underfunded and will require cash payments If the performance of the assets 1n the
pension plans does not meet the Company s expectations, or other actuanal assumptions are modified, the Campany’s required contnbutions may be higher
than 1t expects See Note 15, Pensions and Other Postemplovment Benefits, to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this report

The price of the Campany s common stock is subject to volantltty Vanous facters could cause the market price of the Company’s common stock to fluctuate
substantially including gencral tinancial market changes, changes in govemmental regulation, significant automotive industry announcements or
developments, the introduction of new products or technologies by the Company or its competitors, and changes n other conditions or trends n the
automotive industry Other factors that could cause the Company’s stock pnice to fluctuate could be actual or anticipated vanations 1n the Company’s or 1ts
competitors’ quarterly or annual financial results, financial results farling to meet expectations of analysts or inveslors, changes in securities analysts’
estimates ot the Company’s future pertormance or of that of the Company's competitors and the general health of the automotive industry
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Mr Carl C. Icahn exerts significant influence over the Company and his tnterests may confltct with the interest of the Company’ other stockholders:
Mr Car C Icahn mdirectly controls approximately 80 73% of the voting power of the Cornpany’s capital stock and, by virtue of such stock ownership, 15
able to control or exert substantial influence over the Company, including

. the etection of directors,

. business strategy and policies,

. mergers or other business combinations,

. acquisition or disposition of assets,

. future 1ssuances of common stock or other secunties,

. incurrence of debt or obtaining other sources of financing, and
. the payment of dividends on the Company's common stock

The existence of a controlling stockholder may have the effect of making 1t difficult for, or may discourage or delay, a thid party from seeking to acquire a
majornty of the Company’s outstanding common stock, which may adversely affect the market pnce of the stock

Mr Icaha’s interests may not always be consistent with the Company’s interests or with the interests of the Company’s other stockholders Mr lcahn and
cntitics controlled by him may also pursuc acquisitions or business opportunutics that may or may not be complementary to the Company’s business To the
extent that confhicts of interest may anse between the Company and Mr I[cahn and his affiliates, those conflicts may be resolved 1n 2 manner adverse to the
Company or tts other shareholders

The Company’s stock price may decline due te sales of shares by Mr Carl C Icahn Sales of substantial amounts of the Company's common stock by
Mr Icahn and his affiliates, or the perception that these sales may occur, may adversely affect the price of the Company’s common stock and 1mpede 1ts
ability to rmise capital through the 1ssuance of equity secunties m the future Mr [calin 1s contractually entitled, subject to certain exceptions, to exercise
rights under a registration nghts agreement to cause the Company to register his shares under the Secunties Act By exercising his registration nghts and
selling a large number of shares, Mr Icahn could cause the pnice of the Company’s common stock to dechine No other shareholder has registration nghts

The Company is subject to the pension ltabilities of all entities in whech Mr Icahn has a direct or indirect ownershup interest of at least 80% In July 2013
the Company completed a common stock rights otfering The purchases of shares of common stock 1n the nghts offering icreased the indirect contrel of Mr
Carl C Icahn to approximately 80 73% of the voung power As a result of the more than 80% ownership interest in the Company by Mr Icahn’s atfiliates, the
Company 1s subject to the pension liabilities of all entities in which Mr Icahin has a direct or indirect ownership interest of at least 80% One such entity,
ACF Industnes LLC ("ACF™, 1s the sponsor of several pension plans All the minimum funding requirements of the Code and the Employee Retirement
Income Secunty Act of 1974 for these plans bave been met as of December 31, 2014 If the ACF plans were voluntanly temunated, they would be
underfunded by approximately $82 mullion as of December 31, 2014 These results are based on the most recent information provided by the plans’actuanes
These liabilities could 1ncrease or decrease, depending on a number of factors, including future changes 1n benefits, investment returns, and the assumptions
used to calculate the habiliy As members of the controlled group, the Company would be liable for any failure of ACF to make ongoing pension
contnbutions or to pay the unfunded habilities upon a termination of the pension plans of ACF In addition, other entities now or in the future within the
controlled group 1n which the Company 1s included may have pension plan obligations that are, or may become, underfunded and the Company would be
hiable tor any failure of such entitics to make ongoing pension contnbutions or to pay the unfunded habilities upon termunation of such plans Further, the
failure to pay these pension obligations when due may result 1n the creation of liens in faver of the pension plan or the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation
(' PBGC"y against the assets of each member of the controlled group

The cumrent underfunded status of the pension plans of ACF requires 1t to notify the PBGC of certain “reportable events,” such as 1l the Company ceases to be
a member of the ACF controlled group or the Company makes certain extraordinary dividends or stock redemptions The obligation to report could cause the
Company to seek to delay or reconsider the occumrence of such reportable events

Icahn Enterpnses Holdings LP and IEH FM Holdings LLC have undertaken to indemmify Federal-Mogul for any and all hability imposed upon the
Company pursuant to the Employee Retirement Income Secunty Act of 1974, as amended, or any regulation there under (“"ERISA™) resulting trom the
Company being considered a member of a contrelled group withun the meaning of ERISA § 4001(a)(14) ot which Amencan Entertainment Properties
Corporation 15 a member, except with respect 1o hability 1 respect to any employee benefit plan, as defined by ERISA § 3(3), mantained by the Company
lcahn Enterprises Holdings L P
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and IEH FM Holdings LLC are not required to maintain any specific net worth and there can be no guarantee Icahn Enterpnises Holdings L P and iEH FM
Holdings LLC will be able to fund 1ts indemnification obligattons to the Company

Certain disruptions in supply of and changes in the competitive environment for raw materials could adversely affect the Company’s operating margins
and cash flows The Company purchases a broad range of matenals, components and finished parts The Company also uses a significant amount of energy,
both electricaty and natural gas, in the production of 1ts products A sigmificant disruption mn the supply of these matenals, supplies and energy or the failure
of a supplier with whom the Company has established a single source supply relationship could decrease production and shipping levels, matenally incrcase
operating costs and matenally adversely affect profit margins Shortages of matenals or interruptions 1n transportation systems, labor stnkes, work stoppages,
or other interruptions to or difficulties in the employment of labor or transportation 1n the markets where the Company purchases material, components and
supplies for the production of products or where the products are produced, distnbuted or sold, whether as a result of labor sinfe, war, further acts of temonisim
or otherwise, 1n each case may adversely affect profitability

In recent penods there have been sigmificant fluctuations n the pnces of alumnum, copper, fead, mickel, platinum, resins, steel, other base metals and energy
which have had and may continue to have an unfavorable tmpact on the Company’s business Any continued fluctuations in the price or availability of
energy and matenals may have an adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial conditron To address increased costs associated with
these market forces, a number of the Company’s suppliers have implemented surcharges on existing fixed pnce contracts Without the surcharge, some
suppliers claim they will be unable to provide adequate supply Competitive and marketing pressures may limut the Company’s ability to pass some of the
supply and matenal cost increases on to the Company’s customers and may prevent the Company from doing so 1n the future Furthermore, the Company’s
customers are generally not obligated to accept price increases that the Company may desire to pass along to them This tnabtlity to pass on pnce increases to
customers when matenal pnces increase rapidly or to significantly higher than histone levels could adversely affect the Company’s operating margins and
cash flow, possibly resulting 1n lower operating imcome and profitability

The Company’s hedging activities te address commodity price fluctuations may not be successful in offsetfing future increases tn those costs or may reduce
or eliminate the benefits of any decreases in those costs In order to mitigate short-term vanation in operating results due to the aforementioned commodity
pnce fluctuations, the Company hedges a portion of near-term exposure te certain raw matenals used 1n production processes, primarily natural gas, copper,
mickel, tin, zinc, high-grade aluminum and aluminum alloy The results of the Company’s hedging practice could be positive, neutral or negative 1n any
penod depending on pnice changes tn the hedged exposures

The Company's hedging activities are not designed to mitigate long-term commedity price fluctuations and, therefore, walt not protect from long-term
commodity price increases The Company s future hedging positions may not correlate to actual energy or mw matenals costs, which would cause
acceleration in the recognition of unrealized gains and losses on hedging positions in operating results

The Company is subject to a variety of environmental, health and safety laws and reguiations and the cost of complying, or the Company’s fmlure to
comply with such requirements may have a material adverse effect on ifs bustness, financial condition and results of operations The Company 1s subject to
a vanety of federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations relating to the release or discharge of matenals into the environment, the management,
use, processing, handling, storage, transport or disposal of hazardous waste matenals, or otherwise relating to the protection of public and employee health,
safety and the environment These laws and regulations expose the Company to liabihity for the environmental condition of 1ts current facilities, and also
may expose the Company to liability for the conduct of others or for the Company’s actions that were 1n compliance with all applicable laws at the time these
actions were taken These laws and regulations also may expose the Company to hability for claims of persenal 1njury or property damage related to alleged
exposure to hazardous or toxic matenals in foreign countnies Despite the Company’s intention to be in comphance with all such laws and regulations, the
Company cannot guarantee that it will at all umes be in compliance with all such requirements The cost of complying with these requirements may also
increase substantially 1n future years If the Company violates or fails to comply wath these requirements, the Company could be fined or otherwise
sanctioned by regulators These requirements are complex, change frequently and may become more sinngent over ime, which could have a matenal adverse
effect on the Company’s business

The Company’s failure to maintain and comply with environmental pemmts that the Company 1s required to mamntain could result in fines or penalties or
other sanctions and have a matenal adverse cffect on the Company’s operations er results Future cvents such as new environmental regulations or changes
in or medified interpretations of existing laws and regulations ot enforcement policies, newly discovered information or further investigation or evaluation of
the potential heatth hazards of products or business activities, may give nse to additienal comphance and othet costs that could have a matenal adverse
effect on the Company's business, financial conditions and operatrons
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New regulations related to “conflict minerals™ may force us to ncur additional expenses and may make the Company’s supply chamn more complex In
August 2012 the SEC adopted annual disclosure and reporting requirements for those companies who use certain minerals known as “conflict minerals

muned from the Democratic Republic of Congo and adjoining countnes in their products These new requirements required due diligence efforts 10 2013,
with 1nitial disclosure requirements beginning 1n 2014 There will be significant costs associated with complying with these disclosure requirements,
including for dihgence to determine the sources of conflict muinerals used 1n the Company’s products and other potential changes te products, processes or
sources of supply as a consequence of such venfication activities

The Company s involved from time to time 1n legal proceedings and commercial or contractual disputes, which could have an adverse impact on the
Company s profitability and consolidated financtal positton The Company 1s involved 1n legal proceedings and commercial or contractual disputes that,
from tume to time, arc significant These are rypically claims that anse in the normal course of business including, without limitation, commercial or
contractual disputes, including disputes with suppliers, mtellectual property matters, personal njury claims, environmental 1ssues, tax matters and
employment matters No assurances can be given that such proceedings and claims will not have a matenal adverse impact on the Company's profitability
and consolidated financial position

If the Company 15 unable te protect its intellectual property and prevent its improper use by therd parties, the Company’s ability to compete in the market
may be harmed Vanous patent, copynght, trade secret and trademark laws afford only Limited protection and may not prevent the Company's competitors
from duplicating the Company’s products or gaining aceess to its propnetary information and technology These means also may not permut the Company to
gain or maintain a competitive advantage

Any of the Company’s palents may be challenged, invahdated, circumvented or rendered unenforceable The Company cannot guamntee that it will be
successful should onc or more of 1ts patents be challenged for any reason and countrics outside the US may dimimish the protection of the Company’s
patents Ifthe Company’s patent claims are rendered invahd or unenforceable, or narrowed 1n scope, the patent coverage afforded to the Company’s products
could be impaired, which could significantly impede the Company’s abihity to market 1ts products, negatively affect 1ts competitive position and matenally
adversely affect 1ts business and results of operattons

The Company’s pending or future patent applications may not result in an 1ssued patent Addinonally, newly 1ssued patents may not provide meaningful
protection against competitors or against competitive technelogies Courts 1n the United States and 1n other countnes may invalidate the Company's patents
or find them unenforceable Competitors may also be able to design around the Company’s patents Other parties may develop and obtain patent protection
for more effective technologies, designs or methods If these developments were to oceur, 1t could have an adverse effect on the Company’s sales If the
Company’s intellectual property nghts are not adequately protected, the Company may not be able to commercialize 11s technologies, products or services
and the Company’s competitors could commerciahze the Company's technologtes which could result 1n a decrease in the Company’s sales and market share
and could matenally adversely affect the Company's business, financial condition and resulis of operattons

The Company s praducts could infringe the intellectual property rights of others, which may lead to bngation that could nself be costly, could result in the
payment of substantiaf damages or royalties, and could prevent the Company from using technology that is essentral te ifs products The Company cannot
guarantec that its products, manufacturing processes or other methods do not infiinge the patents or other intellectual property nghts of third parties
Infingement and other intellectual property claims and proceedings brought against the Company, whether successful or not, could result in substanuial costs
and harm the Company’s reputation Such claims and proceedings can also distract and diven management and key personnel from cther tasks important to
the success of its business In addition intellectual propenty litigateon or claims could force the Company to do one or more of the following

. cease selling or using of any products that incorporate the asserted intellectual property, which would adversely affect the Company’'s
revenue,

. pay substantial damages for past use of the asserted intellectual property,

. obtain a license from the holder of the asserted intellectual property which license may not be available on reasonable terms, 1f at all, and

. redesign or rename, in the case of trademark ¢laims, products to avoid infnnging the intellectual property nghts of third parties which may

not be possible and could be costly and time<consuming 11t 15 possible to do
In the event of an adverse determination 1n an intellectual property suit or proceeding, or the Company’s failure to license essential technology, the

Company’s sales could be harmed and its costs could increase, which could matenally adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition and
results of operations
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The Company may be exposed to certain regulatory and financral nisks related to climate change Climate change 1S continuing to recelve ever Increasing
attention worldwide Many scienusts, legislators and others attnbute climate change to increased levels of greenhouse gases, including carbon dioxide,
which could lead to additional legislative and regulatory efforts to limit greenhouse gas emussions The focus en emissions could increase costs associated
with the Company’s operations, including costs for raw matenals and transportation Because the scope of future laws 1n this area 1s uncertain, the Company
cannot predict the potential impact of such laws on 1ts future consolidated financial condition, results of operations ot cash flows




ITEM 1 B, UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable

ITEM2 PROPERTIES

The Company’s world headquarters 1s located in Southfield Michtgan, which 1s a leased facility The Company had 174 manufacturing facilites techmical
centers, distnibution centers, and sales and administration office facilities worldwade at December 31, 2014 Approximately 41% of the tacilities are leased,
the majonty of which are distnbution centers, and sales and admimistration offices The Company owns the remainder ot the facilities

North Rest of
Type of Facility Amereca EMEA World Total
Manuf;clur;n_g facthties T 31 41 27 99j
Technical centers ) R L 14
Dswbuoncenters Mmoo s A
Sales and administration offices 9 13 15 37
D ) e 59 68 47 174 |

The facilities range 1n size from approximately 100 square feet to 700 thousand square feet Management believes that substantially all of the Company’s
tacilities are 1n good condition and that 1t has sufficient capacity to meet 1ts current and expected manufacturing and distribution needs

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company 1s involved 1n vanous litigation matters regarding environmental matters and other matters as descnbed below

Environmental Matters

The Company 15 a defendant 1n lawsuits filed, or the reciprent of admunistrative orders 1ssued or demand letters recerved 1n vanous junsdictions pursuant to
the Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 {(“CERCLA”) or other similar national, provincial or state
environmental remedial laws These laws provide that responsible partics may be hable to pay for remediating contamination resulting trom hazardous
substances that were discharged into the environment by them, by prior owners or occupants of property they currently own or operate, or by others to whom
they sent such substances for treatment or other dispesition at third party locations The Company has been notified by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency, other national environmental agencies, and vartous provincial and state agencies that it may be a potentially responsible party (“PRP”)
under such laws for the cost of remediating hazardous substances pursuant to CERCLA and other national and state or provincial environmental laws PRP
designation typically requires the funding of site investigations and subsequent remedial activities

Many of the sites that are likely to be the costliest to remediate are often current or former commercial waste disposal facilities to which numerous companies
sent wastes Despite the potential Joint and several liability which might be imposed on the Company under CERCLA and seme ot the other laws pertaining
to these sites, the Company’s share of the total waste sent to these sites has generally been small Therefore, the Company believes its exposure for liability at
these sites 1s limited

The Company has also identified certain other present and former properties at which 1t may be responsible for cleaning up or addressing environmental
contamination, in some cases as a result of contractual commitments and/or federal or state environmental laws The Company 15 actively seeking to resolve
these actual and potential statutory, regulatory and contractual obligations Although difficult to quantify based on the complexity of the issues, the
Company has accrued amounts corresponding to its best cstimate of the costs associated with such regulatory and contractual obligations on the basis of
available information from site investigations and best professional judgment of consultants

Total environmental hiabilities were $15 milbion and $14 milhion at December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively Management believes that such accruals will
be adequate to cover the Company’s estimated liability for 1ts exposure in respect to such matters In the event that such liabilities were to sigmificantly
exceed the amounts recorded by the Company, the Company’s results of operations and financial condition could be matenally aftected At December 31,
2014, management estimates that reasonably possible matenal additional losses above and beyond management’s best estimate of required remediation
costs, as recorded, approximate $40 milhion
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Other Matters
The Company 1s invelved in other legal actions and claims, directly and through 1ts subsidianes that anse in the normal course of business Management

does not believe that the outcomes of these other actions or claims are likely to have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, operating
results, or cash flows

ITEM 4 MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
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PART II

ITEM 5 MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND [SSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s stock 1s listed on the NASDAQ Global Stock Market
There were approximately 56 stockholders of record of Common Stock as of February 19, 2015 including multiple beneficial holders at depositones, banks

and brokers listed as a single holder of record 1n the street name of each respective depository bank or broker High and low sales pnices for the Company’s
common stock for each quarter 1n 2014 and 2013 are as follows

2014 2013
Quarter N High Low High Low
Pt 8 _ a9 s 15828 988 5 598]
Second $ 2051 § 1619 s 1039 s 484
Thd T g TUTaes2 s 1asr s 17338 992
Fourth [ S R T 1414 s 21§ 1497

The Company did not pay any dividends in 2014 or 2013 The Company has certain restrictions under 1ts debt facilities from paying dividends in the future

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder retum dunng the five year penod from December 31, 2009 to December31 2014 The graph
assumes that $100 was mvested on December 31, 2009, 1n each of the Company’s common stock, the stocks compnsing the S&P 500 Index and the stocks
compnsing the peer group The peer group 1s compnsed on the following companies BorgWamer Inc , Dana Magna International, Mentor, Tenneco and
TRW This performance graph shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by reference this Form 10-K into
any filing under the Secunties Act or the Exchange Act except to the extent that the Company specifically 1ncorporates this information by reference, and
shall not otherwise be deemed soliciting matenal or filed under such Acts

Federal-Mogul Stock Performance Chan
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ITEM 6 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents informanon from the Consolidated Financial Statements as of or for the five years ended December 31, 2014 This information
should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysts of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and “Financial Statements
and Supplemental Data ™

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 010
{Milhions of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts)

Consohdated Statement of Operawoms Data 7 7 0 T ]
Net sales 5 7, 317 $ 6,786 § 6444 § 6,719 % 6,045
Costofpreductssold T T e260)  (5766) (5531)  (5.640)  (5.049)]
Gross proﬁt 1,057 1,020 913 1,079 996
Sellmg geueml and admimstrat;\;e Vekpensesh m B i ,,;,_; M::M,: ‘:: :w: (i?:ﬁw}j :m: (71 9) wt_»; _QQ;E : u;ml ,(Mﬁ‘!i()j:‘ :f:mzé‘ﬁ;)
OPEB curtailment gains — 19 51 ) 1 29
Adjustment ofassets o furvalue T T T T T T Ty T T ey T T e e T @)
Interest expense, net {120} 99 (128) uzn (129)
Restuctunmgexpense,net . @& @ e 6 )
Amortization expense (49) (47) {49) 48) 49)
Equity canungs ofnon-consolidatedaffibates 48 3 3 31 %]
Loss on debt extmgulshment 24 — — — —
Other {expense) meome,net T T T T 0 ah @ ee T dy a7
[ncome tax (expense) beneﬂt (56) (56) 29 (16} (1)
Net mcome (loss) from contnuing operations ——(sely 101 @ (56) 1651
(Loss) ncome trom dlscontlnued operations, net oflax — (52) {19) Q27
Less net mcome attnbutable te noncontrolling mterests ) w“_ . N ()] _ T (8) T (‘!)“ i (7): - u@ﬁ

et (loss) income attributable to Federal-Mogul $ (168) $ 41 3 {17 s 90 3 161
‘Amounts atmbutable to Federal-Mogul " o M“‘J
Net (Ioss) meome from continuing operations ’ ) -__; L m::m 336"3): e ”93_:;:::‘“ m(?g)m _ :mmm m{G}} :MW } :jl_ﬁ?g]
(Loss) meome from dlscommued operations, | neI of'tax — (52} (19} 2N
Netloss) income s (168) S a1 s arn s 00 $ 161 |
‘Common Share Summary Attributable to FederabMogel "~
Net glosslmcome per common share ba5|g
N;t Elwoss) income from contmumg opemn_ox-ls: ﬂ: W”m:w T ?mw Elmluf)wiﬁjww:_ mbmzsi :;‘S::: Agé: Még):” wf o A:E{N]_g{z s iMWImz
(Loss} income from d1scontlnued operations, net oftax — (0 42) 019) (027) 002
Netflossymeome T g (112) § 033 8 (118 § @wsy s 163 |
Net (loss) income percommon share -deduted " - Tt o e T
Net (loss) income from continuing operations 3 (riz2y % 075 % 099) §% {064) % 1 60
(Loss)ncome from discontinued operations, et oftax_ . _ (042) ___ ©19) _©2h 002 ]
Net {loss) income 3 (ri2y s 033 § (118) % {091) % 162
Welghted avemge shares (;uzgtandlng bastc (m mllllons’)mw T 7 Thisoo T 1234 989 989 T Mmfgg_;.
Welghted average s sh;res outsta.ndmg dlluted (m mlllmns) o j - MMMLWWEEUZQ m;:_:‘ _ _1:23 :l;::“:__ :éé_immm ) 994 594 z
Dividends declared per common share $ — % — 3 — 5 — 3 —
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2014 2013 2012 2911 2010

‘Other Financisl [nformation B |

thicés_h pEEJvlde(_i_ﬁ'(_)rr_l(u;;;imiay)ﬂopmm;tlmng activibles _S_ 7 ___278 ) 3 - ‘lliir 3 —» (53)— $_ o 241 3 i ) 404‘
Expenditures for property, plant, equipment ) 418y (380) {(387) 348y _(2§1))
Depreciation and amortization expense (334) (296) (289) (284) {333

As of December 31
2014 2013 2012 01 2010
(Millions of DoRars)

Consolidated Balance SheetData i o
Total asscts b 7067 % 7,182 % 6,927 % 7,029 % 7,296
Shoriterm debt, mcluding current portion of long-termdebt 127 1694 o4 g’ 7]
Longtermdebt T 2563 905 2733 2,741 2,752
Federal-Mogul shareholders'equity — """ " " 806 1% 725 953 T1217)
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ITEM 7 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESUL.TS OF OPERATTONS

The Company

On Apnl 15 2014, Federal-Mogul Corportien completed a holding company reorgamzation {the “Reorganization”) As a result of the Reorgamization, the
outstanding shares of Federal-Mogul Corporation common stock were automatically converted on a on¢-for-one basis into shares of Federl-Mogul Holdings
Corporatton common stock, and all of the stockholders of Federal-Mogul Cormporation immediately pnor to the Reorganizanon automatically became
stockholders of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation The nghts of stockholders of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporatton are generally govemed by
Delaware law and Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws, which are the same 1n all matenal respects as those of
Federal-Mogul Corporation immediately prior to the Reorganization In addition, the board of directers of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation and 1ts
Audit Commuittee and Compensation Commuttce are composed of the same members as the board of directors Audit Commuttee and Compensation
Commuttee of Federal-Mogul Corporation prior to the Reorganization

References herein to the “Company " “Federal-Mogul,” ‘we,” “us,” * our’ refer to Federal-Mogul Cormporation for the period prior to the effective time of the
Reorganization on Apnl 15,2014 and to Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation for the penod afler the effective time of the Reerganization

On September 3, 2014 the Company announced s plan to sepamte its Powertrain and Motorpans divisions into two independent, publicly-traded
compantes serving the global orginal equipment and aftermarket industnes The planned separation will be implemented through a tax-free distnbution of
Federal-Mogul's Motorpants division o sharcholders of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporatton Completion of the transacuon 1s subject to customary
cenditions, including among others, the Company’s receipt of an IRS niling or opinion of counsel to the effect that the distnbution will qualify as a
transaction that 1s generally tax-free for US Federal Income tax purposes, as well as effectiveness of a Form 10 Registration Statement to be filed with the
SEC On February 24, 2015, the Company announced that it would defer the previously announced spin-off of 1ts Motorparts division to allow for the
integration of its recently completed brake component, chassis and valvetrain acquisitions and to recognize the benefits of the strategic imtiatives 1n the
Motormparts division As a result of the deferrsl and the recent closing of the acquisiion of TRW's valvetrain business, the Company will commence a
common stock nghts offenng 10 strengthen 11s balance sheet The Company's board of directors intends to revisit the timing of the spin-off pnor to yearend

Meanwhile the company will continue 1o operate as two separate, independent divistons No assurances can be given regarding the ulimate timing of the
separatton or that it will be consummated

Onerview

Federal-Mogul Corporation 1s a lcading global supplier of a broad range of components, accessonies and systems to the automotive, small engine, heavy-
duty, manne, ralroad, agnculturl, off-road, aerospace and energy, industnal and transport markets, inciuding customers 1n both the ongnal equipment
manufacturers and servicers (“OE™ market and the replacement market (“aftermarket™) The Company’s customers include the world’s largest autometive OEs
and major distnbutors and retailers in the independent aftermarket Geographucally, the Company denved 36% ofits 2014 sales in the United States and 64%
internationally The Company has operations in established markets including Austraha, Belgium, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, Spain, Sweden, the United
Kingdom and the United States, and emerging markets including Argentina, Brazil, China, Czech Republic, Hungary India Korea, Mexico, Morocco,
Poland, Romania, Russia, South Afnca and Thailand The attendant nsks of the Company’s international operations are pnmanly related to cumency
fluctuanions changes in local economic and pohitical conditions, and changes in laws and regulations

The Company operates with two end-customer focused business segments The Powertrain segment focuses on onginal equipment products for automotive,
heavy duty and industnal applications The Motorparts segment sells and distributes a broad portfolio of products in the global aftermarket, while also
serving original equipment manufacturers with products including braking, chassis wipers and other vehicle components This organizational model allows
for a strong product line focus benefitung both enginal equipment and aftermarket customers and enables the global Federal-Mogul teams to be responsive
to customers’ needs for supetior products and to promote greater identification wath Federal-Megul premium brands Additionally, this organizational model
enhances management focus to capitalize on opportunities for orgamc or acquisition growth, profit improvement, resource utihization and business model
optimnzation in line with the umique requirements of the two different customer bases

The Company operates in an extremely competitive industry, dnven by global vehicle production volumes and pant replacement trends Business s typically
awarded to the supplier offenng the most favorable combination of cost, quality, technology and service Customers continue to require penodic cost
reductions which dnive the Company 10 continually assess, redefine, and imptove uts operations, products, and manufactunng capabilities to maintain and
improve profitability Management continucs to
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develop and execute mitiatives to meet the challenges of the mdustry and to achieve 1ts strategy for sustamable global profitable growth, including the
following ongoing initiatives

. Best-Cost Production — The Company has established and expanded manufactunng operations in best-cost countries in an effort to meet the cost
pressures mherent 1n the industry and increase profitabiiity The Company has manufactunng operations or affibations m Brazil, Chuna, Czech
Republic, Hungary, India, Korea, Mexico, Poland, Romama, Russia, South Africa, Thailand and Turkey

. Global Organizatign — Recogmzing the ever-increasing globalization of the automotive industry, the Company organized its pnmary business units
on both a global and regional basis This allows each business to take advantage of best practices in product development, technology and
innovatien, manufactunng capability and capacity as well as adapt to regional customer preferences Furthermore, the Company continues to
develop and implement standardized processes and consolidated systems to further the direction and performance of the business

. Global Distnbution Optumization ~ The Company continued 1ts efforts to optimize 11s aftermarket distnbution network in order to improve both the
efficiency of operations and customer order fulfillment and delivery performance, including imtianves to streamling its Amencan and European
afterrnarket operations, and expand its aftermarket operations 1n Asia

. Global Delivery Performance — [n additien te the distnbutton network consolidation efforts, the Company upgraded many of is remaining
distnbution centers with state-of-the-art warchouse management systems Furthermore, the Company has renewed 1ts focus on internal logistics and
ecxccution of inventory ‘pull” systems throughout 1ts manutactunng operations and suppliers to ensurc prompt and accurate replenishment of 118
distnbution network

. Expand Asia Pacific Presence — The Company has invested 1 manufacturing operations, both wholly-owned and non-<onsohdated atfiliate
relationships, 1n the Asia Pacific region and maintains a technical center in Shanghai, China to support the Companys efforts in this region The
Company intends to use these operations and technical center to strengthen its cument, as well as to develop new, customer relattonships in this
important region

. Customer Valued Technology ~ The Company has significant engineenng and technical resources throughout 1ts businesses focused on creating
value for customers with innovative solutions for both product applications and manufactuning processes

Critical Accounting Policies

Fhe accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements, included 1n Item 8 of this report, have been prepared 1n conformty with US GAAP and, accordingly,
the Company’s accounting policies have been disclosed 1n Note |, Basis of Presentaton and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the
Consolidated Financial Statements The Company considers accounting estimates to be entical accounung policies when

. the estimates involve matters that are highly uncertain at the time the accounting estimate 15 made, and
. different estimates or changes to estimates could have a matenal impact on the reported financial position, changes in financial position, or results of
operations

When more than one accounting pnnciple, or the method of its application, 18 generally accepted, management selects the principle or method that 1t
considers to be the most appropnate given the speaific circumstances Appheation of these accounting pnnciples requires the Company’s management to
make estimates about the future resolution of existing uncertainties Estimates are typically based upon histoncal expenence, current trends, contractual
documentation, and other information, as appropnate Due to the inherent uncertainty involving estimates, actual results reported in the future may differ
from those estimates In prepanng these financial statements management has made 1ts best esttmates and judgments of the amounts and disclosures inciuded
n the financial statements, giving due regard to matenahity The following summanzes the Company’s cntical accounting policies

Penston Plans and Other Postemployment Benefit Plans

The Company sponsoers defined benefit pension plans (* Pension Benefits”) and postemployment health care and lLife insurance benefits (‘Other
Postemployment Benefits” or ‘OPEB”) for certain employees and retirces arcund the world Using appropnate actuanal methods and assumptions, the
Company’s defined benefit pension plans and postemployment benefits other than pensions are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 715
Compensation = Retirement Benefits

Adctual results that differ from assumptions used are accumulated and amortized over future penods and, accordingly genenally affect recognized expense and
the recorded obligation in future penods Theretore, assumptions used to calculate benefit obligations as of the end of a fiscal year directly impact the
expense to be recognized 1n tuture pennods The pnmary assumptions atfecuing the Company’s accounting for employee benefits as of December 31,2014 are
as follows
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- Long-term rate of return an plan assers The required use ef the expected long -term mte of retum on plan assets may result in recognized retums that
are greater or less than the actual retums on those plan assets in any given year While the development of the long-term rate of return on assets gives
approptiate consideration to recent fund performance and histoncal retums, the assumption 15 designed to approxtmate a long-term prospective mte
The expected long-term rate of retum used to calculate net periodic pension cost 15 6 95% for U S plans and a weighted average of 4 18% for non-
US plans

. Duscount 1ate The discount rate reflects the effective yield on high quality fixed income secunties avaitable 1n the marketplace as of the
measurement date to settle pension and postemployment benefit obligations The weighted-average discount rates used to calculate net penodic
benefit cost for the 2014 and year<nd obhigations as of December 31, 2014 were as follows

Pension Benefits

Other
United States  Non-US§ Postemploy ment
) ) o . Plans Plans Benefits
Used to calculate net penod:c benefit cost 455% 3 49% 4 45’/{3}
Used tonc__a_l::ul_:ﬁe_b_eneﬁt_obll-gat;ans" - “_ o —_ ) 3.8~5_%£ i ; i i_'i_i% ) __—_ __3 84;/;_}
. Health care cost nend For postemployment health care plan accounting, the Company reviews external data and Company specific histortcal

trends for health care costs to determine the health care cost trend rate The assumed health care cost trend rate used to measure next years
postemployment health care benefits 1s 7 25% for health care and 7 25% for drug cost both declining to an ultimate trend rate of 5 00% 1n 2022

The following table (llustrates the sensitivity to a change in certain assumptions for projected benefit obligations (“PBO™), associated cxpense and other
comprehensive loss (“*OXCL™) The changes in these assumptions have no impact on the Company's funding requirements

Penslon Benefits

Other Pestemployment

United States Plans Non-US Plans Bencefits

Change Change Change

m 3015 Change in Change m Change m Change Change

Pension im Accumulated 2015 Pension in Accumulated n 2015 in

Expense PRO OCL Expense FBO OCL Expense PBO

{Mallions of Dollars)

25 basis point ("bp") decreasg 1n
discountvate .My 38 36 3 06§ L5 20 5 0 @200 8 00— 3 9
25 bp increase 10 discount rate i - (34) i o 34 o (1 B (20) 20 - (&)
25 bp decrease 1n retum on assets ]E
nte _ 2 P - — e — e —

25 bp increase 1n return on assets
rate 2) — — - — — — —

The assumed health care trend rate has a significant impact on the amounts reported for non-pension plans The following table 1llustrates the sensiivity to a
change in the assumed health care trend rate

Total Service and

Interest Cost APBO
{Miltions of Dollars)
100 bp mc_r_gas;m ﬁeaith;aré;qsl tre_nd_?atte‘ ___ ___‘i X - ) _‘_ o ____:—_ _; ____w_ $ m_ __:__ : 1 S;_____‘ ‘_—_ 32—_]
100 bp decrease in health carc cost trend rate $ m s (28)




Ervironmental Matters

The Company 1s a defendant 1n lawsuuts filed, or the recipient of administrative orders 1ssued or demand letters received, in various junisdictions pursuant to
the Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (" CERCLA ) or other ssmilar national, provincial or state
environmental remedial laws These laws provide that responsible parties may be Liable to pay for remediating contamination resulting from hazardous
substances that were discharged into the environment by them by pnor owners or occupants of property they currently own or operate or by others to whom
they sent such substances for treatment or other disposition at third party locations The Company has been notified by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency, other national environmental agencies, and vanous provincial and state agencies that 1t may be a potentially responsible party (' PRP’)
under such laws for the cost of remediating hazardous substances pursuant to CERCLA and other national and state or provincial environmental laws PRP
designation typically requires the funding of site investigations and subscquent remedial activitics

Many of the sites thay are likely to be the costhest to remediate are often cumrent or former commercial waste disposal facilities to which numerous companies
sent wastes Despite the potential joint and several labihity which might be imposed on the Company under CERCLA and some of the other laws pertaining
to these sites the Company’s share of the total waste sent to these sites has generally been small Therefore, the Company believes its exposure for Liability at
these sites 1s hirmted

The Company has also 1dentified certain other present and former properties at which 1t may be responsible for cleaming up or addressing environmental
contamination, in some cases as 4 result of contractual commutments and/or federal or state envitonmental laws The Company 1s acuvely seeking to resolve
these actual and potennal statutory, regulatory and contractual obhigations Although difficult to quanufy based on the complexity of the issues, the
Company has accrued amounts comesponding to its best estimate ot the costs associated with such regulatory and contractual obligations on the basis of
availablc information from sitc investigations and best professional judgment of consultants

Recorded environmental liabilities were $15 mulhion and 814 mullion at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively These accruals are based upon
management s best estimates, which requires management to make assumptions regarding the costs for remediation activities, the extent to which costs may
be bome by other Liable parties, the financial viability of such parties, the time peniods over which remediation activities will be completed, and other factors
Although management belicves its accruals will be adequate to cover the Company’s estimated hiability for its exposure in respect to such environmental
matters, any changes in the underlying assumptions could matenally impact the Company's future results of operations and financial condition At
December 31, 2014, management estimates that reasonably possible matenal additional losses above and beyond management's best estimate of required
remediation costs as recorded approximate $40 mullion

4sset Retirement Obligations

The Company records assct retirement obligations (“ARO™) 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 410 Asset Renrement and Envi onmental Qbliganons The
Company's pnmary ARO actuivities relate to the removal of hazardous building matenals at its facilines The Company records an ARQ at fair value upon
imtial recognition when the amount can be reasonably estimated, typically upon the expectation that an operating site may be closed or sold The Company
has tdentified sites with contractual obligations and several sites that are closed or expected to be closed and sold In connection with these sites, the
Company has accrucd $24 million and $26 mllion as ot December 31, 2004 and 2013, respectively, for ARO, primanly related to anticipated costs of
removing hazardous building matenals, and has considered impairment 1ssues that may result from caputalization of an ARO

In determinming whether the fair value of ARO can reasonably be estimated, the Company must determine 1f the obligation can be assessed 1n relation to the
acquisition price of the related asset or if an active market exisis to (ransfer the obligation If the obligation cannot be assessed 1n connection with an
acquisition price and 1f no market exists for the transfer of the obligation, the Company must determine 1f 1t has sufficient intormation upon which to estimate
the obligation using expected present value techmques This deterrunation requures the Company to estimate the range of settlement dates and the potential
methods of settlement, and then to assign the probabilities to the vanous potential settlement dates and methods

I'he Company has conditional asset rettrement obhigations { CARO™), pnmanly related to removal costs of hazardous matenals in buildings, for which 1t
believes reasonable cost estimates cannot be made at this ttme because the Company does not believe it has a reasonable basis to assign probabilities to a
range ot potential settlement dates for these retirement obligations Accordingly, the Company 1s cumrently unable to determuine amounts to accruc tor CARO
at such sites If new information were to become available whereby the Company could make reasonable probability assessments for these CARQ, the amount
accrued for ARO could change signtficantly, which could matenally impact the Company's statement of operations and/or financial position Settlements of
ARO 1n the near-future at amounts other than the Company’s best estumates as of December 31 2014 also could matenally impact the Company’s future
results of operations and financial condition
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Long-Lived Assel Impanrment Testing

As a result of fresh-start reporting, long-lived assets such as property, plant and equipment ( PP&E™} have been stated at estimated replacement cost as of
December 31, 2007, unless the expected future use of the assets indicated a lower value was appropriate Long-lived assets such as definite-lived intangible
assets have been stated at fair value as of December 31,2007 Depreciation and amortizatien 1s computed principally by the straight-line method for financial
reporting purposes and by accelerated methods for income tax purpeses Long-lived assets are peniodically reviewed for impaimment indicators If impairment
indicators exist, the Company performs the required analysis and records an impairment charge, as required, in accordance with the subsequent measurement
provisions of FASB ASC lopic 360, Property, Plant & Equipment The Company recognized PP&E impairments of $19 million, $8 milhion and $43 mllion
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively The 2012 property, plant and equpment impairment excludes $7 million related to
discontinued operations Discontinued operations are further discussed in Note 6, Discontinued Operations, to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
included in Ttem 8 of thas report

Goodwill Inpairment Testing

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350, Imtangrbles — Goodwill and Other, goodwill, and any other intang:ble asset having an indefinite useful hife, must
be reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently 1f events and circumstances anse that suggest the asset may be impaired The Company conducts its
review for goodwill impairments on October | of each year Goodwill impairment testing 1s performed at the reporting unit level The fair value of each
reporting unit 1s determined and compared to the camrying value If the carrying value exceeds the fair value, then possible goedwill impairment may exist
and further evaluation 1s required Indefinite-hved intangible assets are tested for impairment by companng the fair value to the camrying value If the
camying value exceeds the fair vaiue, the asset 1s adjusted to fair value

In contemplation of 1ts annuat impairment analysis, the Company noted impairment indicators existed 1n one reporting unit within the Motorparts segment
including lower than cxpected profits and cash flows resulting from decrcases 1n volumes and pncing pressure from customers  As a result of these
impairment indicators, the Company concluded that there was also a potential impairment of its long-lived assets and definite-lived intangible assets These
impairment tests were performed before the goodwill impairment test, and an impaiment loss related to long-lived assets of 37 nullion was recognized pnior
to goodwill being tested for impaimment The Company then tested goodwll for impaimment and determuned the camying value of one reporting unit, within
the Motorparts segment, exceeded its tarr value  Accordingly, as part of a second step of the goodwill impaiment test, the Company made a prehnunary
conclusion that the carmying amount of the reporting units’ goodwill exceeded the implied fair value of that goodwall and an tmpaiment loss of $120 mullion
was recogmzed for the year ended December 31,2014 Due to the complexity of the second step of the goodwill imparrment test, the Company expects to
finalize 1ts assessment of the of goodwill impairment dunng the first quarter of 2015 Any resulung difference in the amount of the impaimment will be
adjusted at that time

The Company has ninc reporting units that have goodwill The following table categonzes the Company’s goodwill by reporting unit as of October 1, 2014
according to the level of excess between the reporting unit’s fair value and carying value giving effect to the 2014 impairment charges

Fair Value
Exceeds
Carrymng Value Goodwill
{Mltions of Dollars)
Reporting Units 1.4 ) o >15% 8 o ISI]
Reporting Umits 5 -9 >30% 570
$ 701 |

In order to ahign with its regional focus as of December 31 2014, the Motorparts segment moved from a product-centered reporting structuse to a regional
reporting structure The analysis above, reflects the regional repering umits of the Motorparts segment

Other Indefinite-Lived tangible Assets Impairment Testing

The Company performs 1ts annual trademarks and brand names imparrment analysis as of October I, or more frequently 1f impairment indicators exist, 1n
accordance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic 350 Intangrbles — Goodwill and Other This impairment analysis compares the
fair values of these assets to the related carrying values, and impairment charges are recorded for any excess of carrying values over fair values These farr
valucs arc based upon the prospective stream of hypothetical after-tax royalty cost savings discounted at rates that reflect the rates of retum appropnate for
these intangible assets
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All of the Company’s trademarks and brand names are associated with 1ts aftermarket sales and are further broken down by product line The prnimary, and
most sensitive, input utthzed in determining the fair values of trademarks and brand names 1s aftermarket sales by product line The Company pertormed a
sensitivity analysis en 1ts trademarks and brand names and determined that a one percentage point decrease 1n 1ts projected future sales growth rates within
each aftermarket product line would result in a $2 mullion impatrment

Results of Impasrment Testing Described Above
The Company recorded total impairment charges for the years ended December 31,2014,2013 and 2012 as follows

Year koded December 31

2014 2013 1012
{Miltions of Dollars)
Goodwi —~ T T T T s o Twes T — 8 T 96]
Propcrty.plamandcqmpmenlv ’ o N T 8 43
Ott_lcymdcﬁ;ﬁtc-l‘ncdult_;nglb}‘caszéts_ ) i-;: -___ :,.-__—fyh ; w;_-“" f i B _—Mj-_—__ﬁ_é]
In\_'estmcmsn} non-«.:onsohda_led a_ﬂ'llt_at_es . o 5 — 2
i s 144§ g § 187 |

Impairments of goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets are discussed further in Note 8, Faswr Value Measurements and Note 11, Goodwill and
Other ntangible Avsers

The 2012 property, plant and equipment impatment exciudes $7 million related to discontinued operations Discontinued operations are further discussed in
Note 6, Discontinued Operations

The Company’s adjustment of asscts to fair value s further discussed 1in Note 3, Adjustment of Assets ro Fatr Value to the Consoltdated Financial Statements,
included in [tem 8 of this report

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation (“FASB ASC 718™),
which requires companies to expense the fair value of employee stock options and other forms of stock-based compensation Estimating fair value for shared-
based payments in accordance with FASB ASC 718 requires management to make assumptions regarding expected volatility of the underlying shares, the
nsk-free rate over the life of the share-based payment, and the date on which share-based payments will be settled Any differences in actual results from
management’s estimates could result in tawr values different from estimated fair values, which could matenally impact the Company’s future results of
operations and financial condition Additional financial information related to the Company s sharc-based pay ments 15 presented in Note 21, Srock-Bused
Compensation to the Conselidated Financial Statements 1ncluded 1n [tem 8 of this report

Income Taxes

The Company accounlts for income taxes 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 7490, Income Taves ( FASB ASC 740™) The determnation of the Company's
tax provision 1s complex due to operations 1n many tax junsdictions outside the United States Deferred tax assets and liabihities are recogmized for the future
tax consequences attnbutable to differences between financial statement camrying amounts of existing assets and lrabilities and their respective tax bases and
operating loss and other tax loss and credit camyforwards The realizauon of deferred 1ax assets 1s dependent upon the Company’s ability 1o generate future
taxable income [he Company records a valuation allowance to offset 1ts deferred tax assets to the amount that 1t believes 15 more likely than not 1w be
realized Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to laxable income 1n the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled The Company records a valuation allowance that pnmanly represents operating and other loss
carry forwards for which utihization 1s uncertain Management judgment s required 1n determining the Company’s provision for income taxes, deferred tax
assets and habilities and the valuation allowance recorded against the Company’s net deferred tax assets
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The Company did not record taxes on 1ts undistnbuted earmmings of 3902 million at December 31, 2014 since these eamings are considered by the Company
to be permanently reinvested If at seme future date, these eamings cease to be permanently reinvested, the Company may be subject to United Stales income
taxes and foreign withholding taxes on such amounts Determuning the unrecognized deferred tax Liability on the potential distnbution of these earnings 1s
not practicable as such hiability, 1f any, 1s dependent on circumstances existing when remittance occurs

At December 31, 2014 the Company had deferred tax assets of $230 mullion net of a valuation allowance ot $1.314 million, and deferred tax habihtes of
$494 million At December 31, 2013, the Cotnpany had deferred tax assets of $236 million, net of a valuation allowance of $1,151 million and deferred tax
liabilities 0f $492 million

The Company 15 subject to income taxes 1n the US at the federal and state level and numerous non-U S jumnsdictions Significant judgment 18 required 1n
determining the Company’s worldwide provision for income taxes and recording the related assets and liabihities In the ordinary course of business there are
many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax determination 1s less than certain Accruals for 1ncome tax contingencies are provided for in
accordance with the requirements of FASB ASC 740 The Company’s U S federal and certain state income tax retums and certain non-U S income tax returns
are cumently under vanous stages of audit by applicable tax authonties Although the outcome of ongotng tax audits 15 always uncertain, management
beheves that it has appropnate support for the pesihions taken on 1ts tax retums and that its annual tax provisions include amounts sufficient to pay
assessments, 1f any, which may be proposed by the taxing authonties At December 31,2014, the Company has recorded a hability for its best estimate of the
more likely than not loss on certamn of its tax positions, whtch is included 1n other non-current Liabilities Noenetheless, the amounts ultimately paid. 1f any,
upen resolution of the 1ssues raised by the taxing authonties may differ matenally from the amounts accrued for each year

On July 11, 2013, the Company became part of an affiliated group of corporations as defined in Section 1504 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 ("the
Code"), as amended, of which Amencan Entertainment Properties Corp {(*AEP"), a whelly owned subsidiary of Icahn Enterpnses, 1s the common parent The
Company subscquently cntered into a tax allocation agreement (the “Tax Allocation Agreement”) with AEP Pursuant to the Tax Allocation Agreement, AEP
and the Company have agreed to the allocation of certain income tax rtems The Company will join AEP 1n the filing of AEP’s federal consohidated retum
and certain state consolidated retums In those junsdictions where the Company 1s filing consohidated returns with AEP, the Company will pay to AEP any
tax 1t would have ewed had it continued to file separately To the extent that the AEP consolidated group s able to reduce 1ts tax hability as a result of
including the Company 1n 1ts consohdated group, AEP wtll pay the Company an amount equal to 20% of such reduction and the Company will carmyforward
for its own use under the Tax Allocation Agreement 830% of the items that caused the tax reduction {the "Excess Tax Benehts”) While a member of the AEP
affihated group the Company will reduce the amounis 1t would otherwise owe AEP by the Excess Tax Benefits Moreover, 1f the Company should ever
become deconsolidated from AEP, AEP will reimburse the Company for any lax liability 1n post-deconsolidation years the Company would not have paid
had 1t actually had the Excess Tax Benefits for its own use The cumulative payments to the Company by AEP post-deconsolidation cannot exceed the
cumulative reductions in tax to the AEP group resulting from 1ts use of the Excess Tax Benefits Separate return methodology will be used in determuning
mcome taxes
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of the Company s results of operations should be read 1n connection with ltems 1, 3 and 7A of this Form 10-K, as well as  Forward-
Looking Statements™ and Item | A “Risk Factors " These items provide additional relevant information regarding the business of the Company, its strategy,
and the vanous industry dynamics 1n the OE market and the atermarket which have a direct and significant impact on the Company’s results of operations as
well as the nisks assoctated with the Company s business

Consolidated Results

Net sales
Year Ended December 11
2014 2013 2012
(Vhillions of Dollars)
Poweman T T e T Taaae 8 417308 3926
Motorparts 3,192 2915 2,853
Intersegment ehmmations 7 " gosy ey g3y
Total 8 7317 § 6786 3§ 6,444
Net sales by group and region
Powertrain Motorparts Total

R et e

North Amenca 34% 55% 43%

EMEA _ SO S .. S

Rest ot World [8% 6% 13%
P T e s s e o oo e s - ey

e — - A U Y U U |

2013

‘Notth Amenca - D 7‘57%7 -13%]

EMEA e “49;2:m e WBT—% T 44%

RestofWorld __~ _____ ____U%_ & 3%

o2

North Amenca 2% 61% 45%

BMEA o se% w49

Rest of World 18% 7% 13%

Cost of products sold

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2082
(Mibons of Dollars)
Powerwrw 8 GRS 0656 S 0470)
Motorparts (2.668) (2.432) (2,390)
Inter-segment ehmnations . - e T
Total Reporting Segment (6 260) {3,766) (5.525)
Comporate T — e 6)!
Total Company $ (6,260) $ (5,766) $ {5,531
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Gross profit by reporting segment

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Mullions of Dollars) _
Powewam s T swo§ 0 S175 7 Tas6)
Motorparts S 524 503 463
. T_(-:Ital_i{eportlfg-—s‘cgmem i i i i o ) ' : o ) 1,057 1020 919 J
Corporate _ — (6)
J‘ot-al Company ) o s 1057 § 1,020 3 913 |

Consolidated Results - 2014 versus 2013

Consohdated net sales increased by $331 milhon, or 8%, 10 7,317 mullien for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $6,786 million for the year ended
December 31,2013 Excluding the impact of unfavorable foreign currency of $51 mullion, sales increased by $582 million or 9% on a constant dollar basis
This increase 15 dnven by sales growth i the Powertrain division ¢f $301 mullien or 8% and an increase 1n sales 1n the Motorparts division ot $28 1 million or
10%, dniven by the Affinia chassis and the Honeywell brake component business acquisitions

The sales growth of the Company's Powertrain segment of $3¢1 mullion 1s dnven by an increase 1n Powertrain's volumes of $330 mullion, partially offset by
customer pnce reductions of $29 mullion This increase comes from higher sales volumes and market share gains across all regions In Europe, Powertrain
sales increased by 6% or $108 million compared to an increase 1n European hight vehicle production of 4% and a decrease 1n commercial vehicle production
of 9% In North Amenca, Powertrain sales increased by 9% or $117 million compared to an increase n both light vehicle and commercial vehicle production
of 5% and 12% respectively In ROW, as Powertrain's presence 1n the emerging light vehicle market continued to grow, Powertrain sales increased by $76
million or | 2%, compared to an increase 1n light vehicle production of 1% and a decline 1n commerciat vehicle production of 2% When taking 1nto account
Powertrain's regional and market mix, 1ts sales therefore grew 1n excess of underlying market demand

Net sales in the Motorparts division increased by $281 mullion or 10% as a result of the Affimsa chassis and the Honeywell brake component acquisitions
Fhis increase was partially offset by a decrease in sales in Notth Amenica of 2% pnmanly duee to the exit of certain unprefitable business In Europe,
Motorparts base sales decreased by 3% largely dnven by Eastern European sales decline Sales in the ROW increased by 4% dniven by stronger aftermarket
demand in the China and India

Cost of products sold increased by $494 millien to $6,260 nullion for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $5,766 million for the year ended
December 31,2013 Including acguisitions, the increase in matenals, [abor and ovetheads as a direct resubt of the increase 1n extemal and inter-segment sales
volumes was $507 million The impact from Motorparts strategic imitiatives and project costs and unfavorable productivity of $38 million as well as the
increase i depreciation of $26 million were partially offset by savings in matenal costs of $34 mitllion and foreign currency of $43 mutlion

Gross profit increased by $37 mulhien to $1,057 mullion, or 14 4% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $1,020 mullion, or 15 0% of
sales, for 1the year ended December 31, 2013 The favorable impact on gross profit due to sales volumes/mix was $107 mullion, including acquisitions
Favorable matenals and services sourcing savings of $34 million were offset by unfavorable customer pneing of$30 muilion, project costs and costs related
to Motorparts strategic imtiatives of $27 mallion, increased depreciation of $26 muilion, and unfavorable productivity of$11 mullion

Conschdated Results - 2013 versus 2012

Consolidated net sales increased by $342 mullion, or 5%, to $6 786 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 from $6 444 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012 with a favomable foreign cumency impact of $24 muillion Excluding sales directly related to the acquisition ol the spark plug business
from BorgWamcr, Inc ("BWA") of 343 nulhion and sales from the Europcan distnbution agreement for ignition products of $112 million, sales organically
increased by $163 mullion, which 1s net of $19 muihon from customer price decreases This organic growth 1s compnsed of Powertrain increases of $202
millien partially offset by Motorpans decreases of $39 million
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Given Powertrain’s weighted market presence in the Light vehicle, commercial vehicle and industnal markets and the year-over-year changes in production
rates for those markets. the expected Powertrain sales change would be negligible compared to the prior year However, Powertrain sales increased by 5%.
excluding the impact on sales from the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA - reflecting growth 1n excess of the underlying market This was
dnven by an increase 1n sales in North Amenca of 10%, an increase in sales in ROW of 12% and an increase 1n sales in Europe of 1%

In the Motorparts segment, extemal sales volumes decreased by $39 milhion excluding the impact of sales from the European distnbution agreement for
ignstion producis of $1 12 million This was mainly attnbutable to the decrease in sales 1n North Amenca of 3% Thas reflects the ex1t of selected non-strategic
business contracts as well as a softening n the export business, mainly into Venezuela as a result of a tightening in exchange rate control 1n the country
However, thus was partly offset by an 1increase in sales 1n Motorparts Europe ot 4% resulting from aftermarket volume gains and improved market conditions

Cost of products sold increased by $235 million to 85,766 milhon for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared 10 35,531 mullion for the year ended
December 31, 2012 The increase 1n matenals, labor and overheads as a direct result of the increase in external and inter-segment sales velumes was $249
nullion along with an increase of $33 mllion directly related to the acquisition of the spark plug business trom BWA Matenals and sourcing savings of $71
mullion and favorable productivity of 32 million were partly otfsct by currency movements of $20 mullion

Gross profit increased by $107 mullion to $1,020 million, or 15 0% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $913 mullion, or 14 2% of
sales, for the year ended December 31, 2012, dnven mainly by matenals and services sourcing savings of $71 mullion As well, the product mix issues
expentenced in the first halt of the year due 1o commercial vehicle production declining to a greater extent than hight vehicle production has stabilized
Therefore, the 1mpact on gross profit due to volume ncreases was an increase of $57 mullion Other factors conmbuting to the increased profit were $10
million from the acquisitton of the spark plug business from BWA, reduced pension expense of $6 nullion, $4 milhion of cumrency movements, and favorable
productivity 0f $2 miihon lhese increases were partially offset by unfavorable customer pricing of $19 million, $12 million of increased depreciabon, and
unabsorbed fixed costs on inter-segment sales volumes of$12 milhion
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Reporting Segment Results 2014 versus 2013

The following table provides a reconciliation of changes 1n net sales, cost of products sold, gross profit and operational EBITDA for the year ended
December 31, 2014 compared with the year ended December 31, 2013 for each of the Company’s reporting segments Operational EBITDA 15 defined as
eamings from continuing operations before interest income taxes, depreciation and amortization, and certain items such as restructunng and 1mpairment
charges, Chapter 11 and U K. Admnistration related reorganization expenses, gains or losses on the sales of businesses, the non-service cost components of
the US based funded pension plan, OPEB curtailment gains or losses, the income statement 1mpacts associated with stock appreciation nghts, loss on
extinguishment ot debt and costs associated with acquisitrons, legal separation and headquarters relocation

Total
Inter-segment Reporting
Powertramn Motorparts Elmination Segment Corporate Total
(Millions of Dollars)
@dsales” 8 4173 S 2938 5 @22) s_6786 s — 56786
Extemal sales volumes 330 282 — 612 R 612
Intersegmentsalesvolomes o 0n = v =T T e T T
Customer pricing (29) (1) —_ (3o - (E10)]
Fogaowwency T Ten ey = TTéh = e
2014 Sales b3 4,430 § 3192 § (305 § 7317 § — 5 7317
T S sy s mrm T et T T T e
Inter-segment Reporting
Powertrain Motorparts Ehmmation Segment Corporate Total
2013 Costof ProductsSold " "TS  (3,656) S @A32) S 322§ (5766 § _ — 8 (5,66)]
Extemal sales volumes / mix @52) (253) — (505) T (509
Intersegment salesvolumes """ 0 T T T s T -0 Tan T T e = e
Productivity, net of inflation 4) {7} — (11} _ (1)
Projectcosts/ strategic mitiatives ___an g — _ Ten 7 :“:“:M o eni
Matcnals and services sourcing 11 23 — 34 T 34
Depecaton TG ey = e =T @)
Foreign cun'ency L 22 21 — 43 — 43
iﬂld Costo 0“:53‘1‘,‘02 §oil!"m e 5 3.897) § (2,668) $ 305 § (6260) $ — § (6260)]
Total
Inter-segment Reporting
Powertrain Motorparts Ebnmunation Segment Corporate Total
2013 Gross Profit $ 517§ 503 S — § 1,020 § — § 1,020
F:xlernal sales volumes / mix 78 29 — 107 107
Intersegmentsalesvolumes T — - . R mm’”“}
Unabsorbed fixed costs on mter-segment sales 2} — — (2) — 2)
Customerpncing Y ON — (30) — o)
Pmducuvny, net of infiation ) )] —_ a1 — (1)
Pro_}ect costs/snateg:c ntratives an (10) -n__“_ — 27 s (27)1
Matenals and services sourcing 11 23 —_ 34 — 34
Depreciaion - 6y (10 — ) - (26)]
Foreign currency (3) 3) — (8) — (8)
2014 Gross Profit_ s 533 s 524§ — 5 1087 s — 8 1057 |




Total

Inter-segment Reporting

L i o o Powertrain Motorparts Elimination Scgment Cerporate Total
2013 Operational EBITDA ) ] 378§ 213 % — 8 591 5 — 8 591 J
Extemnal sales volumes / mix ) - i 82 o 12 - 94 =T 94
Unabsod:led ﬁxcd costs on mlcr—scgment sales T - (2) T — i .: —_ B (2) ’ - (2)]
Customer pricing ’ T B (22)) i (_I) ) T (30) o _ -{305
Productvity, netofmflagon = ® = e = )
Pro_;ect costs/ strategic |mt|an;res - ) T (l8) 232) T — (50) — {50)
Sourcing,costofproductssold 1~ T T T e T T T g
Sourcmg, SG&A — 2 —_ ) 2 - 2
Cquity cammgs:)t:non-consollda;e‘t:lAaﬂifla;cs‘ : ) o _-A 7__— m ) l“(}::ﬁ_ i k;jwi 2 : T ____J _—:» m: i i 12 ; i A_ i j—é_ 12}
Foreign currency (3) 7 — (10) — (10)
Other T = o - e = )]
2014 Operatlonal EB[TDA s 429 3 195 S — 3 624 S — 3 624
‘Depreciation and amothzation T T (_33:;)}
Adjuslmentgui‘a;séts}é fx;lrvalue——— T e s s o (1A44')
Ioterestexpense,net . o o)
Restructuring expense net (86)
Lossondebtextwgushment . __.__ _  _ ____ . _.___ .. ._ ey
Acquisition related costs. (ts)
Legalsepartioncosts G0
Hendquar‘ters relocatmw;l mco%ts B i T (6)
Non-service costc componems ts associated with U'S based T T oo 1.
funded pension plans .
Stock appreciation nghts 4
Income tax exl;ensc i R o _“ B 7: ) _7:7 -_ 7 : :_7 :‘_A“___::_ . :_r: 7,;" ‘$ 7__:_;_“_ -_;_ T (51)}
Other S _ . 1
Netincome . s qaen)

iy e e e e e e o e = . e e - e e RN, sotwlot

Powertrain

Sales mcreased by $257 mullion to 34,430 mullton for the year ended December 31, 2014 from 34,173 million for the year ended December 31, 2013
Excluding unfavomble foreign cumency impact of $27 mithon external sales volumes ncreased by $301 mullion, including the impact of customer pnce
reductions of $29 mullion This increase 1s dnven by higher sales volumes and market share gains across all regrons In Europe, Powertrain sales increased by
6% or $108 million compared to an increase 1n European light vehicle production of 4% and a decrease 1n commercial vehicle production of 9% In North
America, Powertrain sales increased by 9% or $117 mullion compared to an icrease in both hight vehicle and commercial vehicle productton of §% and 12%
respectively In ROW, as Powertrain's presence in the emerging hight vehicle market continued to grow, Powertrmin sales increased by $76 mullion or 12%,
compared to an increase in light vehicle production of 1% and a decline 1n commercial vehicle production of 2% When taking into account Powertrain's
regional and market mix, its sales therefore grew 1n excess of underlying market demand

Cost of products sold increased by $241 million 1o $3,897 mullien for the year ended December 31 2014 compared to $3,656 milhion for the year ended
December 31, 2013 The increase i matenals, labor and overhead as a direct result of external and inter-segment sales volumes/rmix was $237 million The
increase from project costs of $17 million, increased depreciation of $16 mitlien, and unfaverable productivity of $4 million, were partially offset by foreign
cumency umnpacts of $22 mullion and savings ih matenals and services sourcing costs of $11 million
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Gross profit increased by 516 mullion to $533 muthon, or 12% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $517 millon, or 12 4% of sales,
for the year ended December 31, 2013 Gross profit increased by $78 muillion due to the increase in external sales volumes/mix representing a conversion of
24% on the imcremental sales However, this was partly offset by unfavorable cusiomer pneing of $29 mullion and increased depreciation of $16 miltion In
addition gross profit was further impacted by project cost spending of $17 muilhon related to 1 continued expansien and improvement of Powertrain’s
manufactunng footpnat in order to meet customer dermand and improve the cost structure

Operational EBITDA increased by $51 mullion to $429 million or 9 7% of sales for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $378 million or 9 1% of sales for
the year ended December 31, 2013 The 1ncrease 1 Operational EBITDA was dnven by market share gains and volume increases across all regions which
improved Operational EBITDA by $82 mullion Additionally, Operational EBITDA increased from savings from matenals and services sourcing of $11
million and a $10 mullion 1ncreasc in camings from non-consolidated affiliates These increases were partially offset by unfavorable customer pricing ot $29
mithon and project costs of $18 mullion

Motorparts

Sales increased by 3257 mtllion, or 9%, to $3,192 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2014, from $2 935 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2013
Excluding unfavorable foreign currency impact of $24 mitlion, sales increased by $281 million or 10% driven by the Affinia chassis and the Honeywell
brake component business acquisittons This increase was partially offset by a decrease 1n sales 1n North Amenca of 2% pnmanly due to the exat of certain
unprofitable business In Europe, Motorparts base sales decreased by 3% largely dnven by Eastern European sales decline Sales in the ROW increased by 4%
dnven by stronger afiermarket demand 1n the China and India

Cost of products sold increased by 3236 mullion to $2,668 muillion for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $2,432 muillion for the year ended
December 31 2013 Including acquisitions, the increase in matenals, labor and overheads volumes was $253 milhion Cost of products sold further increased
due to increased deprecration of $10 nulhion, project costs of $10 million and $7 mullion of unfavorable productivity These increases were partially offset by
matenals and services sourcing savings of $23 million and currency movements of $21 mullion

Gross profit increased by $21 mullion to $524 million, or 16 4% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $503 mullion or 17 1% of sales,
forthe year ended December 31,2013 The increase in gross profit of $23 million includes the additional volume from the Affinia chassis and the Honeywell
brake component business acquisition Gross profit further increased by $23 million from matenals and services sourcing savings, but was offset by increased
depreciation of $10 melhion, project costs ot $1¢ mulhion and $7 nullion of unfavorable productivity Gross marg:n percentage was negatively impacied by
the nclusion of the Honeywell brake component business which 1s operating with a lower gross margin percentage than the Company’s existing business
{Honeywell was in the process of completing s restructunng and ramping up production at 1ts two new low-cost facilities 1n Romania and China when
acquired) Excluding the impact from the Honeywell brake component business acqusinon gross margin increased to 174% for the year ended
December 31,2014

Opcrational EBITDA decreased by 518 mullion to 3195 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $213 million for the year ended December 31,
2013 EBITDA for the year ended December 31, 2014 includes costs related to strategic imitiatives of $21 mullion and integration costs related to the Affima
chassis and the Honeywell brake component business acquisition of $14 million {n addition Operational EBITDA was negatively impacted by unfavorable
foreign currency, other reductions pnmanly related to weaker performance in the wiper business, offset by savings in matenials and sourced products for a net
impact of $9 million

Selling, General and Administrative Expense

Selling, generat and administrative expenses (* SG&A™) were $776 rmlhion, or 10 6% of net sales, for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to 5719
mullion, or 10 6% of net sales, for the year ended December 31,2013 This $57 mullion increase was prrmartly dnven by SG&A costs related 1o the Affinia
chassis and the Honeywell brake component business acquisiion of $36 mllion Additionally, the Company incumed duning the year $39 million of
acquisition and integrahion related costs pnmanly related to the Affima chassis and Honeywell brake acquisttions, as well as costs related to strategic
itiatives in Motorparts

The Company mamntatns technical centers throughout the world designed to integrate the Company's leading technologices into advanced products and
processes, to provide engineenng support for all of the Company’s manufactunng sites, and to previde technological expertise in engineenng and design
development providing selutions for customers and bnnging new, innovative products to market Included i SG&A were research and development
("R&D") costs, including product and validation costs, of $192 mitlion and $173 mullion for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respechively
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OPEB Curtailment Gain

Dunng the second quarter of 2013, the Company ceased operations at one of its U S manufacturing locations As this location participated in the Company’s
US Welfare Benefit Plan the plan was re-measured due to its curtatlment unplications The resulting reduction in the average remaining future service
pened 10 the full ehgibility date of the remaining active plan participants in the Company’s US Welfare Benefit Plan triggered the recognition of a $19
million OPEB curtailment gain, which was recognized in the consol:dated statements of operations durtng the second quarter of 2013 The calculation of the
curtatlment excluded the newly created pror service credit

Interest Expense, Net

Net interest expense was $120 mullion in the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $99 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 The increase 1s
primarily due to the increased interest rates after the refinancing of the Company's term loans in Apn! 2014

Other Expense, Net
Other expense, net was 311 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to 33 million for the year ended December 31, 2013

Foreign currency exchange The Company recognized 37 milhion n foreign currency exchange losses duning the year ended December 31, 2014, compared
to $10 mullion 1n foreign currency exchange losses dunng the year ended December 31, 2013
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Reporting Segment Results 2013 versus 2012

The followang table provides a reconciliation of changes in net sales, cost of products sold, gross profit and operational EBITDA for the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared with the year ended December 31, 2012 for each of the Company’s reporting segments Operational EBITDA 1s defined as
earnings from continuing operations before tnterest, income taxes depreciation and amortization, and certain items such as restructunng and 1mpairment
charges, Chapter 11 and UK Administration related recrganization expenses, gams or losses on the sales of businesses, the non-service cost components of
the US based funded pension plan, OPEB curtailment gains or losses, the income statement impacts associated with stock appreciation nghts loss on

cxtinguishment ot debt and costs associated with acquisitions, legal separation and headquarters relocation

Total
Inter-segment Reporting
Powertram Motorparts Elimination Segment Corporate TFotal
{Millions of Dollars)
2012 Sales o s 3926 S 2855 S (335) 5 6444 §  — 5 6444
Extemal sales volumes 209 85 — 294 — 294
Inter-segment sal;s volum;:s: o ’ W‘: ;i h “vm ) 51-9")— o —u _w —§ ) T 13—:__—_ - _- ‘_“ :—:'-__'_‘ -__ _—_-E
Customer pncing ) (12) — (19 — (19)
chms_ltto;ls ’ i o ’ ) ) n_ﬁ _1 a3 ) ) _:—-: N ; ) — o 43'_‘_“ - *__A_ ;5}
Foreign currency 21 3 — 24 — 24
2013 Sales - T s 4173 § 2935 § (322) § 6,786 S — $ 6,786 |
ot T oo T 5 T
Inter-segment Reparting
o ) o o S Powertrain Motorparts Elimination Segment Corporate Total i
2(12 Cost of Products Sold ) (3470) % {2.390) S 335 § (5,515) % 6y $ (5,531)
Extemal sales volumes/mx ey @ —  @n_ — @3]
Inter-segment sales volumes i 7 . ) Eﬁi o (13) ’ {12) 7 — ) (12)
Productivity _npt of inflation A o a - _ _i 7 L V {1 _” 3 j _u L:-:-;_A u_ ) “27‘ o m;m .7 Ait2j
Matcnals andvscrwccs sourcing 41 30 I 7l — T 71
Pension T Y SR
Depreciation T ﬁ - [(B) (1) -— (12—)— ) - (IZ)
Acquisitions Y < ) T EE ) Y €
Foreign curency (249) 4 —_ 20 — 20)
2013 Cost c_if Products Sold_ B o $ (3.656) 3 (2432) S 322 8§ (5,766) § — 5 (5,766)|
Total
Inter-segment Reporting
Powertrain Moterparts Elmnation Segment Corporate Total
2012 GrossProt ~_§ 45 $ 463 §  — s 919 § © S5 9131
Extemnal sales volumes / mix - ’ 44 h 13 i — 57 — 57
ln]er-s—egl:nent sales vo!gm_es o ’ o o i T :7 T i i :_ - _7 - . ) —M w“:__ — - . i —-—]
Unabserbed fixed costs on inter-segment sales } (12) — — (12) — {12)
Custc_n:ncrpncmg _ ) ’ (7)-_”' "(12)- LT T _(19)' T __h_“. ) B 6935
Productivity net ofinflation {1 3 — 2 —_ 2
Materials and services sourcing ) ’ a1 30 —__ o~ 7 _ o _ o n?_I]
Pension — — —_ —_ [ 6
Depreciation L - an oy - uz — (12))
Acqulsttlonis 10 — — T B o
Foreign cumrency ) (3)— 7 o —_ ) 4 I 4"!
2013 Gross Profit S 517§ 503 0§ —_  § 1,020 s — 8§ 1,020
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Total

inter-segment Reporting
Powertrain Motorparts Elimmnation Scgment Corporate Total

2012 Operatnonal EBITDA s 189 $ 00§  — S 489 8 — 5 489 |
Exlemul sales volumes [ mix T u ’ —46 T (&3] — 41 — 41
Unabsogéd ﬁxcd costs on mt;r-segment sales _ __(li)w . :M T t——" - mmw;-:-:": _VM Mry Wt :WM:N:E m: L (IZE
Customerpncmg ) T {7) ) w(1?. - — m(19) — {19)
Productivity - Costofproducts sold @y T T T 3
Productivity — SG&A 4 (36) — 32) — (32)
Productivity — Other o [ ¥ U TS e
Sourcing — Cost ofprmv!ucts sold “ Tai 30 — mn — 71
Sewemg-SG&A . _ 2 3~ 5 — 5]
Sourcing — Other - 2) — e {2) — - 2)
Bquity camings of nonconsohdated affhates 3 @ — @ T — T @
Foreign currency 2 5 — T — 7
Oher ... . __ 2 % o= w -~ 8
2013 Operahonal EB[TDA $ 378 § 213 0§ — S 59t § — 3 591
De;;;euéfatlo;éiciv ;nigr?lzatlon L . _ m(2 ;23]
lﬁte:—rt:-s;:xpense net - T T e e e (99}"
Drscontinued opcratlons o B o :; T T :___:_ww e "M:W W; W; T___;: __: _____”__w QSZB
Restructurmg expense, net ) (46)
Adjustment of assets to furvalee & -~ mmommo e T T @)
OPEB curtatlment gain o 19
Non-service cost compc;;;nmt; assaciated with the US o e e e e e
based funded pension plan et e e e e e e e e e mn e ot 2 e 0 o @)
Acquisition related costs (5)
e R L - Y
lncome tax beneﬁt - (56)
Netloss e e e T
Powertrain

Sales increased by $247 mitlion to $4,173 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2013 from $3.926 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2012, of
which $43 million of this increase resulted from the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA External sales volumes increased by $202 mellion net
of customer price decreases of $7 million This was doven by an increase in sales 1n North Amenica ot 10% or $117 nullion, an increase in sales in ROW of
12% or $73 million and an increase 1n sales 1n Europe of 1% or $12 nmlhion Given PT's weighted market presence in the light vehicle, commercial vehicle
and industnal markets and the year over year changes in production rates for those markets, the expected PT sales change would be neglhigible compared to
the pnior year However, PT sales increased by 5%, excluding the impact on sales from the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA - reflecting

growth 1n cxcess of the uaderlying market The Powertrain scgment gencrated approximately 70% of 1ts revenue outside the United States and the resulting
currency movements increased reported sales by 321 milhien

Cost of products sold increased by $186 million to $3,656 miihon for the year ended December 31,2013 compared to $3,470 mullion for the year ended
December 31, 2012 The increase 1n matenals, labor and overheads as a direct result of the increase 1n external and inter-segment sales volumes/mix was 5158
millien along with an mcrease of $33 million directly related to the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA and matenals and sourcing savings of
$41 mullion These increases were partially offset by currency movements of $24 mullion, increased deprectation of $11 muilion and unfavorable productivaty
of $1 rmllion
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Gross profit increased by $61 mullion to $517 nullien. or 12 4% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $456 million, or 11 6% of sales,
for the year ended December 31, 2012 This increase consists of a net favorable sales volumes and regional mux impact of $44 million, matenals and services
sourcing savings of 341 million and a $10 mullion increase 1n gross profit directly related to the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA partially
offset by unabsorbed fixed costs on inter-segment sales volumes of $12 million, increased depreciation of $11 million, $7 million of unfavomable customer
pncing. currency movements ot $3 million and unfavorable productivity of $1 milhion

Operational EBITDA increased by $89 muihion to $378 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 from $289 million for the year ended December 31,
2012 This increase was caused by net favorable external sales volume and mix of$46 mullion, matenals and services sourcing savings of $41 muillion,
favorable productivity of $14 mullion, an increase in equity eamings of non-conschdated affiliates of $3 mullion, currency movements of $2 mullion and
other icreases of $2 mullion partially offset by unabsorbed fixed costs on inter-segment sales volumes of $12 rullion and unfavorable customer pnicing of
$7 mullion

Mororparts

Sales increased by $82 million to $2 935 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, from $2,853 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2012,
including $112 million from the European distnbution agreement for ignition products The organic extemal sales volumes change was therefore a decrease
of $39 million including the impact of customer pnce decreases of $12 mulhon This was driven by a decltne 1n North Amenca of $51 million or3% This
reflects the cessation of selected non-strategic business contracts as well as a softening in the export business, mainly into Venezuela as a result of a
tightening 1n exchange rate control m the country Sales in ROW decreased by $21 million or 11% However, this was offset by an increase 1n sales in Europe
of $33 million or 4%, excluding the impact on sales from the European distribution agreement for igniion products, due to strong aftermarket volume gains
as market conditions 1n this region continued to improve

Cost of products sold increased by $42 mullion to $2,432 muthon tor the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $2,390 mulhon for the year ended
December 31, 2012 Thas increase was due to $72 million directly associated with external sales volumes/mux, parhially offsct by favorable matenals and
servtces sourcing savings of $30 million, currency movements of $4 million, and efficiencies of $3 mullion

Gross profit increased by $40 mtllion to $503 million, or 17 1% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $463 million or 16 2% of sales,
for the year ended December 31,2012 This 1s the result of matenals and services sourcing savings of $30 mullion, favorable extemal sales volume/mix of $13
mullion, currency movements of $7 nullion and favorable productivity of $3 nullien, partially offset by unfavorable customer pncing of $12 million and
wnereased depreciatton of $1 million

Operational EBITDA increased by $13 mullion to $213 mulhion for the year ended December 31, 2013 from $200 million for the year ended December 31,
2012 Favorable matenals and services sourcing of $33 million and other mcreases ¢f $26 million, inclusive of a year-over-year improvement as 2012
operational EBITDA was negatively impacted by a 39 mullion legal and contractual settlement, were partially offset by unfavorable productivity of $30
million including laber inflation, increased year-over-year incentive compensation and project costs, customer price decreases ot $12 mullion and a decrease
in equity earnings of nonconsolidated affiliates of $4 million

Selling, General and Admumistrative Expense

Selling, general and admimistrative expenses (“SG&A”) were §719 mullion, or 10 6% ot net sales, tor the year ended December 31,2013 as compared to $702
millton, or 10 9% of net sales, for the year ended December 31, 2012 This $17 million increase was due to costs related to acquisitions of $14 million,
ingreased costs in excess of labor and benefits inflation of $¢ million, and $3 mullion due to currency movements, partially offset by matenals and services
sourcing savings of $4 million and decreased deprectation of $2 mullion

The Company maintains technical centers throughout the world designed to integrate the Company’s leading technologies into advanced products and
processes, to provide enginecenng support for all of the Company’s manufactunng sites, and to provide technological expertise in engineering and design
development providing solutions for customers and bringing new, innovative products to market Included in SG&A were research and development
(* R&D™} costs, including product and vahdation costs, of$173 mullion for both the years ended Decernber 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012
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OPEB Curtailment Goin

Dunng the second quarter of 2013, the Company ccased operations at one of 1ts U $§ manufactunng locations As this location participated 1n the Company’s
US Welfare Benefit Plan the plan was re-measured due to its curtatlment implications The resulting reduction 1n the average remaining future service
penod to the full ehgibility date of the remaiming active plan participants in the Company’s U S Welfare Benefit Plan tnggered the recogmtion of a $19
million OPEB curntailment gain, which was recognized in the consolidated statements of openations dunng the second quarter of 2013 The calculation of the
cunailment excluded the newly created prior service credit

In July 2012, as a result of contract negotiations with a umon at one of the Company’s US manufactunng locations, the benefits under the US Welfare
Benefit Plan were elimunated for the location s acuve participants Since this plan change reduced benefits attnbutable 1o employee service already rendered,
1t was treated as a negative plan amendment which created a $13 mullion prior service eredit in accumulated other comprehensive loss The cotresponding
reduction tn the average remaining future service period to the full ehgibility date also tnggered the recogmition of a $51 mullion OPEB curtmilment gain
which was recognized in the consclidated statements of operations duning the third quarter of 2012 The caleulation of the curtailment excluded the newly
created prior service credit

Interest Expense, Net

Net interest expense was $99 mullion in the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $128 nullion for the year ended December 31,2012 The decrease 1s
pnmanly due to the expiration of unfavorable interest rate swaps

Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net was $3 milhion for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $26 miliion for the year ended December 31, 2012

Foreign currency exchange The Company recogmized $10 millien in foreign cummency cxchange losses dunng the year ended December 31, 2013 The
Company recognized 318 mullion in foreign currency exchange losses dunng the year ended December 31, 2012, $10 million of which relates to unrealized
losses associated with outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts that settle dunng 2013

Adjustment of Assets to Fair Value

The Company recorded total impairment charges for the years ended December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012 as tollows

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Miluans of Dollars)
Googwall “TTT T TTT T cmo s cemmmiome = st g g s )
Property plant and equipment o o 19 g 43
invesimenis 13 o <onsol dted Saes ey e
Otherindefinite-lived intangible assets - — — 46
T o - T T T 5 I44 8§ 8 -S 187 |

Impaiments of goodwl! and other indefimte-lived ntangible assets are discussed further in Note 8, Fawr Falue Measurements and Note 11, Goodwill und
Other Intangible Assets 10 the Consohdated Financial Statements, included in Item 8 of this report

The Company recorded impatrment charges to adjust property, plant and equipment to their farr values 1n accordance with the subsequent measurement

provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360, Propertv Plant & Equipment Adjustments of property, plant and equipment to fair value are discussed further in Note 8,
Fair Value Measurements to the Consolidated Financial Statements, sncluded 1n Item 8 of this report

The impairment of the Company’s investment in non-consolidated affiliates is discussed further in Note 12, Investment 1 Non-consolidated Affiliates to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, included in ltem 8 of this report
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The 2012 PP&E impatrment excludes $7 mullion related to discontinued operations Discontinued operations are further discussed 1n Nate 6, Discontinued
Operations to the Consohdated Financial Statements, included in Item 8 of this repont

Restructuring Activities

The following table 1s a summary ofthe Company's consolidated restructunng hiabihities and related activity for 2014, 2013 and 2012 by reporung segment

Total
Reporting Totai
Powertram Motorparts Segment Corporate Company
{Milhons of Dollars)

Balanceatfanvay L2022 s 6 s i s 1. 8 1 s 8]
Provisions 6 16 22 4 ‘ 26
CRevewals o = W = T ]
Paymen(s N {6} (13) 2) (15)

- : Rcclasnﬁcatmns to pensxon h;g;};{; jm;“ B ;:mj T T T T '(6_)M' T ‘_“(65 _: D -_ T (6)-—i

Balam.e at December 31, 2012 4 5 9 3 12

o _Pewsens T2 a0 a0 4 s ]
Reversals {3) — 3) {Hn (4)

o Paymens T T T o Tmm T gy T . @ @ el

Balance at December 31, 2013 8 14 2 2 24

o Powsons s 86 T n e
Reversals — (1) (1) — n

CoRymems T T T En e sy e ]
Forelgn Currency 4) — 4 — 4)

Balancc at Decembér?’:lwfﬂ_lz-~ T e e ) 3 36 § 16 3 52 8 1 3 53§

Income Taxes
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For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company recorded an income tax expense of $56 mulhion on a loss from continuing operations before imcome
taxes 0f 3105 nullion, compared to mncome tax expense of $56 miflion on a income from continuing operations before mcome taxes of $157 mullion for the
year ended December 31, 2013, and compared te an income tax benefit of$29 mllion on a loss from continming operations before income taxes of $120
million for the yearended December 31, 2012

The income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 dufters from the US statutory rate due primanly to goodwall impairment, pre-tax mcome taxed
at rates lower than the US Statutory rate, recording a valuation allowance on deferred tax assets that are believed to be not more likely than not to be
realized, tncome 1n junsdictions with no tax expense due to offsetting valuation allowance release, partially offset by pre-tax losses with no tax benefits and a
tax benefit recorded related to special economic zone tax incentive

The income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2013 differs from statutory rates due pnmanly to a goodwill impairment wath no tax benefit and pre-
tax losses with no tax benefit, partially offset by pre-tax income taxed at rates lower than the U S statutory rate, income 1n junsdictions with no tax expense
due to offsetting valuation allowance releases, release of uncertain tax positions due to audit scttlements, valuation allowance release, and a tax benefit
recorded related to a special economic Zone tax incentive

The income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 differs from the U S statutory rate pnimanly due to a goodwill impairment with no tax benefit
and pre-tax losses with no tax benefit partially offset by pre-tax income taxed at rates lower than the U S statutory rate, ncome 1n junsdictions with no tax
expense due to offsetting valuanion allowance releases, tax refund from pnor years, release of uncertain tax positions due to audit settlement and a tax benefit
recorded related to a special econonuc zone tax tncentive

The Company believes that it 15 reasonably possible that its unrecognized tax benefits in multiple junisdictions, whach primanly relate to transfer pricing,
corporate reorganization and vanous other matters, may deerease by approximatcly 33 mullion 1n the next 12 months due to audit settlements or statute
expirations, of which approximately $2 mullion, if recognized, could 1mpact the effective tax rate

On July 11,2013, Fedcral-Mogul Corporation became part of the Icahn Enterpnses affiliated group of corporations as defined 1n Section 1504 of the Intemal
Revenue Code of 1986 ("the Code"), as amended, of which Amencan Entertainment Properties Corp (“AEP™) 1s the common parent The Company
subsequently entered into a Tax Allocation Agreement {the “Tax Allocation Agreement™) with AEP Pursuant to the Tax Allocation Agreement, AEP and the

Company have agreed to the allocation of certain income tax 1tems The Company will jo1n AEP 1n the filing of AEP’s federal consolidated retum and certain
state consolidated retumns In those junsdictions where the Company 15 filing consolidated retumns with AEP, the Company wall pay to AEP any tax it would
have owed had 1t continued to file separately To the extent that the AEP consolidated group 1s able to reduce its tax liability as a result of including the
Company in its consohidated group, AEP wall pay the Company an amount equal to 20% of such reduction and the Company will carryferward for its own
use under the Tax Allocation Agreement 80% of the items that caused the tax reduction (the ‘Excess Tax Benefits”) While 2 member of the AEP affiliated
group the Company will reduce the amounts 1t would otherwise owe AEP by the Excess Tax Benefits Moreover, 1f the Company should ever become
deconsohidated from AEP, AEP will reimburse the Company for any tax liability in post-consolidation years the Company would not have paid had 1t
actually had the Excess Tax Benefits for 1ts own use The cumulative payments to the Company by AEP posi-consolidation cannot exceed the cumulative
reductions 1n tax te the AEP group resulting from its use of the Excess Tax Benefits Separate return methodology will be used 1n determning income taxes

The Company’s income taxes are further discussed 1n Note 16, Income Tuxes, to the Consolidated Financial Statements, imeluded in [tem 8 of'this report

Discontipued Operations

In connection with its strategic planning process, the Company asscsses 1ts operations tor market position, product technology and capability and
profitability Those businesses deterrmned by management not to have a sustainable competitive advantage are considered non<ore and may be considered
for divestiture or other exit activities

Dunng the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company divested its sintered components operations located 1n France, 1ts connecting rod manufactunng
tactlity located n Canada, 1ts camshaft foundry located in the Umted Kingdom and its fuel pump business, which included an aftermarket business
component and a manufacturing and research and development facility located 1n the United States These divestitures have been presented as discontinued
operations 1n the consohdated statements of operations

The Company’s discontinued operations are further discussed 1n Note 6, Discontinued Operanons, to the Consolidated Financial Staterments, included 1n
Itemn 8 of this report
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Operating 4ctivities

As summanzed 1n the table below net cash provided from (used by) operating activities was $278 million, $418 million and $(53) million for the years ended
December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Millions of Dollars)
Qpéi'almna! éush h:)}v !)cfn!_é‘chajges mbp{ratjng nss;its_z_m;l habilities o B i A h: §: _: T 296 s M_318 $ T B 1 i03]
C_hanges‘m o'p~er-11;1;;g assets and habilities o B _—‘ o ~ )w i ) . S _» A“ ) T j T :_ o ——]
Accounts receivable 7 B “én 1 {197)
) Inventcwmesi o ‘j ) o 7 T ) - : ) _ _ _‘__ (83) ) . ‘(?:1; 1 '__ N (93_)]
Accounts payable ) 72 79 V 2
' Otherassetsand habites 0 T T 707 TR g a0 T 36
Total change 1n operating assets and habilities (18) 100 (256)
- PR > R e e e e e e e e e " . . U 1
Net Cash Provided From (Used by)VOpemm;g A&,t:vttles N - ) $ 278§ 418 3% {53)

Operating cash flow before changes 1n operating assets and habilines

Cash flow from operations before changes in operating assets and habilittes was 3296 mulhon, $318 mullion and $203 million for the years ended
December 31,2014,2013 and 2012, respecttvely

Cash flow from operations before changes in operating assets and habilities was $22 million lower for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2013 The decrease mainly relates to higher interest expense, net of$21 mullion, the increase in restructunng payments of $25
mullion as well as the imang of cash dividends recerved from affiliates, partially offset by the change 1n deferred taxes

Cash flow from operations before changes in operating assets and habilities was $1 15 milhion higher for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the
year ended December 31 2012 This was dnven by the improvement in eamings 1n 2013 compared to 2012

Cash w (outflow anges in ting asscts and Liaby]qt

The cash inflows (outflows) from changes in operating assets and liabiliies were $(18) mullion, $100 million and $(256) million for the years ended
December 31 2014,2013 and 2012, respectively

The cash outflow due 10 changes 10 accounts receivable for the year ended December31, 2014 was $47 mullion dnven by the sales increase 1n the Powertrain
division

The cash inflow due to changes 10 accounts receivable for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $1 rmllion as term extensions wath certain customers in the
North Amencan aftermarket reached plateau near the end of 2012

The cash cutflow due to changes in accounts receivable for the year ended December 31, 2012 of $197 mullion was primarily the result of terms extensions
with certain customers in the North Amencan aftermarket

The cash outflow due to changes in inventory of 384 milhion for the year ended December 31, 2014 was driven by an outflow of $43 mullion related to
increased volumes within Powentrain and a $41 mullion investment in inventory made as part of the strategic mitiatives within Molorparts to improve
customer service and delivery times

The cash outftows due to changes in inventory of $21 million and $93 mullion for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are largely in
supportt of increased customer service and delivery
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Investing Activities

Cash flow used by mnvesting activities was $735 mullion for the years ended December 31 2014 which mncluded $321 mullion of payments to acquire
businesses, net of cash acquired, which included $!5 million to acquire the DZV bearings business, $140 muilion to acquire the Affinia chassis business,
exclusive of $9 million of contingent consideration classified within financing acuivites, $156 nullion to acquire the Honeywell brake component business
and other investments of 310 million The Company assumed $10 milhon ot pre-cxisting debt associated with the DZV beanngs business acquisition
Capital expenditures of $418 mullion were required to suppont future sales growth and productivity improvements

Cash flow used by investing activitics was 3355 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2013 Duning the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company
divested 1ts sintered components operations located 1n France, 1ts connecting rod manufactunng facihty located in Canada, 1ts camshaft foundry located n
the United Kingdom and 1ts fuet pump business, which included an afiermarket business component and a manufactunng and research and development
facility located 1n the United States The Company recognized net proceeds of $26 million associated with these divestiiures Capital expenditures of $380
miilion were requuired to support future sales growth and productivity improvements

Cash flow used by investing activities was $427 milhion for the year ended December 31, 2012 Dunng the year ended December 31 2012 the Company
entered into a defimtive agreement to purchase the spark plug business from BorgWamer, [nc The purchase was completed 1n September 2012 for $52
million, net of cash zcquired Also duning the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company received $30 nullion 1n 1nsurance proceeds directly associated
with the Thailand manufactunng facihity flood Of the total proceeds, $13 million was classified as investing Capntal expenditures of $387 million were
required to support future sales growth and productivity improvements

Excluding acquisitions and divestitures, the expenditures for propenty, plant and equipment were $418 million, $380 mullion and 3387 mullion for the year
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively The increase 1n 2014 versus 2013 was all in the Motorparts division for the investment 1n its'
strategic growth initiatives

Fimancing Aetovities and Liguidin

Cash flow provided from {used by) financing activities was $35 million, $242 mllion and $(22) mulhion for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and
2012, respectively

The cash flow from financing activines in 2014 was pnmanly from the financing of the term loan facilities

On Apni 15, 2014, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation entered into a new tranche B term loan facility (the ¢ New Tranche B Facility™) and a new tranche C
term loan facility {the * New T'ranche C Facility,” and together with the New [ranche B Facility, the “New Term Facihities™), which were arranged by
Citigroup Global Markets Inc and Credit Smisse Secunties (USA) LLC (the "Term Armangers”), and assumed all of the obligations of Federal-Mogul
Corporation with respect to the Replacement Revolving Facility under the Credit Agreement (both defined below) The New Term Facihities were entered
into, and the Replacement Revolving Facility was assumed, by Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation pursuant to an amendment dated as of Apnl 15,2014 to
the previously existing Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement dated December 27, 2007 among Federal-Mogul Corporation, the lenders party thereto,
the Term Arrangers, Citibank, N A, as Revolving Administrative Agent, Citibank, N A, as Tranche B Term Administrative Agent, Credit Suisse AG, as
Tranche C Term Admimistrative Agent, Citigroup Global Markets Inc, Credit Suissc Sccurtties (USA) LLC and Wells Fargo Bank N A as Joint Lead
Amangers and Joint Bookrunners with respect to the Revelving Facility and Wells Fargo Bank, N A, as sole Documentation Agent with respect to the
Revolving Facility (as amended, the "Credit Agreement")

Immediately following the closing of the New Term Facilities, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation contnbuted all of the net proceeds from the New
Facihties to Federal-Mogul Corporation, and Federal-Mogul Corporation repaid 1ts existing outstanding indebtedness as a borrower under the tranche B and
tranche C term loan facilities

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 405, Extrnguishments of Liabilttzes, the Company recognized a $24 million non-cash loss on the extinguishment of

debt attnbutable to the write-off of the unamortized fair value adjustment and unamortized debt 1ssuance costs which 1s recorded 1n the line item * Loss on
Debt Extingmishment’ 1n the Company’s Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations
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The New Term Facihities among other things, (1) provides for aggregate commitments under the New Tranche B Facility of $700 mullion with a matunty date
of Apnl 15, 2018, (n) provides for aggregate commitments under the New Tranche C Facitlity of $1 9 billion with a matunty date of Apnl 15, 2021, {in)
increases the interest rates applicable to the New Facilities as descnbed below, (1v) provides that for all outstanding letters of credit there 1s a corresponding
decrease in borrowings avarlable under the Replacement Revolving Facility, (v) provides that in the event that as of a paruicular determunation date more
than $700 mulhien aggregate principal amount of existing term loans and cerntuin related refinancing mdebtedness will become due within 91 days of such
determunation date, the Replacement Revolving Facility will mature on such determination date, (v1) provides for additional incremental indebtedness,
secured on a pan passu basis, of an unhmited amount of additional indebtedness 1f the Company meets a financial covenant incurrence test, and (vu) amends
certan other restnctive covenants Purswant to the New Term Facdiues, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation assumed all of the obligations of Federal-
Mogul Corporation with respect to the Replacement Revolving Facility under the Credit Agreement

Advances under the New Tranche B Facility generally bear inierest at a vanable rate per annum equal to (1) the Altemate Base Rate plus a margin of 2 00% or
(1) the Adjusted LIBOR Rate plus a margin of 3 00%, subject, 1 each case, to a floor of | 00% Advances under the New Tranche C Facility generally bear
interest at a vanable rate per annum equal to (1) the Alternate Base Rate plus a margin of 2 75% or (1) the Adjusted LIBOR Rate plus a margin of 3 75%,
subject, 1n each case, to a munimum rate ot 1 00% plus the applicable margin

The 2013 cash inflow was primarily the result of 2 $500 million nghts offering in July 2013, partially offset by a $250 mullion prepayment on the Company's
tranche B term loan in November 2013

On December 6 2013, the Company entered into an amendment (the “Replacement Revelving Facility™) of 1ts Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement
dated as of December 27, 2007 (as amended, the “Credit Agreement™), among the Company, the lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA, Inc, as Administrative
Agent JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A, as Syndication Agent, and Wachovia Capital Finance Corporation and Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC, as Co-Documentation
Agents, to amend Us exisiing revolving credit facility te provide for a replacement revelving credit facility (the * Replacement Revolving Facility™) The
Replacement Revolving Facility, among other things, (1) increased the aggregate commutments available under the Replacement Revolving Facihity from
$540 mulhion to 3550 malhon, (11) extended the matunty date of the Replacement Revolving Facility to December 6 2018, subject to cenamn limited
exceptions descnibed below, and (i) amended the Company’s borrowing base to provide the Company with additional hiquidity

Advances under the Replacement Revolving Facihity generally bear interest at a vanable rate per annum equal to (1) the Alternate Base Rate (as defined 1n the
Credut Agreement) plus an adjustable margin of ¢ 50% to | 00% based on the average monthly availability under the Replacement Revolving Facility or
{u) Adjusted LIBCR Rate (as defined 1n the Credit Agreement) plus a margin of 1 50% to 2 00% based on the average monthly availability under the
Replacement Revolving Facility An unused commutment fee of 0 375% also 15 payable under the terms of the Replacement Revalving Facility

The Company’s ability to obtain cash adequate to fund its needs depends generally on the results of 1ts operations, restructuning imtiatives, and the
availability of financing Management believes that cash on hand, cash flow from operations, available bomowings under 1ts New Faciliies and 1ts
Replacement Revolving Facihity and ability to secure additional borrowings will be sufficient to fund capiial expenditures and meet 115 operating obligations
through the end of 2015 In the longer term, the Company believes that 11s base operating potential supplemented by the benefits from 1ts announced
restructunng programs, will provide adequate long-term cash flows However, there can be no assurance that such imtiatives are achievable 1n this regard

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not have any matenal off-balance sheet amangements
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Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The Company has the fellowing contractual obligations and commercial commitments outstanding at December 31,2014

2018 2016 w017 2018 2019 Therealter Total
(Millions of Dollars)
Debt obligations T T T T Ts s T 28 s 2908 696 8 19§ 1801 5 2,700 |
Interest payments 129 121 12t 121 93 93 678
Lewessofersdn ~ T "7 0 7ok 0 T — T~ T~ = ]
Pension and other postemployment bencfit plans 135 85 83 70 64 318 755
Operating leases o ’ _ : ) R T - 3f ’ 0 17 44 193 ]
Total b 466 3 274§ 264§ 907 § 193 § 2256 $ 4,360

In addition, the Company estimates its 2015 capital expenditures to be in the range of $450-3500 mlhon
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Other Liguiduy and Capital Resource ftems

As ot December 31, 2014, the Company had $332 mullion of cash and cash equivalents, of which $138 mullion was held by toreign subsidianes In
accordance with FASB ASC 740-30-25-17 through 19, the Company asserts that these funds are indefinitely remnvested due to operational and mvesting
needs of the fereign locations Furthermore, the Company will accrue any applicable taxes in the penod when the Company no longer intends to indefintely
reinvest these funds The Company would expect that the impact on cash taxes would be immatenal due to the availlability of net operation loss
carryforwards and related valuation allowances, eamings considered previously taxed, and applicable tax treaties

The Company maintains investments in several non-consolidated affiliates, which are located in China, France, Germany, Korea, Turkey India and the
United States With the exception of the deconsolidated business discussed below, the Company generally equates control to ewnership percentage whereby
mvestments that are more than 50% owned are consolhidated

As part of the regulatory approval related to the acquisition of certain business assets of the Honeywell brake component business, the Company commutted
to divest, or procure the divestiture of the commercial vehicle brake pads business relating to the enginal equipment/onginal equipment services
{(*OEM/OES™) market in the European Economic Area (‘EEA’), based at the manufactuning plant in Manenheide, Germany and light vehicle brake pads
business relating to the OEM/OES market 1n the EEA, based at the manufacturing plant in Noyon, France (collectively, the “Divestment Business™)
Furthermore, to the extent possible, the Company commutted to keep the Divestment Business separate from the business(es) 1t 1s retaining, and unless
explicitly permitted commutted to ensure (1) management and staff have no imvolvement 1n the Divestment Business, (11} cetain key personnel of the
Divestment Business have no involvement tn any business retained by the Company and do not report to any individual outside the Divestment Business As
such, the Company deconsolidated 1ts subsidianes or group of assets which are subject to regulatory commutments and recorded an investment in
unconsolidated subsidiary, which will be accounted for as an equity method investment until dispositton

The Company does not hold a controlling tnterest 1n an entity based on exposure to economuc nisks and potential rewards (vaniable interests) for which 1t 1s
the primary beneficiary Funther, the Company’s affiltations are businesses established and mamtained 1n connection with its operating strategy and are not
spectal purpose entities

The following represents the Company’s aggregate investments and direct ownership 1n these affihates

December 31
1014 2013
(Vllhons of Dollars)
Investments m non-consolidated affilaes 7 T g 269§ 753 |

RN P - N PN, [——

[ [P, - RS PN - [P, - e - - e m e —_—

2% to 100%

Direct ownership percentages

The following table represents amounts reflected 1n the Company’s financial statements related to non-consolidated affiliates

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
o . o {(Millions of Doliars)
By samungs of aomconsobdatedafitares " " F T mTs o a4 § 4]
Cash dividends received from non-consehdated affilates 25 33 31

The Company holds a 50% non-controlling interest 1n a joint venture located 1n Turkey (“Turkey JV”) The Turkey JV was established 1n 1995 for the
purpose of manufactunng and markeung automotive parts, in¢luding pistons, piston nngs piston pins and cyhinder hiners to onginal equipment and
aftermarket customers The Company purchases/sells inventory from/to the Turkey JV Purchases from the Turkey JV for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 were $180 million, $152 million and $150 million, respectively Sales to the Turkey JV for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012 were $45 million, $44 million and $45 mullion, respectively The Company had net accounts payable balances with the Turkey IV of §5 mullien and $6
million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 respecnvely
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Federnl-Mogul subsidianes in Brazil, France, Germany, ltaly and the United States are party to accounts receivable factonng and secuntization facilities
Amounts factored under these facilities consist of the following

December 31

2014 2013
{M:llions of Dollars)
Grois accounts recervabls factored T T T T T T T o mm e oo s T )
Grosgaccountsrccewablefevlctor;d,“cvlual}'fymgjlssalci T o C 293 258

Undrawn cash on ffutomd accounts receivable ) ) B o

B S

Proceeds trom the factonng of accounts receivable qualifying as sales and cxpenses associated with the factoning of aceounts receivable arc as follows

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 012
(Milhons of Dollars)
Proceeds from f‘acionné q_\xai:'f‘)*l_n:g_;gsqlgs-: N ) ___ __ N ___ _ “____v_ ___w_; N L $ o 1;3_19‘_ A$ _E____l 482 § 1475
Losses on sales ofaccount recervables (6) 7 (N

Accounts receivables factored but not qualifying as a sale, as defined 1in FASB ASC Topic 860, Transfers and Servicing, were pledged as collateral and
accounted for as secured borrowings and recorded 1n the consolidated balance sheets within “Accounts recetvable, net” and “Short-term debt, including the
current portion of long-term debt ”

The losses on sales of accounts receivable are recorded 1n the consolidated statements of operatrons within *Other expense, net ™ Where the Company
recerves a fee to service and momtor these transferred receivables, such fees are sufficient to offset the costs and as such, a servicing asset or liability 1s not
recorded as a resutt ot such activities

Certain of the facilities contamn terms that require the Company to share in the credit nsk of the sold receivables The maximum exposures to the Company
associated with these certain facihities’ terms were $17 million and $21 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively The fur values of the
exposures te the Company associated with these certain facilities’ terms were determined to be immatenal

Subsequent Events

On February 6, 2015, the Company completed the purchase of cenain business assets of the TRW engine compenents business The business was acquired
through a combination of asset and stock purchases for a base purchase pnce of approximately $313 mllion, funded pnmanly from the available
Replacement Revelver Facility and subject to certain customary closing and postclosing adjustments The purchase of TRW’s engine valve business adds a
completely new product line to the Company's portfolio, strengthens the Company's position as a leading developer and supplier of core components for
engines, and enhances the Company's ability to support 1ts customers to 1mprove fuel economy and reduce emissions

The assets acquired and habilitics assumed will be recorded at fair valuc as ot the acquisition date 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic No 805, Busiress
Combinations The preliminary allocation of the purchase pnice will occur in the first quarter of 2015 There were no revenues or eamings related to TRW
included in the Company's condensed consolidated statement of income

On February 24 2015, the Company announced that 1t intends to launch a registered nghts offenng on or about March 6, 2015 In the nghts offenng, each
holder of the Company’s common stock as of the clese of business on the record date of March 6, 2015 will be 1ssued, at no charge, one transferable
subscniption nght for each whole share of common stock owned by that stockholder on the record date (the “basic subscniption privilege®) The nghts
offenng will also include an oversubscnption povilege, which will entitle stockholders who exercise all of their subscnption nghts in the basic subsenption
pnvilege the nght to purchase additional shares of common stock 1n the nghts offenng. subject to availability and pro rata allocation of shares among nghts
holders exeruising such oversubscniption pnvilege
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The Company will offer a number of shares of its common stock in the nghts offenng, inclusive of the over-subscnption privilege, representing
approximately $250 muillion of gross proceeds The Company plans to use the proceeds from the nghts effening to strengthen its balance sheet

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Refer to Note 7, Financial Instruments, to the Consclidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8 of this report, for information with respect to interest rate
sk, commodity price nsk and foreign currency nsk

The translated values of revenue and expense from the Company’s intemational operations are subject to fluctuations due to changes in currency exchange
rates Duning the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company denved 36% of 11s sales in the United States and 64% intemationally Of these intemational
sales, 57% are denomunated 1n the euro, with no other single currency representing more than 10% To mumimize foreign cumrency nsk, the Company
generally maintains natural hedges within tis non-U 8 acuivities, including the matching of operational revenues and vosts Where natural hedges are not 1n
place, the Company manages certain aspects of its foreign curmrency activities and larger transactions through the use of foreign currency options or forward
contracts The Company estimates that a hypothetical 10% adverse movement of all foreign currencies wn the same direction aganst the US dollar over the
year ended December 31, 2014 would have increased the net loss from continuing operations attnbutable to Federal-Mogul by approximately $9 mllion
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ITEM 8 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management 15 responsible for establishing and mamntaiming adequate intemal control over financial reporting, as such temm 18 defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15{(f) under the US Sccuntics Exchange Act of 1934 Under the supervision and with the participation of the principal exceutive and financial officers
ofthe Company, an evaluation ol the effectiveness of intemal controls over financial reporting was conducted based upon the framework in fnrernal Control
— Integrated Framework (2013} 1ssued by the Commuttee of Sponsoning Organizations (the ' COSQ 2013 Framework™) of the Treadway Commission Based
on the evaluation performed under the COSO 2013 Framework as of December 31, 2014, management has concluded that the Company's intemal control
over financial reporting was cffective

The Company may omut an assessment of an acquired business's intemal control over financial reporting from its assessment of intemal control Accordingly,
the Company's management excluded the Honeywell brake component business scquisition from 1ts assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, however, the exclusion may not extend beyond one year from the date of acquisiion nor may such assessment
be omitted from more than one annual management repert on intemal control over financial reporing The total assets of $375 mithon and total net sales of
$250 million associated with the Honeywell brake component business acquisition are inctuded in consohdated financial statements or the Company tor the
year ended December 31 2014

Grant Thomton LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm has audied the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting as of
December31, 2014, as stated in theirreport which 1s included herein
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation

We have audited the intemal control over financial reporting of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation (a Delaware corporation) and subsidianes {the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2014, based on cntena cstablished i the 2013 Intemal Control-Intcgrated Framework 1ssued by the Commuttee of
Sponsonng Organizations of the Treadway Commussion (COSQ) The Company’s management 1s responsible for mamtaining effective intemal control over
financial reporting and for ats assessment of the effectiveness of intemnal control over financial reporting, included i1n the accompanying Management s
Repert on Intemnal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting
bascd on our audit Qur audit of, and oprnion on, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting does not include the intemal conirol over financial
reporting of the Honeywell brake component business acquisition whose financial statements reflect total assets and revenues constituting 5 and 3 percent,
respectively, of the related conselidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014 As indicated :n Management's Report,
the Honeywell brake component business was acquired dunng 2014 Management’s assertion on the effectiveness of the Company's 1ntemal control over
financial reporting excluded intemal control over financial reporting of the Honeywell brake component business

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective intemal control over financial reporting was maintaimed 1n 2ll matenal
respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of intemal control over financial reporting, assessing the nsk that a matenal weakness exasts testing
and evaluaung the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed nsk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary 1n the circumstances We believe that our audit provides a reagonable basis for our opinton

A company s intemal control over financial reporting (s a process desighed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rehiability of financial reporting

and the preparation of financiai statements for external purposes in accordance with genemlly accepted accounung principles A company’s internal control

ever financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, tn reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions ot the assets of the company (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permut
preparation of financial statements 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnciples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only 1n accordance with authonzations of management and directers of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevenuon or
timely detection cfunauthonzed acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements

Because of iis inherent hmitations internal contrel over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future peneds are subject to the nsk that controls may become 1nadequate because of changes i conditions, or that the degree of comphance
with the policies or procedures may detenorate

In our opimon the Company maintained 1n all matenal respects, effective intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014 based on cntena
established 1n the 2013 Intemal Control-Integrated Framework 1ssued by COSO

We also have audited, 1n accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) the consohdated financiat
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014 and our report dated February 26, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements

fs/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Southfield, Michigan
February 26, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Federal-Mogul Holdings Corpoeration

We have audited the accompanying consohidated balance sheets of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation (a Delaware corporation) and subsidianes (the
“Company™) as ot December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the rclated consohidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes 1n
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the penod ended December 31, 2014 Our auduts of the basic conselidated financial
statements included the financial statement schedule listed in the 1ndex appeanng under liem 15(a)X2) These financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management Our responsibility 1s to express an opumion on these financial statements and finaneial
statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States} Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtan reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matenal misstatement An audit includes
examining on a test basis, evidence suppotting the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting
pnnciples used and sigmficant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financiat statement presentation We believe that our audats
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fatrly, in all matenal respects, the financial position of Federal-Mogul
Holdings Corporation and subsidianes as of December 31,2014 and 2013 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the penod ended December 31, 2014 1n conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca Also in our opinion, the
rclated financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fauly, m all
matenal respects, the information set forth therein

We alsc have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, which did not include an audit of intemal control over financial reporting of the Honeywell brake
component business acquired 1 2014 based on cntena established 1n the 2013 Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsonng Orgamizations of the Treadway Commssion (COSO), and our report dated February 26, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Southfield, Michigan
February 26,2015
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FEDERAL-MOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 20012

{Millhions of Dollars,
Except Per Share Amounty)

Netsales T o s 1T 8 6786 5 6444
Cost ofproducts sold o . o N (6 260) (5 766) o _(5,531)
. o - B o E
Gross profit ~ B o N . o . 1.957 o low o 9_]_3
SC”I;Ig. géneral and admmlstralwt:ﬂcxpenses — i _ o o i _{776) c (719) T (702“)
OPEB curtailmens gain i o - - o ) : __i i ; ; i <m - ~ 19 _:; Rt }
Adjustment of assets to fair value {144) 8) (187)
lntc;?st;xpcnse,net ) ) ’ . — K_ i ‘_:_ X o 7; o B (z _1 . (_99)_ —:i K lilsﬁ
Restructunng expense, net (86) {40) (26)
Amortization expense ) ) o *; o V__ _7_; _ - »_1_ ) __ ) :Fw__ w___‘(49)_w _ 4Ty o (49_)_]
Equuity eamings ofnon-conso]xdntcd affiliates 48 34 I 7"
Loss on debt extinguishment i T ) B i ) - j ) _“ 1 ﬁ___' ) T 24) B : - T —:i
Other expense, net ) i e ~ ’ o N (11) (3) {26)
{Loss) income trom continuing operatlon;—l;efpreimco;ne taxes _ } - ’ ) (105) 157 o kl 2())E
fncp:ﬁé tax {Expengeﬁ)belaeﬁtm’_; _ _v'_’_‘ B __ ~ _- o ___ 7‘ __1 jvl‘&’ S {56) - (56) T 2?)}
(Loss) meome ﬁ't;;&_o“nunumgm&;er.atmns :—___ o “__ o Wﬁ ’ im:-__ _ﬂ_—“__“_:—:_ “__ -:__; -:__.ﬂ M(]G!) M:' - w; _!OIW o _-_n::: A(biﬂ
Loss from dnsconunued operations. net of tax o — (52) (19}
Net (foss) ncome R U7 T ST R (TTOY,
Less net income attnbu!abie to nonﬂc‘;rixtr‘t;mll‘mg mlerests i ‘: o T T o (7-)“_ T {—8)— T a‘ﬂ
Net (loss) income attnbutable to Fedeml Mogul o $ (168) § 41 ) $ (7
- . e e e e e e e e ‘l
AmountsatmbutgbletoFedemlMowel . 2]
Net (loss) income ﬁ';m continuing operations N o - h "stm T (168) % 93 —E - —('_J—é)
l:(;ss from discontinued opetations. net of tax ~ _; . :_ ’ m"__m i ___ — ‘ 5 T (19_)i
Net (loss) mcome £ (168 % 41 8 an
o1
Net {loss) income ger common share nllnbutngle 1o Federal- Mogul
Basig and diluted, e o T
Net (]ms) income ﬁ'om conlmumg operatiens 7 o WE T (ml 12) mi o 0 ‘—/5— - i T ”(’659‘)
Loss from discontinued operations net of tax _'- :_ - - :~ ”_ - A T ‘ - {0 42)— —__——-(6 ]9ﬂ
Net (loss) income $ (111) $ 033§ (118)

See accompanying notes to conselidated financial statements
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FEDERAL-MOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income {Loss)

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
o L B !.\lllllomkof Dollars) o _
Net (foss) income L s asn s 9 s (1o
Othercomprehensive (lossymcome . . . __ ]
B lf}_)rglgn cun%ng_tpﬁslaugn acwi:n;st.r;lents and olhert “:: V‘;M w—:m ,,:W _: o m __t B (72_-4_8}L _ . ) (R3] 4_‘_“ - ﬁ:VSG ]
Postemploymembeneﬁts - o '_:: - “__A__ _ o t,, N d : . M: :—ﬁ- o ) ]
___Netunrealized postt:mp‘loymcm‘bcncms {costs) credlts ansing during year o oo By B 7;16 2
Reclasstfication of net postemployment benefits (credns} costs inciuded 1n net (loss)
oo income dunny year i (14) 129)J

Reclassification of net postemployment benetit losses ot dcconsohdatcd aﬂllmtcs

. lncumetaxes ) S o 22 W{9) i 27]
Postemployment benehts net of tax (282) 223 (213)
. Mt [, U ot il AU :
—_ - - . e e e e m el i A |
____ Hedgenstruments e i
o Net unrezhzed hedgmg (losses) gains arising dunng year s (2 I ]
o ngl{lssnfcat{gngfnet hedgmg losses 1ncluded n net (loss) mcome dunng year = !4_ o ___"47
o Income taxes o s e i ! @)
Hedgelnstmments net oftax - ] Wy . 8 46
Other comprehensive (loss) income, netoftax 7T sy 2200 (1
X . e e I }
e e e e e _ o . — O |
Comprehensive (loss) income L o _(G?EL o 2159_ o __H(E_Z_l_)
I:e::(:)rr:prmeﬁwensn;;(;niwc;;l::floss attﬁ)lltable to noncommllmg unterests T - :— ST —8— o Z4)—M" T (3;)
o e S
Comprechensive (1oss) income attnibutable to Federal- -Mogul $ {684) § 205 % 228)

See accompanying notes to consohdated financial statements
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FEDERAL-MOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Decembrer 31
2014 2013
{Mlhions of Dollars)
- ASSETS ST S ]
Current assets . N
_Cashand equivalents T B S © A S (7
Accounts recervable, net v ~ 1419 1,324
__ Ioventones. net i ‘ _ ’ ) B _ ) o 1215 ’ E,668 1}
Prepald expenses and other cumrent assets ) _ i B 225 224
Total  curreni assets i ~ o ) _ o :‘ . —A ~ ) : _ _ :_ o319y 3377
Property plant and equipment, net - T o t,_ i ) 2.1 4_50 2,038 |
Goodwll and other lndctlmtc-lwed mtanglblc assets i o ) i 928 o 1,017
Deﬁnne~lzved Lintangible assets, net o ) t:_ o 7_ ’ _‘_n . _ ; 354 T 35(—5. J
lnvestments n non-consol:dated aﬁ':llates i i - 269 o 2N55“
Other noncurrent assets L _ o 7_ - k: _‘ o _7_ Tj ) - L : 7 } ) _____‘ 165 141 ]
$ 7067 S 7,182
- LIABILITIES AND SHA.REHOLDERS’ EQUIT\i . ) T - ]
Cunenti;ablllties o B oo T T i ) T
i -Siao;t:{;n;_ti-él;t mcludmg currem pumon ofior-lyg-icnn debtw_v _ ) i m: ;_ m_ B i m:_ : - im_j :Tsm i iw EAZE’ﬁ $ 1,€93]
_ Accounts payable 926 799
Accmed liabihities :__ i i ;_ _ _-_ _ﬂ o _:: ) ; _ ;1 ~ ; #: L :”___ 5};6 ~ ) ’45_41E
Curmrent portion ot pensions and other postemployment beneﬁts llablllty 46 44
o thgrﬂcurrenrha“b;lme;s o . - mwwmm ;:m:m: mm I T ig6 147 |
Total current liabilities 1.831 3138
Long-term debt ) T _7 T o ’ 7” i } - —k__: o :__: _2,533 - 905 |
Pensions and other postemplgy_m;n—t-bencﬁts hability T 1282 ],(528 )
Long-term portion of deferred income taxes B _ R ﬂ___ o :_ :_ i . 389 o —3_§3 ]
Other accrued habilities T ) i 7 - 93 127
Sharehulders equity T - T 7 ) ) ) _m “_“_ B . m e ) . )
Preferred stock ($0 01 par value 90 000 000 authonzed shares none |ssued) ’ — R
Commen stock {80 0! par value, 450 £00,000 authonzed shares, 151,624,744 1ssucd shares and 150,029 244
! outstanding shares as of both December 31, 2014 and 2013) . ) o o 2 o 2
Additional pard-in capital, including wamants i 2,649 2 649
Accumulated defiet - e (686) - G19)]
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,142) (626)
_ TFreasury stock, at cost A t ~ B : o ) ) ’ (17)7 B (l?)‘-
Total Federal-Mogul sharcholdcrs cqu:ty 806 1,490
Noncontroiling mtcrests A T N o “_L o . : - 103 11}
Total shareholders’ equuy - - - B ) o B 909 £.601
) i 7067 § 7,182 |

See accompanying notes to coasolidated financial statements
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FEDERAL-MOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Milhons of Dollars)
Cash Provided From (Used By) Operating Activites T Ty
Net (1035) ncome S (161 % 48 8 (1w
Ad}ustmmts to ro reconcﬂe nct (loss) mcomc to net cash provnded from ( used by) op:rarmg m:u\ ltm_ oo : :“ :‘:‘m_. :m —‘—: :_:_,:- :_,:: -__ _____ ’ _: ; A_ ”}
Deprecmtmn and 2 nmomzanon T o h 334 296 289
T AGismenofesosw farvae T T 7T T T TTTT T s gt T e
Restructurmg expense, net T T T T 86 _ 40 26
Paymcnts agamnst rcstrucmrmg lmblhncs oo T s 7:# o ‘i‘ T ::ﬁ (7573).“ ) (Z_SM_)“ (IS)]
h Cha.nbe n postemployment benefits, exc!udlng, CUHullmen}Zmn; o o oo (75) - (72) (66)
o Equny earnings of nun-consoldated affiliates T o T T ‘_ T _(‘_18) S (34; S (34).’
" Cash dwidends receved from non-consohidated affibates ) T 25 13 3l
T owendmemgnam T TTTTT T T e T
OPFB curta]lmcnl gamn o= (19L _(S_l]_
) _U_Dc['erred tax ¢ expense (ben;ﬁm;)n h _4_ ) : ;:- "__j :_ : _ j . mj: :-u ) ‘“ m :A i m“*:* -,; 20 ) (74 (78]}
Nct loss from business d:sposmons — a7 —
" Tasurancs proceeds relawd to Thadrdl flopd T T T TTTT T mnTTmo s e e gy
C};;ngcs N operating assets and ]Iabl]lllf.‘s - o ) ’
T heowsteeewable T T T UTUTT TTT T m gy T T T gy
[nvemurles (R4) 2n 93)
- Accolms payable o0 i T - ) ‘n . o ’ . 7: i ﬁ_ . ;:_‘_ _i 7:__ :12_?___ L ‘:i?’ : - _—(MZ)_]
’ Othe_r_asmsets and babhes 7 o 41 a1 36
Net Cash Provided From (Used by) Operating Acavites ——————~ "7 g~ = 45 (53)]
Cash Provided me (Used Bv) [nvestlng Actmllu
N ’:_: _E:xpcndnures for propcrty, p[am und eqmpmcnt _:. ﬁ‘ _:_ ::: : :;; :_hi «: :_:,_* B ‘:;”:M: ;: j ;(filgs,::m:__:h :_—68“0—) NMEEST)}
Paymems to acquu'e businesses net of cash acquxrcd {321} — (52)
T Net proceeds assocna.tedmﬂ'n busmss dasposmons T T T ’ i i T ’ 26 i _
N;;;:;oce;:d;mﬁ';);msaTe; ofpmperty plan! and equ:prr:n?mn oS e T I T -B_AWE i _"‘»"57
T oot e w Thalid oo~ 7 T T CTT T s TS 0T g
C.:pltal nvestment in non-consohdated affiliate —_ 4) (6)
"7 NetCosh Used By Invesnng Actvines ’ T T (735) (3ss) (27!
Cash Provided From (Uss:d l'?.;)ml;rnmnncing Acm’l-tmi;__ T e i T 7
" Proceeds from term loans, m;r.ofongmal 150 ¢ dweoum 00/ “_ ;n_w:i?:sis; - i :.{_w - ik :: _:J
7 Ponopal payments ontermloans T T T s {275) (30)
! Drebt 1ssuance costs T - o ’ T {12 [C)] —
i Conlmée;ﬂ_c::u;q-tdcranon to acquu'e_buqme;: oo 0 4/ rrm mrmm s “.(Q) o - R
o -Proceeds fmrmm"nwe:]u:tv rlghts offering, net of‘relutcd fees o o mmme e T t_: T —M B '_";Ep_o—_ - . ;—:1
"7 Increase i other lor long-term debt T T o o o IZM T Wiﬂ ) - —
_ Increasen shorttermdebt o hl ji— _dw‘ _&_._ N : B N: T : f:: T : :—_ 7; ) ; 23," T GJ
Net (rcmmnncca) proceeds on servicing offaclormg, arrangements nH (D) 2
" __ NotCashProvided From (Used By) Financing Acoviees 35 ag @)
Effect ?.,f foreign cu;'lency exchange rate fluctuations on cash —” . B T (7; ) A { 1715 i 16 |
lDecre-lse) Increase n cash and equwalenm- T mj _m i j:muj m’ i:w j 1 m“ B ; j;:n : _i_ }fZQ) i?4 i (486)3
Cash and equwnlems nr beginning ofyear 761 467 953
Cash and cquivalents at end of year | s 332 % 761 8 467

See accompanying notes to consehdated financial statements
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Balance at January 1,2012 -

Net (loss) income

Less net income attnbutable to noncentrolling

interests ) _
Other comprehensive loss, net ol tax
Balance at December 31,2012

Net income

Less net income attnbutable to r;oncowntt:ollmgv T

nierests

Other compreh.;nswe loss, net of tax
Equity nghts offenng _ i
Balance at December 31,2013

Net (mln_';s) Income ’ o

Less net income attnbutable to noncontrolling
mnterests

Other comprchcnsuvg Joss, net (_)ftax _-
Balance at December 31,2014

FEDERAL-MOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

tccurulated

idditional Uther Treasury
Common Paid-in Retaned Comprehensive Stock Noncontrolliog
Stack Capital Deficit Income (Loss) st Cost Total Lnterests
{Millions of Dollars)

8 1 S 21S0 S @4 $  (739) S AN S 953 S 100 |
e L2 e e N UL A
|
- - = M_ . .= .= N o

) -— —_ (111} (1 —_
i ] 1 2,150 {559) 850) (7). 725 107 |
e e D T Y T AL
]
e m L ® .~ = ® -
- — — 224 — 224 (4)
Ty T oaee T — T — —_ 500 T

2 2,649 {518) (626) 17 1,490 111
O (111 N (1.1} B
3 e M - = N —
o — — — (516) — (516) (15) ]

) 2 3 2649 S (686) § {1,142) § (17) § 806 § 103

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Holding Company Reorganization On Apnl 15, 2014, Federal-Mogul Corporation completed a holding company reorgamization (the “Reorganization™) As
aresult of the Reorganization the outstanding shares of Fedeml-Mogul Corporation common stock were automatically converted on a one-for-one basis into
shares of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation common stock, and all of the stockholders of Federal-Mogul Corporation immediately prior to the
Reorganization automatically became stockholders of Federal-Mogul Haldings Corporation The nghts of stockholders of Fedeml-Mogul Holdings
Corporatton are generally governed by Delaware law and Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation’s certaficate of incorporation and bylaws, which are the same
i all matenal respects as those of Federal-Mogul Corporation immediately pnor to the Reorgamization In addition, the board of dircctors of Federal-Mogul
Holdings Corporation and 1ts Audit Commuttee and Compensation Commuttee are composed of the same members as the board ot directors, Audit Commuttee
and Compensation Comrmuttee of Federal-Mogul Corporation pnor to the Reorgamzation

)

References herein to the ‘Company,” “Federal-Mogul.” we,” us, “our” refer to Federal-Mogul Corporation for the penod pnor to the effecuve tme of the
Reorgamization on Apnl 13, 2014 and to Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation for the pentod after the effective tume of the Reorganization

Financial Statement Presentanion The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accountuing
panciples generally accepted in the United States (‘U S GAAP”)

Principles of Consolhidation The Company consolidates into its financial statements the accounts of the Company, all wholly-owned subsidianes, and any
partially-owned subsidiary that the Company has the ability to control Control generatly equates to ownership percentage, whereby investments that are
more than 50% owncd arc consolidated, irvestments 1n affiliates of 50% or less but greater than 20% are accounted tor using the equity method, and
mvestments 1n affihates of 20% or less are accounted for using the cost method See Note 12, luvestment 1t Non-conselidated Affiliates for discussion
regarding the Company's subsidianes that are subject to regulatory control

The Company does not consolidate any entity for which it has a vanable interest based solely on power to direct the activities and significant participation 1n
the entuty’s expected results that would not otherwise be consohidated based on control through voung interests Further, the Company's affibates are
businesses established and maintained in connection with the Company’s operating strategy All intercompany transactions and balances have been
elimmated

In 2012, the Company began exiting substannially all its activities in Venezuela with only residual eash and de minimis administrative costs remaining 1n
2014 In the tourth quarter of 2014, the Company concluded that the inability to freely exchange currency between the Venezuelan bolivar cumrency and the
U S dollar coupled with the sigmificant govemment regulations and restrictions cusrently n place, which are cxpected to continue or worsen, severely himis
its abilaty 10 manage and control 1ts Venezuelan operations As a result, the Company's Venezuelan subsidiary was deconsohdated as of December 31, 2014
The impact of the deconsolidation was a $2 mulhion dotlar charge included in the resuits of operations for the year ended December 31,2014

Use of Esttmates The preparation of financial statements 1o conformuty with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported therein Due to the inherent uncertainty involved 1n making estimates actual results reported 1n future periods may be based upon
amounts that differ from these estimates

Controlling Ownership As of December 31,2014 Mr Carl C Icahn indirectly controls approximately 80 73% of the voung power of the Company’s capital
stock and, by virtue of such stock ownership, 15 able to control or exert substantial influence over the Company, inctuding the election of directors, business
strategy and pohcies, mergers or other busimess combimations, acquisiion or disposition of assets, future 1ssuances of common stock or other secunuies,
mcurrence of debt or obtaining other sources of financing, and the payment of dividends on the Company’s comumon stock The cxistence of a controlling
stockholder may have the effect of making it difficult for, or may discourage or delay, a third party from seeking to acqurre a mayjonty of the Company’s
outstanding common stock, which may adversely atfect the market price of the stock

Mr lcahn’s interests may not always be conststent with the Company’s interests or with the interests of the Company’s other stockholders Mr Icahn and
entities controlled by him may also pursuc acquisitions or business opportunities that may or may not be complementary to the Company’s business To the
extent that conflicts of interest may anse between the Company and Mr Icahn and hus affihates, those conflicts may be resolved in a manner adverse to the
Company or its other shareholders




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Related Party Icahn Sourcing, LLC (“lcahn Sourcing”} 1s an cntity formed by Mr Icahn in order to maximize the potential buying power of a group of
entities with which Mr Icahn has a relationship in negotiating with a wide range of supphers of goods, senices and tangible and 1ntangible property at
negotiated rates The Company was a member of the buying group 1n 2012 Pnor to December 31, 2012, the Company did not pay [cahn Sourcing any fees or
other amounts with respect to the buying group arrangement

In December, 2012, leahn Sourcing advised the Company that effective January 1, 2013 1t would restructure 1ts ownership and change its name to Insight
Ponfolio Group LLC (‘Insight Portfohe Group™) In connection with the restructunng, the Company acquired a minonty equity interest in Insight Portfoho
Group and agreed to pay a portion of Insight Portfolio Group’s operating expenses in 2013 In addition to the minonty equity interest held by the Company,
certain subsidianes of [cahn Enterprises Heldings, including CVR, Tropicana, ARI, Viskase PSC Metals and WPH also acquired minonty equity 1nterests n
Insight Portfolto Greup and agreed to pay a portien of Insight Pertfolic Group s operating expenses A number of other entities with which Mr lcahn has a
relationship alse acquired equity interests 1n Insight Ponfolio Group and also agreed to pay cenain operating expenses

The Company's payments to Insight Portfolio Group were less than $0 5 muillion for both of the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 The Company
antscipates us 2015 payments 1o Insight Portfolio Group to be similar to the amounts paid 1n 2014

Cash and Equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investments with matuntics of 90 days or less trom the date of purchasc to be cash
equivalents

Divesnitures In connection with 113 strategic planning process, the Company assesses 1ts operations for market position, product technology and capability,
and profitability Those businesses determined by management not to have a sustainable competitive advantage are considered non-core and may be
considered for divestiture or other exit activities Dunng the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company divested 1ts sintered components operations
located 1n France, its connecting rod manufactuning facility located 1n Canada, 1ts camshaft foundry located in the United Kingdom and its fuel pump
business, which included an aftermarket business component and a manufactuning and research and development facility located 1n the United States These
divestitures have been presented as discontinued operattons tn the consolidated statements of operations See Note 6, Discontinued Operations, for further
details

Trude dccounts Recervable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Trade accounts receivable 1s stated at net realizable value which approximates fair value
The Company does not genemlly require collateral forits trade accounts receivable Accounts receivable 1s reduced by an allowance for amounts that may
become uncollectible in the future This estimated allowance 15 based pnmanly on management’s evaluation of specrfic balances as the balances become past
due, the financial condition of its customers and the Company’s histonical expenence of wntecffs The Company’s general policy for uncollectible accounts,
1f not reserved through specific examination procedures, 18 to reserve based upon the aging categones of accounts recetvable and whether amounts are duc
from an onginal equipment manufacturer or servicer (“OE”) or aftermarket customer Past due status is based upon the invoice date of the onginal amounts
outstanding [ncluded in selling, general and admunistration (* SG&A *) expenses are bad debt expenses of $5 mullion $3 mullion and $2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively Account balances are charged off against the allowance afier all means of collechion have been
exhausted and the potenttal for recovery 15 consitdered remote The Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts was 511 mullion at both December 31, 2014
and 2013

Federal-Mogul subsidianes 1n Brazil, France, Germany, Traly and the Umted States are panty to accounts receivable factonng and secuntization facilities
Amounts factored under these facilities consist of the following

December 31

014 2013
(Miullions of Dollars)
Gro§; z;_'(w:t_:ou;ls recwenZaE)lWe faétored‘“ B o :W w,:“ ::_;““A o :w B M_:m - : . ; X i - __$;; :1 __55_0§_-__“$ _____ _ 2771"?
Gross accounts recervable factored, qualifying as sales 293 258
Und}agvn cash on factored accounts recvewabig_ L o :_ h i ; ) _; m‘ “:‘ _; ) __ ‘_ o Tz : —:“ ) __:}
Proceeds from the factonng of accounts receivable qualifying as sales and expenses associated wath the factonng of accounts receivable are as follows
Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
{MiHions of Dollars)

Proceeds from facto;-m—é aua“ﬁfymg—a; sales B T iﬂ ) _:__,‘ :m m_w ) MM_M B 5 o 17679_ $ i 1482 81 ,:17“5“}
Losses on sales ofaccount receivables (6) o ﬁﬁ(:.ﬂ'“)_ S (7)




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Accounts recetvables factored but not qualifying as a sale, as defined 1n FASE Topic $60, 71 ansfers and Servicing, were pledged as collateral and accounted
for as secured borrowings and recorded 1n the conseolidated balance sheets within ‘Accounts recetvable, net” and  Shor-term debt, including the current
poruon of leng-termn debt

The losses on sales of accounts receivable are recorded 1 the consolidated statements of operations within “Other expense, net " Where the Company
receives a fee to service and monitor these transferred receivables, such fees are sufficient to offset the costs and as such, a sen 1emg asset or habthity 1s not
recorded as a resuit of such activities

Certain of the factliies contan terms that require the Company to share in the credit nsk of the sold recervables The maximum exposures to the Company
associated with these certain facilities” terms were $17 mullion and $21 mullion as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively The tair values of the
exposures to the Company assoctated with these certain facilities’ terms were determined to be immatenal

Inventories The Company values inventory at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined on a first-in, first-out (“FIFO") basss Cost of inventory
includes direct matenals, labor and applicable manufactunng overhead costs The value of inventornes are reduced for excess and obsolete inventones based
on management’s review of on-hand inventones compared to histoncat and estimated future sales and usage

Long-Lived Assets As a result of tresh-start reporting, long-lived asscts such as property, plant and cquipment (PP&E™) that were purchased prior to January 1,
2008 were stated at estimated replacement cost, unless the expected future use of the assets indicated a lower value was appropnate PP&E purchased since
that time are recorded at cost Definite-lived intangible assets have been stated at fair value established at emergence and at cost thereafter Long-lived assets
are penodically reviewed for impairment indicators If impairment indicators exist, the Company performs the required analysis and records an 1mpairment
charge, 1f required, in accordance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360, Properiv Plunt & Equipment If the cartyimg value
of a long-lived asset 1s considered 1mpaired, an imparment charge 1s recorded for the amount by which the cammying value of the long-lived asset exceeds its
fair value Depreciation and amortization 1s computed principally by the straight-line method for financial reporting purposes and by accelerated methods for
income tax purposes

Goodwill As of December 31, 2007, 1n accordance with fresh-stant reporting, goodwill was determined as the excess of reorganization value over amounts
atinbutable te specific tangible and intangible assets, including developed technology and customer relationships Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment
annually as of October 1, or more frequently 1f impaimment indicators exist, in accordance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic
350, Intangthles — Goodwill and Qther This impairment analysis compares the fair values of the Company’s reporting unuts to theur related camying values If
areporting umit’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, the Company must then calculate the reporting unit’s imphed fair value of goodwil! and 1mpairment
charges are recorded for any excess of the goodwll carrying value over the implied fair value of goodwill The reporting units’ fair values are based upon
consideration of vanous valuation methodologies, including projected future cash flows discounted at rates commensurate with the nisks imvolved, guideline
transaction muluples, and multiples of current and future eamings

Trademarks and Brand Names As of December 31, 2007, trademarks and brand names were stated at fair value as a result of fresh-start reporting These
indefinite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment annually as of October 1. or more frequently 1f imparrment indicators exist, 1n accordance with
the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic 350, Inrangibles — Goodwill and Other This umparment analysis compares the fair values of
these assets 1o the related camrying values, and impaiment charges are recorded for any excess of camrying values over fair values These fair values are based
upon the prospective stream of hypothetical after-tax royalty cost savings discounted at rates that reflect the rates of retumn appropnate for these mtangible
assets

Pension and Other Postemployment Obligations Pension and other postemployment benefit costs are dependent upon assumptions used n calculating such
costs These assumptions include discount rates, health care cost trends, expected returns on plan assets and other factors In accordance with US GAAP,
actual results that differ from the assumptions used are accumulated and amortized over future penods and, accordingly, generally affect recognized expense
and the recorded obligation 1n future periods

Revenue Recogmition The Company rccords sales when products arc shipped and the nsks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer, the
sales pnce 1s fixed and determunable, and the collectability of revenue 1s reasonably assured Accruals for sales retumns and other allowances are provided at
point of sale based upon past expenence Adjustments to such retumns and allowances are made as new information becomes available

Rebates The Company accrues for rebates pursuant to specific amangements with certain of its customers, pnmanly in the aftermarket Rebates generally
provide tor pnce reductions based upon the achievement of specified purchase volumes and are recorded as a reduction of sales as eamed by such customers
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Sales and Sales Related Taxes The Company collects and remuts taxes assessed by vanous govemmental authonties that are both imposed on and
concurrent with revenue-producing transactions with its customers These taxes may include, but are not himited to, sales, use, value-added, and some excise
taxes The collection of these taxes 15 reported on a net basis (excluded from revenues)

Shipping and Handling Costs The Company recogmzes shupping and handling costs as incurred as a component of cost of preducts sold m the consolidated
statements of operations

Engincertng and Tooling Costs Pre-production toohing and engineenng costs that the Company will not own and that will be used 1n producing products
under long-term supply amangements are expensed as incurred unless the supply arrangement provides the Company with the noncancelable nght to use the
tools, or the rembursement of such costs 15 agreed to by the customer Pre-production tooling costs that are owned by the Company arc capitalized as part of
machinery and equipment, and are depreciated over the shornter of the tool’s expected hie or the duration of the related program

Research and Development The Company expenses research and development (“R&D") costs as incurred R&D expense, including product engineenng and
validation costs, was $192 mitlion, 5173 milhen and $173 mullion for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 respectively R&D expense s
recorded 1n the consolidated statements of operations within “Selling, generai and admimistrative expenses ™

Advertising Costs Adverusmg and promotion cxpenscs for continuing opcrations are expensed as incurred and were $47 mullion, $41 mullion and $37
million for the years ended December 31, 2014 2013 and 2012, respectively Adverusing and promotion expenses are recorded 1n the consolidated
statements of operations within * Selling, general and administrative expenses

Restructuning The costs contained within “Restructunng expense, net” in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations are compnsed of two types

cmployec costs (principally tetmination benefits) and facihity closure costs Terminatien bencfits are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 712,

Compensation — Nonretirement Postemploy ment Benefits and are recorded when 1t 13 probable that employees will be entitled to benefits and the amounts
can be reasonably estimated Estimates of terrmnation benefits are based on the frequency of past termination benefits, the similanty of benefits under the
current plan and prior plans, and the existence of statutory required mimimum benefits Termination benefits are also accounted for in accordance with FASH
ASC Topie 420, Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations (“FASB ASC 4207), for one-tume termination benefits and are recorded dependent upon future service
requirements Facility closure and other costs are accounted forin accordance with FASB ASC 420 and are recorded when the hability 1s incurred

Foretgn Cuirency Translation Exchange adjustments related to intemational currency transactions and translation adjustments for international subsidianes
whose functional currency 1s the United States dollar (pnincipally those located in highly inflationary economies) are reflected in the consolidated statements
of operations Translation adjustments of international subsidianes for which the local cumency 15 the functional currency are reflected 1n the consolidated
balance sheets as a component of “Accumulated other comprehensive loss ™ Deferred taxes are not provided on translation adjustments as the carmungs of the
subsidianes are considered to be permanently reinvested

Environmental Luabihities The Company recognizes environmental labilites in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 410, Asset Retirement and
Environmental Obligations when a loss 1s probable and reasonably estimable Such lLiabilities are generally not subject to insurance coverage Engineenng
and legal specialists within the Company estimate each environmental obligation based on current law and existing technologies Such estimates are based
pnmanly upon the estimated cost of investigation and remedtation required and the bikelithood that other potentially responsible parties wall be able to fulfill
therr commitments at the sites where the Company may be jointly and severally hiable with such parties The Company regularly evaluates and revises its
estimates for environmental ocbligations based on expenditures against established accruals and the availability ofadditional information

Asset Retvement Obhigations The Company records asset retirement obligations (“*ARO") 1n accordance with FASB ASC 410, Asser Retirement and
Environmental Obligutions The Company’s pnmary ARO activities relate to the removal of hazardous building matenals at its tacilities The Company
records ARO when amounts can be reasonably estimated, typically upon the expectation that facilities may be closed or sotd

Derwvative Financtal Instruments The Company uses wnterest rate swaps, commodity forward contracts and currency swaps to manage volatility of
underlying vxposures The Company recogmizes all of 1ts denvative instruments as either assets or habilities at fawr value The accounting for changes n the
fair valuc (t ¢ gains or losses) of a denvative instrument depends on whether 1t has been designated, and 15 effective, as a hedge and further, on the type of
hedging relationship For those denvative instruments that are designated and quahfy as hedging instruments, a company must designate the hedging
instrurnent, based upon the exposure being hedged as a fair value hedge, cash flow hedge or a hedge of a net mnvestment 1in a foreign operation Gains and
losses related to a hedge are cither recognized in income 1mmediately to offset the gain or loss on the hedged item or are defemred and reported as a
component of “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” and subsequently recogmzed 1n eamings when the hedged item aftects
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eamings The change 1n fair value of the ineffective portion of a financial instrument, determined using the hypothetical denvative method, 1s recognized n
eamings immediately The gain or loss related to financial instruments that are not designated as hedges are recognized immediately 1n eamings Cash flows
related 1o hedging activities are mcluded 1n the operating section of the consolidated statements of cash flows The Company does not hold or 1ssue
denivative financial instruments for trading or speculative pumposes The Company’s objectives for holding denvatives are to minimize nsks using the most
effecuive and cost-efficient methods available

New Accounring Pronouncements

In Apni 2014, the FASB 1ssucd ASU No 2014-8, Preseritution of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plant and Equipment (To pic 360}
Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Enuty This ASU 15 effecuve for disposals that cccur within annual
penods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and intenm penods within annual penods beginning on or after December |5 2015 This ASU elevates the
threshold for a disposal to qualify as discontinued operations and significantly expands the disclosure requirements for transactions that meet the cnitena for
discontinued operations The Company 1s currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on its financial position, results of
operattons, comprehensive income, cash flows and/or disclosures

In May 2014, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2014-9, Revenue fiom Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) This ASU s effective for annual reporting penods
beginming after December 15, 2016, including intenim penods within that reporting penod This ASU clanfies the prnineiples for recogmzing revenue and
provides a common revenue standard for US GAAP and Intermational Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") The Cotnpany 1s cumrently evaluating the
impact that the adoption of this guidance wall have on its financial position, results of operations, comprehensive itncome, cash flows and/or disclosures

In Junc 2314, the FASB 1ssucd ASU No 2014-12, Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718} Accounting for Share-Based Payments When the Terms of
an Award Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved after the Requisite Service Perrod This ASU 1s cffecuve for annual penods and intenm
penods within those annual penods, beginning after December 15,2015 The Company 1s cumently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance
will have on its financial position, results of operanons, comprehensive income, cash flows and/or disclosures

In August 2014, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2014-15, Preseitation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (subtopte 205-40} This ASU 15 effective for
annual pertods ending after December 15, 2016, and for annual penods and intenm penods thereafter, and defines management’s responsibility to evaluate
whether there 1s substantial doubt about an crgamization’s ability to continue as a gowng concern and to provide related footnote disclosures The Company
expects the adoption of this guidance will have ne impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows and
disclosures

In November 2014, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2014-16 Dertvatrves and Hedging (Topic 815} Determimng Whether the Host Contract in a Hybrid Financial
Instrument Issued 1n the Foim of a Share Is More Akin to Debt o1 to Equity This ASU 1s effective for annual reporting penods beginning after December 15

20135, including 1ntenm penods within that reporting pened The Company expects the adoption of this gurdance will have no impact on the Company's
financial position, results of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows and disclosures

In November 2014, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2014-17 Business Combuinatians (Topic 805) Pushdown Accounning This ASU s effective on November 18,
2014 and provides an acquired entity with an option to apply pushdown accounting n 1ts separate financial statements upon occurrence of an event 1n which
an acquirer obtains contro! of'the acquired entity The Company expects the adoption of this guidance will have no impact on the Company's financial
position, results of eperations, comprehensive income, cash flows and disclosures
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2 RESTRUCTURING

The Company s restructunng acuivities are undertaken as necessary to execute management's strategy and streamline operations, consolidate and take
advantage of available capacity and resources, and ultimately achieve net cost reductions Restructunng activities inciude efforts to integrate and rationalize
the Company’s businesses and to relocate manufactunng operations to best cost manufacturing locations

The costs contained within * Restructuning expense, net™ 1n the Company’s consolidated statements of operations contain two types employee costs
(pnincipally termination benefits) and facility closure and other costs Termunation benefits are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC Tepic 712,
Compensatton — Nonretirement Postemplovment Benefits, and are recorded when 1t 15 probable that employees will be entitled to benefits and the amounts
can be reasonably estimated Estimates of termination benefits are based on the frequency of past termination benefits, the simulanty of benefits under the
current plan and pnor plans, and the existence of statutery required munimum benefits Termunation benefits are also accounted for in accordance with FASB
ASC Topic 420, Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations (* FASB ASC 420™), for one-time termnation benefits and are recorded dependent upon future service
requirements Facility closure and other costs are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC 420 and are recorded when the liability 1s incurred

Estimates of restructunng charges are based on information available at the time such charges are recorded In centain countnies where the Company operates,
statutory requirements include involuntary termination benefits that extend several years into the future Accordingly, severance payments continue well past
the date of temnation at many intemnational locations Thus restructuning programs appear to be ongoing when 1n fact, fermnatiens and other activities
have been substantially completed

Restructunng opportunities include potential plant closures and employee headcount reductions 1n vanous countries that require consultation with vanous
parties including but not liumited to, unions/works councils, local govemnments and/or customers The consultation process can take a significant amount of
time and impact the final cutcome and timuing The Company's policy 15 to record a provision for quahfying restructunng costs in accordance with the
applicable accounting guidance when the outcome of such consultations becomes probable

Management cxpects to finance its restructuring programs through cash gencrated from 1ts ongoing operations or through cash available under its existing
credit facility subject to the terms of applicable covenants Management does not expect that the execution of these programs will have an adverse impact on
1ts hquidity position

The following table 1s a summary of the Company’s consolidated restructunng Liabiliues and related activity for2014,2013 and 2012 by reporting segment

Total
Reporting Total
Powertrain Motorparts Sepment Corporate Company
(Mlllio ns of Dollars)

Balancc atJanua.ryl 20]2 T/ o7 - "$ﬁ-ﬁ _—‘6 _‘5 T 1 b ) }_— $—-— Q-I‘“*h N N 3'3

Provisions o T T T T e ~ 16 22 T a4 T T 26
CRevemals " T e { (1)]

" Payments T M @) ay @) . (s)
. B Recluss:ﬁcnm;ns tgﬁenswinvlliaiblrljgty: o _—_‘N_ o ;:_ = i ‘(5) T (5) ST (6ﬂ

Balance at December 31,2012 4 5 9 3 12
o Powwons 2 % 40 e s
Reversals 3) o — (3} ) (0 “4)
e T T T T gy TG e T w T aw]

Ealance at December3l 2013 8 14 22 2 24
B - R SR S
Reversals S — W — W
Thmes T T T & T ew T s T @ el
Foreign Currency ) — ) — )
BT;Ianceat Dccembcr3l 2014 S 3 36 3 16 § 52§ 1 h 53 |
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The following table provides a summary of the Company’s consolidated restructunng habilities and related activity for cach type of exit cost for 2014, 2013
and 2012 As the table mndicates, facility closure costs are typically paid within the year of incumence

Employee Facility Closure and
Costs Other Exit Costs Total
{(Millions of Dollars)
Balanceathanvary 12002 s o8 7 — 8]
Provisions c 25 1 26
B ¢ ) Y )]
) Payments CT T C i - (14) (n (1%
" Reclassificanon to pension bty T T T T % 0 = )]
Balance at December 31 2012 ' 12 — 12
. Provisions B _: ,; - ) '_ } : __:“ '_”' ) __ o :' B ) R 2 _‘ . —_3 B o 7 44“E
Reversals 4) — @)
Payments T o 25) I 28)
Balance at December 31,2013 24 — 24
CPovsons 0 T . Tm T Tl T ]
) l—lever::.al—s ’ (1) — i (4D
Cbymens . @ e Y]
Foreign Currency 4 — (4)
‘Balance at December 31 2014 S T T T T T 51§ 2 3 53 |

Due to the inherent uncertainty mvelved 1n esimating restructunng expenses, actual amounts paid for such activities may differ from amounts mitially
cstimated Accordingly, the Company reversed $1 mullion, $4 million and $1 mullion of previously recorded habiliies 1n 2014 2013 and 2012, respectively
Such reversals result from changes 1n estimated amounts 1o accomplish previously planned activities, changes in expected (based on historical practice)
outcome of negotiations with labor umens, which reduced the level of onginally committed acuions, newly implemented government employment programs,
which lowered the expected cost, and changes 1n approach to accomplish restructunng activities

Activities under Restructuring Pragrams

The Company has imitiated approved restructunng activities as part of a broader ininative to improve operating performance and reduce cost

The following table provides a summary of the Company’s restructunng acuivities which commenced n the first quarter of 2013 and through December 31,
2014 The Company will continue to evaluate its activities and opportunities to align its business with executive management's strategy

Total Estimated
Expected Costs in Costs tn Additional
Costs 2013 2014 Costs
N ~ o N {Millions of Daollars) _ .
Employeecosts 8l s 38 8 7 % 13 }
Facility closure and other exit costs ) 7 1 6 —
3 134§ 39 5 82 3 13 |
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3. ADJUSTMENT OF ASSETS TO FAIR VALUE
The Company recorded total impairment charges for the years ended December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012 as follows

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Mullions of Dollars)
Goodwll T TT TS T ST mmamomeoommp s g T g
Property, plant and equipment _ o ] 43
Investments 1n nonconsolidated affiliates o A_i i o ) 5 - T _2}
Othekrmdeﬁr;ne-lwed 1nta'ng;b1e-asse{§ T ; N o T o — i - T a6
: __ / o 7 ~--— i N u_ -_ :m -w_ $ 144 3 8 § 187 |

Impairments of goodwill and other indefinite-hived intangible assets are discussed further 1n Note 8, Fuir Value Measurements and Note 11, Goodwill and
Orirer Intangible Assets

The Company recorded impatrment charges to adjust preperty plant and equipment to their fair values in accerdance with the subsequent measurement

provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360, Property Plant & Equipment Adjustments of property, plant and equipment to fair value are discussed further ;n Note 8,
Fair Vafue Measuremenis

1he impairment of the Company's investment 1n non-censolidated affiliates 1s discussed furtherin Note 12, Investment in Non-conselidated Affiliates
The impairment of property, plant and equipment by reporting segment for the years ended December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012 are as follows

Year Ended December 31

414 013 2012
(Millions of Dollars)
Powettran - Ts_ s ss o9
Motorp—art's— B T T T . e . h R o ) :;23
Comorte  _ — T T I [
3 19 3§ 8§ 5 43

The 2012 property plant and equipment impaiment excludes 37 million related to discontinued operations Discentinued operations are further discussed 1n
Note 6, Discontinued Operations
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4 OTHEREXPENSE, NET

The specific components of “Other expense, net” are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
{Mullions of Dollars)

Legal separation costs —- ) _k ) L: - i L o “_ 5 _n : 10 s __ — 3 i o=
Foreign curtency exchange o .. D a6 {18}
Losses on sales ofaccountnrecenwabie:s __A ﬁ _ ) -." T ; o ) __(8) o - m v ; B N (ﬂl
Thurd party royalty incomne 1 8 . 3
Unrealized gan on hédgq‘t_nst;'u_fnér{ts_— T B ’ o _‘ ) N B U_ R ___ ) o — —*}
Adjustment of Chapter 1| accrial - _ - . 4 —
oher T 0 o 4 2 @'

3 (11} § (3) § (20)

Foretgn currency evchange The Company recogmzed $7 million, $10 mullion and $18 million in foreign currency exchange losses during the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively Of the $18 mullion 1n foreigh cumrency exchange losses dunng the year ended December 31, 2012,510
mulhion related to unrealized losses associated with outstanding foreign cumrency hedge contracts that settled dunng 2013 See Note 7, Frnancial Instruments,
for further details

5 ACQUISITIONS

On May 1, 2014, the Company completed the Aflinia chassis business acquisition This business serves leading US aflermarket customers with private label
chassis product lines and will allow the Company to broaden its product offenng, provide operational synergies and better service customers globally The
purchase price was $149 mullion, net of acquired cash The Company paid $140 million in the second quarter 0of 2014 and $9 mulhion 1n the third quarter of
2014

A valuation of the assets from the Affinia chassis business acquisition resulted 1n $71 milhon allocated to tangibte net assets $26 mullion allocated to
goadwill, and $51 mullion allocated to other intangible assets based on estimated fair values as of the acgmsition date as determmined by third panty valuation
specialists The valuation of assets was performed utilizing cost, income and market approaches

On July L1, 2014, the Company completed the purchase of certain business assets of the Honeywell brake component business including 1wo recently
established manufactunng facilities in China and Romania which substantially strengthens the manutactunng and engineenng capabilitics of the Company's
curmrent global braking portfolie The business was acquired through a combination of asset and stock purchases for a base purchase pnce of $169 million and
a provisional estimate of $15 milhion subject to certain customary postclosing adjustments, conungent constderation and other habihities

Anvaluation of the assets from the Honeywell brake component business acquasition was performed utilizing cost, income and market approaches resulting 1n
$184 mulhion allocated to tangible net assets

The following table summanzes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and habilities assumed at the acquisition date The Company 15 1n the process

of finalizing cerain customary post<closing adjustments which could have an effect on the third-party valuations of certain tangible assets thus, the
provisional measurements of net assets are subject to change
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Preliminary Measurement Pernod Estimated Fair Value as
Estimated Fair Value Adjustments of December 31, 2014
(Mulons of Dollars)
Cash, net of assumed debt ) 6 3 — 3 6
Accounts receivable,net I U — T 7 e ]
Inventory, net T 77 @ 75
Property, plantand equipmentnet A4 s T TS
Accounts payable {107y — o aon
‘Acquired postemploymentbenetis T T T ew T @y T ay]
Other net assets o . e (4) T {2) N - _—EG)
TotalWdentifiable netassets :__ e 5 184 3 — 3 184 |

The mitial allocations of purchase price were recorded at the estimated fair value of agsets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon the best information
available to management The measurement penod adjustments reflect additional information obtained to record the fair value of certain assets acquired and
liabihines assumed based on facts and circumstances existing as of the acquisition date

The following proforma results for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 20i3 assumes the Affimia chassis business acquisition and the purchase of
Honeywell's brake component business already occurmred as of the beginming of 2013 and 1s inclusive of provisional purchase pnce adjustments The
proforma results are not necessanly indicative of the results that actually would have been obtained

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013
(Miilions of Dollars, Except Per Share

Amounts)
) ) o o o e _ o L Unfudlted
Netsales - B T T T s 7673 8 7510
I e e = - e e e e - e e - I . R |
Net income {loss) attnbutable to Federal-Mogul 3 (172 3 11
Eamings (loss) pt;,r share attributable to Fezleral-Mogul-basw and_&llutéd o T o ) s (1—14) 3 ) 009

Dunng the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company recorded §1 million in transaction related expenses asseciated with the Affimia chassis business
acquisition and $6 million 1in transaction related expenses associated with the Honeywell brake component acquisition Dunng the year ended December 31,
2013, the Company recorded $1 mithion in transaction related expenses associated with the Afhima chassis business acquisition and $3 mullion n transaction
related expenses associated with the Honeywell brake component acquisition All of these transaction related expenses are recorded 1n selling, general and
administrative expenses within the consohdated statement of operations

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In connection with 1ts strategic planning process, the Company assesses its operations for market position, product technology and capability, and
prefitability Those businesses not core to the Company’s long-term pertfolio may be considered for divestiture or other exit activities

Dunng March 2013, the Company’s Powertrain Segment completed the divestiture of its sintered components operations located 1n France This disposal
resulted 1n a $48 million net loss (no mcome tax 1mpact) which 1s mcluded tn * Loss frem discontinued operations, net of tax™ duning the year ended
December 31,2013
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During June 2013, the Company’s Powertrain Segment completed the divestiture of 1ts connceting rod manufactunng facility located in Canada and its
camshaft foundry located in the United Kingdom This disposal resulted m a $6 mallton net loss {no mceme tax impact), which 1s icluded 1n “Loss from
discentinued operations, net of tax * dunng the year ended December 31, 2013

Dunng September 2013 the Company completed the divestiture of its fuel pump business This disposal resulied 1n a $7 mullion net gain (inclusive of 8 $2
mullion tax benefit), which 1s included 1n ‘Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax™ dunng the year December 31, 2013 As certain empleyees at the
fuel pump manufactunng facility participated in the Company’s US Welfare Benefit Plan, the Company had this plan re-measured due to 1ts curtailment
implicanons The termunation of those employees and the related ceduction o the average remawning future service penod to the full eligibility date of the
remaining active plan participants in the US Welfare Benefit Plan tnggered a $19 millien OPEB curtailment gam which 15 included n "Loss on sale of
discontinued operations” during the year ended December 31,2013

Operating results related to discontinued operations are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012
(Mullions of Dollars)
Net sales $ 119 3 220
Costofprdusissld T T T T totm T emm s n T g0 T T )
Gross profit ’ o — )
Selling. g,el'.eral and admlmstmuve exbea"sé; -:“:"m: —w jm T W:__-—_ jimw _—w _ jﬂ o o u@_)i_—___ o (9)]
Adjustment of assets to fasr value o ) o a o T . L o - ’ N
Other_mconme iexpcnsc} ne; T _::_m m_ﬂ:j:__:::____ i ;— W:-“_': i :- B (l)!
Operaung Toss (no income tax I-mp-El-Ct)— (8) (19)
Losson bale ofd:scommued operanons (net of tax bcm;ﬁt of$2 mllhon fortbe year ended Decembcr3[ 2013) j ﬁ v_ 7_-‘ T (I?)j —
Loss ﬁom dlsconunucd operattons, net of tax g (52} § (19)

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Commodity Price Risk

The Company's productton processes are dependent upon the supply of certain raw matenals that are exposed to pnce fluctuations on the open market The
pnmary purpose of thc Company s commodity price forward contract activity 15 to manage the volatility associated with forecasted purchases The Company
monitors its commodity price nsk exposures regularly to maximuze the overall effectiveness of 1ts commodity forward contracts Principal raw matenals
hedged include natural gas, copper, nickel, ti, zinc, high-grade aluminum and aluminum alloy Forward contracts are used to mitigate commodity pnee nsk
associated with raw matenals, genemlly related to purchases forecast for up to fifteen months 1n the future

Infonmation regarding the Company’s outstanding commodity price hedge contracts 1s as follows

December 31
2014 2013
o {Mllions of Dellars)
Gombimednotionalvalue ~ T 7T T T o omm o et TSR Ty
Combmed notional value demgnated'as hedging instruments i T ’ ‘36 51
Unreahzed net (loss} recorded 1n "Accumulated-c;gﬂermcompx;l;:nsn‘_eufoss"w_: u_"_ T T o T ___ - : ’ —: 6) o :- ) ’ t (]‘)‘I

Substantially all of the commodity prnce hedge contracts mature within one year

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company manufactures and sells its products 1n North Amenca, South America, Asia, Europe and Affica As a result, the Company's financial results
could be significantly affected by factors such as changes n foreign cumency exchange rates or weak economic conditions n foreign markets in which the
Company manufactures and sells its products The Company’s operating results are primanty exposed to changes in exchange rates between the U S dollar
and European currencies
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The Company generally tries to use natural hedges wathin 1ts foreign currency activities, including the matching of revenues and cests, to minimze foreign
cumency nsk Where natural hedges are not in place, the Company considers managing certain aspects of its foreign curmrency activities and larger
transactions through the use of foreign cumency options or forward contracts Pnncipat currencies hedged have histoncally mncluded the eure, British pound
and Polish zloty Foreign cumency torwards are also used 1n conjunction with the Company's commodity hedging program In order to obtain entical terms
match for commodity exposure, the Company engages the use of foreign exchange contracts

Information regarding the Company’s outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts ts as follows

December 31
2014 2013
(Mallions of Dollars)
Combmednowonalvalee =~~~ s =8 1]
Combined notional value des_lgnatcd as hedging instruments — 12

omprehenswve loss® T LT T )

Unzeahized net (loss) recorded 1 “Accumulated other comprehensive loss™

The Company does not hold any foreign currency pnice hedge contracts as of December 31,2014

During 2013, foreign currency contracts not designated as hedging instruments were entered into by the Company in order to offset fluctuations in
consolidated eamings caused by changes in currency rates used to translate camings at forcign subsidiancs into US dollars over 2013 These contracts were
not designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes and were marked to market through the income statement

Interest Rute Risk

The Company, during 2008, entered 1nto a senes of five-year interest rate swap agreements with a total notional value of $1 19¢ mullion to hedge the
vartablity of mterest payments associated with 11s variable-rate term loans As of December 31,2013, all of these five-year interest rate swap agreements had
expired

Other

The Company presents its denvative positions and any related matenal collateral under master netting agreements on a net basis For denvatives designated
as cash flow hedges, changes 1n the tume value are excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness Unrealized gains and losses associated with
ineffective hedges, determined using the hypothctical denvahive method, are recognized 1n “Other (expense) ircome, net” Denvative gains and losses
included 1n “Accumulated other comprehensive loss' for effective hedges are reclassified into operations upon recognition of the hedged transaction
Denvative gains and losses associated with undesignated hedges are recogmzed in “Other (expense) income, net” for outstanding hedges and “Cost of
products sold” or "Other {expense) income, net” upon hedge matunty

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentiaily subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist pnmartly of accounts recervable and cash tnvestments

The Company’s customer base includes virtually every significant global light and commercial vehicle manufacturer and a large number of distributors,
installers and retatlers of automotive aftermarket parts The Company's credit evaluation process and the geographical dispersion of sales transactions help to
mitigate credit nsk concentration No individual customer accounted tor more than 6% of the Company’s direct sales during 2014 The Company has two
Motorparts customer that accounts for 1 8% ofthe Company’s net accounts receivable balance as of December 31,2014 The Company requires placement of
cash in financial institutions evaluated as mghly creditworthy
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

The following table discloses the fair values and balance sheet locations of the Company's denivative mstruments, all of which were designated as cash flow
hedging instruments

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet December 31, December 31,
Location December 31, 20014  December 31, 2013 Lacaion 2014 2013
(Milhons of Dollars)
Other current Other current A
Commodtity contract
_ -ommodily contracts  lmbilmes 1 1 labiltes @ ;)J
Foreign cuirency contracts Other current
& Y habilities — - — (1)
$ 1 s 1 5 2 s 3) |

The following tables disclose the cffect of the Company’s denvative instruments on the consolidated statement of opemtions for the year ended
December 31, 2014, ail of which were designated as hedging instruments

Amount of
Gain (Laoss) Location of Gam (Loss)
Recognized in Loeation of Gawn (Lass) Amount of {Loss) Recognized tn Income on Amount of Gan Recognized in
OClon Reclassified Reclassificd Dernvatives Income on Derivatives
Dervatives frem AQCI into from AQCIinto (Ineffective Pertion and {Ineffective Portien and
Derivatives Desighated as (Effective Income (Effective Income (Effective Amount Excluded from Amount Excluded from
Hedging Instruments Portion) Portion) Portion) Effectn eness Testing) Effectiveness Testing)
{Millions of Dollars)
Commodity contracts Other expense, net
o o % = Costofproductsgeld § ~~ — - § 1
Foreign cumrency
contracts — Cost ot products sold (1) —
$ — $ 1) 3 11

The following tables disclose the effect of the Company's denvalive mstruments on the consohidated statement of operations for the year ended
December31, 2013

Amount of
Gam (Loss)
Recognized in Location of Gan Amount of
OClon (Loss) Reclassified {Loss) Reclassified
Dernyatives from AOCI into from AQCL into
{Effective Income (Effective [ncome (Effective
Dervatives Designated as Hedging Instruments Portion) Portion) Portion)
(Vialhons of Dollars)
0 O [ J— T T
Interest rate swap contracts $ 1 Interest expense, net $ 9) |
Commodity contracts (N Cost of products sold {5)
Foreign currency contracts o (1} ___ Cost of products sold —
$ (7 $ (14
Location of Loss Amount of Loss
Recognized in Recognized
Income on Income on
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments Dernvatives Dervatives
(Milhions of Dollars)
Foreign currency contracts A o R Interest expense, net $ o (1} E
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The following tables disclose the effect of the Company’s denvative instruments on the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31,2012

Amount of
Gain (Loss)
Recogmized Location of Gam Amount of Gain
mOClon {Leoss) Reclassified (Loss) Reclassified
Dernvatives frem AOCI into from AQCl into
(Effective Income (Elfective Income (Effective
Derivatives Designated as Hedging lnstruments Portion) Portion) Portion)
{Millions of Dollars)
Interest rate swap contracts i _ % (@) Interest expense, net ) (38} J
Commodity contracts 7 Cost of products sold (10)
Foreign currency contracts o _ 2) Cost of products sold I ]
3 1 $ 47
Location of Lass Amount of Loss
Recognzed i Recognized in
Income on Income on
Derivatlves Not Designated as Hedging Instruments Derivatives Derivatives
(Milllons of Dollars)
Foreign currency contracts } o Interest expense, net o5 i {10y ]

8 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB ASC Tepic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“FASB ASC 820™), clanfies that fair value 15 an exat pnice, representing the amount that
waould be recerved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a habality 1n an orderly transaction between markel participants As such, fair value 15 a market-based
measurement that should be detennined based upon assumputions that market panticipants would use 1n pricing an asset or liabihity As a basis for considenng
such assumptions, FASB ASC 820 establishes a three-tier tair value hierarchy, which prniontizes the inputs used 1n measuning faur value as follows

Level 1 Observable inputs such as quoted pnces in active markets
Level 2 Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable esther directly or indirectly, and
Level 3 Unobservable mputs in which there 1s little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop 1ts own assumptions

An asset’s ar liability’s fair value measurement level within the farr value hierarchy 1s based on the lowest level of any mput that 1s significant to the fair
value measurement Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and munimize the use efunobservable inputs

Assets and habihities measured at fair value are based on one or more of the following three valuation techniques noted in FASB ASC 820

A Market opproach Pnices and other relevant information generated by market transactions mvolving 1dentical or comparable assets or
liabilities

Coust approach Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost)

C Income appreach Techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based upan market expectations (including present
value techniques, option-pncing and excess earmnings models)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Assets and Liabihties remeasured and disclosed at fair value on a recurnng basis at December 31, 2014 and 2013 are set forth in the table below

Asset Valuation
(Liabilty) Level 2 Techmgue

(Millions of Dollars)

December3t 2014 T T ™

Commodty contracts 3 1y s {1) c

December31,2013 T L
Commodity contracrs 8 Ty s wm_ ¢ ]

Foreign currency contracts (1} 1) c

The Company calculates the fair value of its commodity contracts and foreign currency contracts using quoted commodity forward rates and quoted curmrency
forward rates, respectively, to calculate forward values, and then discounts the forward values The discount rates for all denivauve contracts are based on
quoted bank deposit rates

The following table presents the Company’'s defined benefit plan assets measured at fair value on a recumng basis as of December 31,2014

Valuation
Total Levell Level 2 Level 3 Technique

(Muiions of Dollars)

US.Plans. . -~ . e . e e 2
Cash o $ a4 —S_ v44mm$m I m}o—‘ﬂ — A
Investments with regisiered 1avestment compames . ________ _ __ _ ______ ___|
Equtty secuntics T ) -M‘3l4 T 314 — R A
___Puedmcomeseeunties T 0 TTie6 a6 - — A ]
Real estate and other - ’ i s 25 [ A
Equity secunties " T T T 0 o — T T A ]
Debtsecunnesﬂ T N o o T
©Copomeandother T T T T Twm =" T au = B ]

__G(_J\_'_emngntm_ e L 2 & 4 — A

Hedge funds 91 — — 91 AL
5 912 5 79 3 25 3 91

Noa-US Planss T

Insurance contracts $ 41 s — 8 — 3 41 B

Investments with registered mnvestment companies J
FMxed income secuntics 10 10 — — A
Equity secunties L ) | e — A }

Comrpf)[ate bonds 2 — 2 — B
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The foilowing table summanzes the activity forthe U S plan assets classified 1n level 3

Foreign
Purchases, Currency
Balance at Net Realized! and Transfers Exchange Balance at
January 1, Unrealized Settiements, Sales, Into {Out) of Rate December 31,
2014 Gains (Loss) Net Net Level 3 Movements 2014
B N R _ - R o {\Illl_ll_ms_ofnlaollan)_ o
Assets _ ) - _ ) L —]
Hedge funds and other $ 85 3% 6 3 47 3 47 3 — 5 — 8 g1
The following table summanzes the activity for the non-U § plan assets classified mn level 3
Foreign
Purchases, Currency
Balance at Net Realized/ and Transfers Exchange Balance at
January 1, Unrealized Settlements, Sales, Into (Out) ol Rate December 31,
014 Gains (Loss) Net Net Level 3 Movemeats 2014
. - . {Mullions of Dellars)
Asses e e el ——— Lo
Insurance contracts $ 44  § 2 0% 6 3 (5) 3 — 3 ® 3 41
The iollowing table presents the Company’s defined benefit plan assets measured at fair value on a recurnng basis as of December 31, 2013
Valuation
Lotal Level l Level 2 Level 3 Techmque
~ B ) o o . B (Mallions of Dollars)
US.Plans _ T o o o ) ]
Cash o } _ S_U . 33 MSM N 337 3 — % — A
Investments with reglstenad mvestment compnmes ) o . L o
Equity secunties L 347 347 i _ —
. Pixedmcome secunves 0 BS__BS = T é ]
Real estate and other 23 23 J
Equity secenyes 242 LM == A .q]
Debt secunities ) ) ~ B . i
. Cmporate nnd otherw e - - ____2% B e @__,__]
Government 22 14 8 — A
Hedge funds ) T o 85 — — 85 AC ]
$ 909 % 794 3 30 § 85
Non-U 8. Plans. ]
Insurance contracts . 44 3 — 3 — 3 44 B
Investments wnh registered investment companies e o o ) ]
Fixed tncome secunties 7 7 — — A
__ Equity secunues o L L 2 2 . —_ e A i
Compomatebonds ] i 2 — — B
R ) $ 55 s 9 3 $ 44 j
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The following table summanzes the activity forthe US plan assets classified in level 3

Foregn
Purchases, Currency
Balance at Net Realized/ and Transfers Exchange Balance at
January 1, Unrealized Settlements, Sales, Into {Out) of Rate December 31,
2013 Gains (Lass) Net Net Level 3 Mo ements 2013
(Millions of Dollars)
Assets _]
Hedge funds and other $ 14 5 il 8 83 % 23) § — 3 — 5 g5
The following table summanzes the activity for the non-U § plan assets classified in level 3
Foreign
Net Purchases, Currency
Balance at Realized/ and Transfers Exchange Balance at
January 1, Unrealized Settlements, Sales, Into {(Out} Rate December 31,
2013 Gnins {Loss) Net Net of Level 3 Movements 2013
{Millions of Dollars)
Assets ) . L o o -}
Insurance contracts $ 42 3 1 3 6 3 ©) 3§ — 5 [ 44
US Plan

As of December 31, 2014, plan assets were comprised of 60% equity investments, 23% fixed income investments, and 17% 1n other investments which
mclude hedge funds Approximately 76% of the US plan assets were 1nvested 1n actively managed investment funds The Company’s mvestment strategy
includes a target asset allocation of 50% equity investments, 25% fixed mcome investments and 25% tn other investment types including hedge funds

Investments with registered imvestment compantes, common and preferred stocks, and govemnment debt securities are valued at the closing price reported on
the active market on which the funds are traded Corporate debt secunties are valued by third-party pncing sources Hedge funds and collective trusts are
valued at net asset value per share

Non-US Plans

The insurance contracts guarantee a minimum rate of retum The Company has no input into the investment strategy of the assets underlying the contracts,
but they arc typrcally heavily invested in actuve bond markets and arc highly regulated by local faw

Asscts and habilities measured at fair valuc on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2014 and 2013 arc sct forth 1n the table below

Asset Valuation
(Liabudity) Level 3 {Loss) Technrque

December 31 2014 T T

Goodwill . I N 2 S 1200 c
Property, plant and equpment . 3% 38 49 ¢ ]
Investments 1n non-::ongahdmed affiliates 10 10 (5) C

December 31 2013 _ ) B
Property, plant and equipment _ b3 55 3 C Il

- - - iy _—— _—

xrs
h
wn
(33

One ofthe Company’s reporting units with goodwill of $157 mullion recorded an impaimment charge of $120 milhon which reduced the implied fair value of
goodwill to $37 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2014 The impaimment charge was recorded within “Adjustment of assets to fair value™ The
estimated fair values were deterruned based upon consideration of vanous valuation methodologies, including projected tuture cash flows discounted at
rates commensurate with the nsks involved, gurdeline transaction multiples, and multiples of current and future camings

73




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Property, plant and equipment wath & carrying value of $57 million were wnitten down to thewr fair value of $38 million, resulting 1n an impairment charge of
$19 mullion, which was recorded within “Adjustment of assets to fair vatue™ for the year ended December 31, 2014

Investments tn non-conselidated affiliates with a carrying value of $15 nullion were wntten down to their fair value of $10 million resulting 1n a $5 mullion
impatrment for the year ended December 31, 2014 The Company's investment 1n non-consolidated affiluates 1s discussed further in Note 12, fnvestment tn
Nen-consohidared Affilates

Property, plant and equipment with a camrying value of 363 million were wntten down to their farr value of $55 milhon, resulting 1n an impainment charge of
$8 mulhon which was recorded within “Adjustment of assets to fair value™ for the year ended Decerber 31 2013

¢ INVENTORIES

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost 15 detenmined by the first-in, first-out (* FIFO”) method at December 31,2014 and 2013 Inventones
are reduced by an allowance for excess and obsolete iInventones based on management’s review of on-hand inventones compared to histoncal and estimated
future sales and usage

Net inventones consist of the following

December 31 December 31
2014 13
{Mullions of Dollars)

Raw matenals $ 232 % 207
Wox'k-m:pmces{ : - T -_ i ) ) N_A _; i m_ i :. - ﬁw_ ) - W_Mj_ o 171 ) :: 1“60_}
Fimished pr(;ducl; _- - - o 934 819
Tt T haw]
Inventory valuation allowance e S . o } {122) (118)

o 3 1215 § 1068

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT

As a result of fresh-start reporting, PP&E that were purchased prior to January 1 2008 were stated at estimated replacement cost, unless the expected future
use of the assets indicated a lower value was appropriate PP&E purchased since that time are recorded at cost Depreciation expense for the years ended
December31,2014,2013 and 2012 was $285 mullion, $247 million and $236 million, respectively

PP&E consist of the following

December 31 December 31
Useful Life 2014 2013
(Mullions of Dollars)

Land B — % 215 % 219
Blllldl!mlg‘g and bmléi”;l:léimpruven;engs o _ - 7 N - IO-;!? years :_ } T s1 - ‘ } ) _:195 ]

Machinery and equipment 3-12 years 2,832' 2662
o N T S X7
chcumu]ated depreciation o (1,358)' (1,338)
“ i S 2,160 § 2038
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The Company leases PP&E used in 1ts operations Future minimum payments under non-cancelable opetating lcases with initial or remaining terms of more
than one year are as follows

Mulhons of Dollars

ST 2015 a1
2016 T a0
BT St 11
o - w018 20
Ll hwe T T T
Thereafter 44
e TS

Total rental expense under operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was$70 million, $63 million and $55 nullion,
respectively, exclusive of property taxes, insurance and other occupancy costs generally payable by the Company

11 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
At December 31,2014 and 2013, goodwill and other indefinite-fived intangible assets consist of the following

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrving Accumulated Carrving Carrymg Accumulated Carrymg
Amount Impairment Amount Amount Impairment Amount
(Millfons of Dollars)
Goedwill s 390 8 T @0 s 700 s rae2 s 7o) s 7o2]
Trademarks and bran_d names ~ L 425 (198) 227 _ 423 i (198) 225
- s 1816 s (838) $ 928 § 1785 § (768) $ 1,017 ]
At December 31,2014 and 2013, defimite-lived intangible assets consist of the following
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrving Carrying Accumulated Carrywng
Amopunt Amortuation Amount Amount Amortization Amount
{Millions of Dollars)
Developed technology S 1t6 § (73 $ 43 s 116 8 ¥ s 53]
Customer relationstips. N -7 503 (287) 3 555 Topsy 303
Ty 714 $ (360) $ 354§ 671 % (315) § 356 |
The Company's net goodwill balances by reporting segment as of December 31,2014 and 2013 are as follows
December 31 December 31
014 2013
(Mullions of Dollars)
Powertrain 3 490 % 487
Mowompans ™ T T T 0 T T T D e T ses ]
3 701 % 792
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The Company’s net trademarks and brand names balances by reporting segment as of December 31, 204 and 2013 are as follows

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
o B (Millions of Dollars)
Motorpants o o s w3 s T 222
Powcnravm ~ - . . - - - - - 4 3
o ) T 227§ 225 |

The following 15 a rollforward of the Company’s goodwill and other intangible assets (net) for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Tatal
Goodwill
and
I'rademarks Indefinite- Definite-
and Lived Lived
Goodwill Brand Names Intangibles Intangibles
o . o o o . L (MlllimE o}' I!ollqus) ~ .
(B_algncnc at Balance at January 1,2013 oL L £ i "787 $“ 232 % 1,01_9 i $ o 408]
Acquisition and purchase accounting adjustments N L B — 8 o 3)
Disposiions B ) . o L o 3y o i (10) . 2y
Amortization expense i L o —_ — — 47
Balance at December 31,2013 o L o 192 ) o3 Loz 356 J
Impairments o e (IZO)A } —_ (120) -
_ Acqusition and purchase accounting adjustments 32 3 35 ___5}_]
Dispositions i ) o o _ - = = ()
_Amortizattonexpepse = = (_‘-_19)]
Foreign currency o L 3) (1) “) (4)
Balance at December 31,2014 ) o o o 8 701 % 227 % 928 § 354 |
Goodwill

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350, Intangibies — Goodwill and Other, goodwall, and any other intangible asset having an indefinite useful Life, must
be reviewed for impainnent annually, or more frequently if events and circumstances arise that suggest the asset may be impaired The Company conducts 1ts
review for goodwill impairments on October | of each year Goodwill impairment testing s performed at the reporting unit level The fair value of each
reporting urt s determined and compared to the carrying value Ifthe camrying value exceeds the fair value, then possible goodwill impairment may exist
and further evaluation 15 required  Indefimite-lived ntangible assets are tested for impaimment by companng the fair value to the camying value If the
carrying value excceds the tair value, the asset 1s adjusted to fair value

As part of its annual goodwill impairment test, the Company noted impairment indicators existed n one reporing unit within the Moterparts segment
Among other factors, this reporting umit expenenced lower than expected profits and cash flows resulung from decreases 1n volumes and pricing pressure
from customers towards the cnd of 2014 As z result of these impairment indrcators, the Company concluded that there was also a potential impaimment of its
long-lived assets and definite-lived itangible assets These impairment tests were performed before the goodwill umpairment test, and an impairment loss
related to long-lived assets of $7 mullion was recognized pnor to goodwill being tested for impairment The Company then tested goodwil] for impairment
and determuned the carrying value of one reporting unit within the Motorparts segment exceeded 1ts farr value Accordingly, as part of a second step of the
goodwill impairment test the Company made a preliminary conclusion that the carrying amount of the reporting units’ goodwill exceeded the implied fair
value of that goodwill and an impaiment loss of $120 mullien was recognized for the year ended December 31,2014 Due to the complexity of the second
step of the goodwiil impayrment test, the Company expects to finalize its assessment dunng the first quarter of 2015 Any resulting difference in the amount
of the impairment will be adjusted at that ime
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Effective September 1, 2012, the Company re-segmented 1ts business Given the business realignments that occumed due to this resegmentation and the fact
that some reporting units contaning goodwill under the former segmentation were being divided within the new Company structure thus requinng the
Company to determuine the relative fair value of these divided reporting units in order to allocate goodwill, the Company deemed 1t prudent to perform an
intenm goodwill impairment test in accordance with FASB ASC 350 As a result ot this intenm testing, one divided reporting umit that received a relative fair
value goodwall allocation of $3 muilion had a camying value in excess of fair value, thus requinng the Company to recognize a full impairment charge of $3
mitlion in the third quarter of 2012

In the second quarter of 2042, the Company determined that goodwill impaimment indicators existed 1n the Company’s fction reporting umit, including
lower than expected profits and cash flows due to continued lower aftermarket volumes, further product mix shifls and pressure on margins In response to
these trends, the Company’s board of directors approved a restructunng plan to reduce or elimmnate capacity at several high cost facilities and transfer
production to lower cost locations The fiiction reporting unit goodwill was tested for impaiment 1n accordance with the FASB ASC 350 dunng the second
quarter ot 2012 The fair value ot fiction reporting unit did not support the recorded goodwill and accordingly the Company recognized a full impairment
charge of $91 muilion 1n the second quarter of 2012

Given the complexity of the calculation, the Company had not finalized Step 2" of its annual goodwill impaimment assessment for the year ended December
31, 2011 pner to filing its annual repert on Form 10-K. The goodwill impairment charge recognized duning the fourth quarter of 2011 was $259 mallion
Dunng the seccond quarter of 2012, the Company completed this assessment, and recorded an additional $1 million goodwill impairment charge

The Company has mine reporting units that have goodwill The following table categonzes the Company's goodwill by reporting umit as of October 1, 2014
according 10 the level of excess between the reporting unat's fair value and carrying value giving effect to the 2014 impanment charges

Falr Value
Fxceeds
Carrying Value Goadwill
R X L ) L ) . {Mullions of Dollars)
ReporungUnus1-4 = x1s% s 131]
Reporting Unuts 5 - 9 > BQ% 570
3 701 |

N

In order to align with its regional focus, as of December 31, 2014, the Motorparts segment moved from a product<centered reporung structure o a regional
reporting structure The analysis above, reflects the regional reporting unuts of the Motorparts segment

In May 2014, the Company completed the purchase of the Affinia chassis business This business serves leading US aftermarket customers with pnvate label
chassis product lines and will allow the Company to broaden 1its product offening, provide operational synergtes and better service customers globally The
purchase pnice was $149 mullion, net of acquired ¢ash The Company allocated the purchase price in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805, Business
Conbinations The Company utilized a thard party to assist in the fair value determunation of certam components of the purchase pnce allocation, namely
fixed assets and intangible assets The Company recorded $51 mullion of definite-lived intangible assets (customer relationships) and $27 million of
indefinite-lived intangible assets (pnmanly goodwill) associated with this acquisitton The goodwill established as part of the Affinia chassis business
acqusition was included in the Company's respective reporting unit as part of the annual impairment test discussed above and subsequently included 1n the
eslimated impairment charge recorded 1n the fourth quarter of 2014

Also dunng 2014 the Company recorded $§6 million of goodwill $2 nullion of brand names and $1 million of customer relationship tn connection with 1its
January 2014 acquisition ot the DZV bearings business The acquisiion of the DZV beanngs business did not have a matenal impact on the Company’s
financial statements or hquichty

Other Intangible Assets

The Company performs 1ts annual trademarks and brand names impairment analysis as of October 1, or more frequently 1f impairment indicators exist, in
accordance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC 350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other This impaument analysis compares the fair
values of'these assets 1o the related camying values, and impatrment charges are recorded forany excess of canrying values over fuir values The fair values are
based upon the prospective stream of hypothetical aftertax royalty cost savings discounted at rates that reflect the rates of retum appropnate for these
intangible assets

All ofthe Company's trademarks and brand names passed the October 1, 2014 and 2013 impairment analysis
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In connection with the September |, 2012 goodwitl impaiment test discussed above, the Company also performed tts trademarks and brand names
impairment analysis This impairment analysis compares the fair values of these assets to the related carrymg values, and impairment charges are recorded tor
any excess of camrying valees over fair values These farr values are based upon the prospective stream ot hypothetical aftertax royalty cost savings
discounted at rates that reflect the rates of return appropnate for these intangible assets Pnmanly all of the Company’s trademarks and brand names are
associated with its aftermarket sales and are further broken down by product hine Based upon thts annual analysis, the Company recogmzed a $33 milhon
impairment charge 1n the third quarter ¢f 2012 Priorto the September 1, 2012 analysis, the Company noted impairment indicators and performed an intenm
trademarks and brand names unpairment analysis Based upon this analysis, the Company recognized a $13 mullien impairment charge in the second quarter
of2012

the Company recorded amortization expense of $49 mullion, 347 million and $49 milhion associated with definite-hved intangible assets dunng the years
ended December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively The Company utilizes the straight line method of amortization, recognmized over the estimated usefu]
lives of the assets The Company’s developed technology ntangible assets have usetul lives of between 10 and 15 years The Company’s customer
relationships intangible assets have useful lives of between 5 and 24 years

The Company’s esbimated future amortization expense forits defimite-lived intangible assets s as follows

) wj h o B o h‘u\'ﬂﬂhn;uf D;li;r!-i!
2015 s s0

S 016 9
2017 49

o T T T s 40

) ) 2009 10
Thereafter " "l
s 354

12 INVESTMENT IN NON-CONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

The Company maintatns investments in several non-consohdated affiliates, which are located in China, France, Germany, Korea, Turkey India and the
Uniled States With the exception of the deconsolidated business discussed below, the Company genemlly equates control to ownership percentage whereby
investments that are more than 50% owned are consolidated

As part of the regulatory approval related to the acquisition of certain business assets of the Honeywell brake component business, the Company commutted
to divest, or procure the diveststure ot the commercial vehicle brake pads business relating to the onginal equipment/onginal equipment services
(“OEM/OES”) market 1n the Europeon Economuc Area (“EEA™), based at the monufactuning plant 1n Manenheide, Germany and light vehicle brake pads
business relating to the OEM/OES market in the EEA, based at the manufactunng plant 1n Noyon, France (collectively, the * Divestment Business™)
Furthermore, to the extent possible, the Company committed to keep the Divestment Business separate from the business(es) 1t 1s retaining, and unless
explicitly permutted commatted to ensure (1) management and staff have no involvement 1n the Divestment Business, (i1} certain key personnel of the
Divestment Business have no involvement in any business retained by the Company and de not report to any individual outside the Divestment Busincss As
such, the Company deconsolidated 1ts subsidianes or group of assets which are subject to regulatory commitments and recorded an investment in
uncensolidated subsidiary, which will be accounted for as an equity method mvestment until disposition As the bidding process progressed and exclusive
negotiations began for the sale of the Divestment Business, 1t became evident that an impanment existed for the Divestment Busutess as of December 31,
2014 The Divestment Business was wntten down to 1ts fair value resulting in an impaimment charge ot 35 million, which was recorded within “Adjustment of
assets to fair value” for the year ended December 31 2014

The Company does not held a controlling interest 1n an entity based on exposure to economic nsks and potential rewards (vanable interests) for which 1t 1s
the primary beneficiary Further the Company’s atfiliations are businesses established and maintained in connection with its operating strategy and are not
speclal purpose entities
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The following represents the Company 's aggregate investments and direct ownership in these affiliates

December 31

2014 2013
o A o ) L o (*\‘ll!lmnsol'Doll?rs) o
Tnvestments 1n non-consohidated affiliates $ 269 3 253 |
Diectowmesship percentages . _  __ 2%0i00% _  2%050%

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 323, fivestments - Equity Method and Joint Ventinres the Company discloses summanzed financial information ofits
non-consolidated affiliates

The following table represents amounts reflected 1n the Company’s financial statements related 10 non-consolidated afiiliates

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 012
(Millons of Dollars)
Equity eamings of non<comsolidated afiibates T U TTTIUTTT ORI e 6 v T3t s T T i
Cash dividends received fiom nonconsolidated affilhaes 2 T 1)

The following tables present summanzed aggregated financial information of the Company’s non<onselhidated affiliates

Year Fnded December 31

2014 2013 2012
L B . {MViltions of Dollars) R
SwtemeatofOperatios” "~ T T T T o m o mme s o= T
Sales . - ) s 906 § 918§ 682
et ¢ S R T
Income from continuing operations 128 120 91
Netweome T ___ w2 es_ T 1]
Decembrer 31 December 31
2014 2613
(Milbons of Dullars)
Balance Sheets ) )
Camentass T DT T T T TTTote Tt s aers D ]
Noncurrent assets 443 308
Comentliiones T D TTTTT T omemoem i me s g ]
Noncurrent liabilities 47 38

The Company holds a 50% non-controlling mterest 1 a joint venture located in Turkey ( Turkey JV™) The Turkey JV was established in 1995 for the
purpose of manufactunng and marketing automoiive pans, including pistons, piston nngs piston pins, and cylinder hiners to onginal equipment and
aflermarket customers The Company purchases/sells inventory from/to the Turkey JV Purchases from the Turkey JV for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 were $180 mullion, $152 mullion and $150 million, respectively Sales to the Turkey JV tor the years ended December 31, 2014 2013 and
2012 were $45 muthion, $44 million and $45 muliion, respectively The Company had net accounts payable balances with the Turkey JV of $5 muliion and $6
mullion as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 respectively
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13 ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued habilities consist of the following

December 31
2014 2013
(Millions of Dollars)

Accrued compc-n'_s-agon__ . o ___ B ___ o o ;7 _:“ _ __-: 5 o 177 s __-_t V 1§971
Accrued rebates ’ 149 125
Resmewmng habiiines 0 TTUTT Tt T s oo g s ]
Non-income tax payal;le 52 41
Alleged defective pmducts_ . ~ 1 o “ ~ ) vi L _ B : i _ 30 ) _ : _7 50—]
Accrued professional services 28 Co21
Agcn;ed pn;duct__retums s ) S j_ :~ T ) ,—_.-w ) ) "_- - Aw: ) “j*i ~ B 24: k:j ) o 5_1]
Accrued income taxes 24 17
Accrued warranty _K _ - 7_" . 7:* N _F w o Wmm_w‘ _ : ;v Am o 7 nj- ‘_ wii__ i R E!

$ 546 % 454

14 DEBT

On Apnl 15 2014, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation entered 1nto a new tranche B term loan factlity (the “New Tranche B Facility ') and a new tranche C
term loan facility (the * New Tranche C Facihty,” and together with the New Tranche B Facility, the “New Term Faciltties’ ), which were amanged by
Cisgroup Global Markets Inc and Credit Suisse Secunties (USA) LLC (the "Term Arrangers”), and assumed all of the obligations of Federal-Mogul
Corporation with respect to the Replacement Revolving Facility under the Credut Agreement (both defined below) The New Term Facilittes were entered
mnto and the Replacement Revolving Facility was assumed, by Federal-Mogui Holdings Corporation pursuant to an amendment dated as of Apnt 15 2014 to
the previously exisuing Term Loan and Revelving Credit Agreement dated December 27, 2007 among Federal-Mogul Corporation, the lenders party thereto,
the Term Amangers, Citibank, N A, as Revolving Administrative Agent, Citibank, N A, as Tranche B Term Administrative Agent, Credit Suisse AG, as

Tranche C Term Administrative Agent, Cingroup Global Markets Inc, Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, N A, as Joint Lead
Adrangers and foint Bookrunners with respect to the Revolving Facility and Wells Fargo Bank, N A, as sole Documentation Agent with respect to the
Revolving Facility {as amended, the "Credit Agreement™)

Immediately following the closing ot the New Term Facilities, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation contnbuted all of the net proceeds from the New
Facihities to Federal-Mogul Comporation, and Federal-Mogul Corporatton repard its existing outstanding indebtedness as a borrower under the tranche B and
tranche C term loan facilities

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic No 405, Extinguishments of Liabilitics the Company recognized a $24 million non-cash loss on the extinguishment of
debt attributable to the write-off of the unamortized fair value adjustment and unamortized debt 15suance costs which 1s recorded 1n the line item * Loss on
Debt Extinguishment” in the Company’s Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations

The New Term Factlittes, among other things, (1) provides for aggregate commitments under the New Tranche B Facility ot $700 mullion with a matunty date
of Apnl 15, 2018, (1) provides for aggregate commitments under the New Tranche C Facility ot $1 9 billion with a matunty date of Apnl 15, 20621, (in)
increases the interest rates apphcable to the New Facilinies as descnbed below, (1v) provides that for all outstanding letters of credit there 15 a comresponding
decrease 1n borrowings available under the Replacement Revolving Facility, (v) provides that 1n the event that as of a particular determination date more
than $700 million aggregate principal amount of existing term loans and certain related refinancing indebtedness will become due within 91 days of such
determunanion date, the Replacement Revolving Facility will mature on such determination date, (vi) provides for additional incremental indebtedness,
secured on a parr passu basis, of an unhimited amount of additional indebtedness tf the Company meets a financial covenant incurrence test, and (vii) amends
certain other resinctive covenants Pursuant to the New Term Facilities, Federm}-Mogul Holdings Corporation assumed all of the obligations of Federal-
Mogul Corporation with respect to the Replacement Revolving Facility under the Credit Agreement
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Advances under the New Tranche B Facility generally bear interest at a vanable rate per annum equal to (1} the Alternate Base Rate plus a margin of 2 00% or
(11) the Adjusted LTBOR Rate plus a margin of 3 00%, subject, 1n each case, 10 a floor of 1 00% Advances under the New Tranche C Facthity gencrally bear
interest at a vanable rate per annum equal to (1) the Altemate Base Rate plus a margin of 2 75% or (1) the Adjusted LIBOR Rate plus a margin of 3 75%,
subject, in each case, to a munimum rate of 1 00% plus the apphicable margin

Due to the refinancing of the Company's term loans, the backstop commtment letter provided to the Company on December 6, 2013 from High River
Limuted Parinership, an affiliate of Mr Carl C Icahn and the Company s largest stockholder, was terminated

On December 6, 2013, the Company entered tnto an amendment {the 'Replacement Revolving Facitity”) of 1ts Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement
dated as of December 27, 2007 (as amended, the “Credit Agreement™), among the Company, the lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA, Inc , as Administrative
Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A, as Syndication Agent and Wachovia Capital Finance Corporation and Wells Fargo Foothill LLC, as Co-Documentation
Agents to amend 1its exusting revolving credit facility to provide for a replacement revolving credut facility (the “Replacement Revolving Facility™) The
Replacement Revolving Facility, among other things, (1) mcreased the aggregate commutments available under the Replacement Revolving Facility from
$540 million to $550 mullion, (1) extended the matunty date of the Replacement Revolving Facility to December 6, 2018, subject to certain hmited
exceptions descnbed below and (in)} amended the Company’s borowing base to provide the Company wath addinonal iquidity

Advances under the Replacement Revolving Facility generally bear interest at a vanable rate per annum equal to (1) the Alternate Base Rate (as defined in the
Credit Agreement) plus an adjustable margin of 0 30% to 1 00% bascd on the average monthly availability under the Replacement Revolving Facility or
(1) Adjusted LIBOR Rate {as defined in the Credit Agreement) plus a margin of 1 50% to 2 00% based on the average monthly availab:ility under the
Replacement Revelving Facility An unused comumitment fee of 0 375% also 1s payable under the terms of the Replacement Revolving Facility

In connection with the New Term Facilities, the Company incurred onginal issue discount of $% million and debt 1ssuance costs of $6 mullion 1n connection
with the New Tmnche C Facility and onginal issue discount of $2 nullion and debt 1ssuance costs of $6 mullion 1n connection with the New Tranche B
Facihity The discount and debt 1ssuance costs are being amortized to interest cxpense over the terms of the loans of 84 months and 48 months, respectively
As noted above the unamortized fair value adjustment established when applying the provisions of fresh-start reporting to the Company's Credit agreement
was wntten off upon the closing of the New Term Facilities

Interest expense associated with the amormization of the onginal 1ssue discount, debt 1ssuance costs and fair value adjustment recogmzed 1n the Company’s
consclidated statements of operations, consists of the following

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Mithions of Dollars)
Amortization of farvalue adpustment " T T T g T RT g T Ty T TS
Amortization of debt 1ssuance fees - T o ) 3 - —
Mm_ngnlzétlna_ofgunﬂglndl tss;etjlsg&;l.g;l - ,.; T Am’ﬁ T u_ﬁ_ .,_— I T ——-]
;) it 3 22 % 23
Debt consists of the following December 31
2014 2013

{(Millions of Dollars)

Term leans under credit agreement - - - - . 7 -J

Tranche B term loan $ 698 S 1,597
 TheCiemiom T 0T T ttc  s  w)
Dcbt discount - N ) B ) i (10) (30)
_Othcrdebt,pm;mgly forelgn“lpslljir[;s:nts"‘ _ i o o . —,- o “:m _-_ ) _7__ ) ': _7 _ B 107 T oz
2,690 2,599
Less” short-term debi, ihefuding cumrent matnmics oflomgermdabt — T T T S Ty "L eow)
Total long-term debt o $ 2563 S 905
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* The Company assumed $10 mullion of preexisting debt associated with 1ts January 2014 acquisition of the DZV beanngs business

The oblhigations of the Company under the Credit Agreement are guaranteed by substantially all of the domestic subsidianes and certain foreign substdianes
of the Company, and are secured by substantially all personal property and certain real propenty of the Company and such guarantors, subject to certain
limitations The liens granted to secure these obligations and certain cash management and hedging obligations have first prnonty

The Credit Agreement contatns certain affirmative and negative covenants and events of default, including, subject to certain exceptions, restrictions on
incurnng additional indebtedness, mandatory prepayment provisions associated with specified asset sales and dispositions, and limitations on 1)
investments, 11) certain acquisitions, mergers of consolidations, 11t) sale and leaseback transactions, 1v) certain transactions with affiliates, and v} dividends
and other payments 1n respect of capital stock The Company was in comphiance with all debt covenants as ot December 31,2014 and 2013 Per the terms of
the Credit Agreement, 350 muillion of the Tranche C proceeds were deposited in a Term Letter of Credit Account asof December 31,2013

The Replacement Revolving Facihity has an available borrowing base of $516 millien and $550 million as ot December 31 2014 and 2013, respectively
The Company had 334 million and $39 mullion of letters of credit outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, pertaiming to the term loan
credit facility To the extent letters of credit associated with the Replacement Revolving Facility are 1ssued, there 1s a comesponding decrease i bomowings
avatlable under this facilaty

Estimated fair values of the Company's term loans under the Credit Agreement were

Esttmated
Fair Fair Value in Excess
Value (Deficit) of Carrving Valuation
{Level ) Value Techmque
o o (Millions of Dollars)
December31,2004 ]
Term Loans ) § _ 2571 8 {12) A
|
December3t,20!3_ i o
Term Logns $ 2520 § 13 A §

- - - — T R P o~ e o - o e )

Fair market valtues are developed by the use of estimates obtained from brokers and other appropnate valuation techniques based on infermation available as
of December 31,2014 and 2013 The fair value estimates do not necessanly reflect the values the Company could realize in the current markets Referto Note
8, Far Value Measurements, for definitions of input levels and valuation techmiques

The Company has the following contractual debt obhigations outstanding at December 31,2014

Mullions of Dollars }

- | . S FT1
2016 28

. .. a9
2018 696

e amg e
T Th:areaﬁer ) o 1801w

© o Total Y

The weighted average cash interest rates for debt were approximately 4 7% and 2 3% as of December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively Interest pard on debt in
2014,2013 and 2012 was 3111 mullion, $77 million and $106 mullion, respectively
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15 PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Company sponsors defined benefit pension plans (“Pension Benefits') and postretirement health care and hfe insurance benefits (“Other
Postemployment Benefits” or "OPEB™) for certain employees and retirees around the world Using appropnate actuanal methods and assumptions the

Company’s defined benefit pension plans and postemployment benefits other than pensions are accounted for 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 715,
Compensation — Retirement Benefits

The measurement date for all defined benefit plans 1s December 31 The following provides a reconcthation of the plans’ benefit obligauons, plan assets,
funded status and recognition 1n the consolidated balance sheets

Pension Benefits Other Postemployment
Umited States Plany Non-U S Plans Benefits
2014 101} 2014 2013 2014 2013

(Millions of Dollars)

m(;}_la‘né_e mn b_e“neﬁt (SGIIg&;!l(;I‘{_—

Benefit obligation, bcgmm—ngwofnycar— 3 1,184 5 1298 § 450 $ 474  § 335 8 395

Seeicecost . ___ ____ 3 __ 4 w2 - —]
‘lnterestcost- S - 52 47 16 14 15 11

| Employescommbunons o = = "= =" = 1]
" Benefuspad ) (96) (64) @28) (28) (26) (28)

" Medicare subsidies recarved 0 T T T Ty T T ]
Plan amendments — — i — = _ 8 [

B 2 N (1 RS )
Settlements o T T 3 — — — — —

... Actuanal losses (gains) ond chunges w actuonal assumprions 1S (o) d12 @) 36 @)
Net transfers (out) in — - 73 an . n

__ Cwmencytmmslavon . —  — (59 15 O @i
Benefit obligation, end of year $ 1,291 § 1184 § 575§ 450 § 368 § 335

e e — e

Change 1n plan assets )

. Faralveofplan assets, begmmmg ofyear " " 8 909§ 978 s Tss s 55 8 T — 83 |
Actual retum on plan asscts i 43 138 3 B 2 - —

" Bmployeecommbutions T T = T T = T ]
Company contnbutions 56 60 30 24 25 24

o Bemefspad 009 @) @8 ey @6 @)
Expenses — 3) — — —_ —_

_Medicaresubsidesreceved " T T = o~ = e 3l
L Cufrency translation N ~ B — — (6} 2 — —_

Farrvalue ofplan assets,endofyear § 913§ 900 s 54 S 55 S - 3 - |

 Fundedstatusoftheplan T 77§ T(379) § @275) S (52) S (395) $ (368) 5 (335)]

Amounts recognized in the cansclidated balance sheets

B, : - ) ]

Cument liabihties ] T e s ey s Tans Tum s e s @w
Noncurrent Liabilities e (376) 272 {504) (382) (332) (307)1
Net amount recognized $ (379) § 275) § 521y $ (395) § {368) S (335)

S - S S J

Amounts rccogmzed 1in accumulated other comprehensive loss
inclusive of tax tmpacts

_ Net actuanal loss n i o T s *_40; s 242 :$ 151 % &1 % 95 3 ) ]
Prior service cost (credit) — — 2 3 (14) (28)
Total $ 409 5 242 % 153§ 84 8 81 3 35 |
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Weighted-average assumptions used to deterrmine the benefit obhigation as of December 31

Pension Benefits Other Postemployment
United States Plans Non-U S Plans Benefits
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate - o 385%  4S55%  177%  349%  3R4% _ 445% |
Rate of compensation increase — — 316% 317% —_— —

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net penodic benefit cost (credit) for the years ended Decemnber 31

Pension Benefits Other Postemploy ment
United States Plans Non-U S Plans Benefits
A ~ o 2014 2013 2014 1013 2014 2013
Discountrate o o O as5% 370% 349%  299%  445%  360%
Expected retum on plan assets 6 95% 745% 418% 462% — -
liaiepf_qomf)ensanon ncrease i ~ ’ _ B "__ _'" ‘ ; N i - ) -_ 3 l'?f/ﬁ - ;3 1§°WA: . w: — 7: -M; :——_j

I'he Company evaluates its discount rate assumption annually as of December 3t for each of its retirement-retated benefit plans based upon the yield ofhigh
quality, fixed-income debt instruments, the matunties of which correspond to expected benefit payment dates

The Company’s expected retum on assets 1s established annually through analysis of anticipated future long-term investment performance for the plan based
upon the asset allocation strategy While the study gives appropnate consideration to recent fund performance and histoncal retums, the assumption 1s
pnmanly a long-term prospective rate

The US investment strategy mitigates nsk by incorporating diversification across appropriate asset classes to meet the plan s objectives It 1s intended to
reduce nisk, provide long-term financial stabihity tor the plan and mantain funded levels that meet long-term plan obligations while preserving sufficient
liquidity for ncar-tcrm benetit payments Risk assumed 1s considered apprepnate for the retum anticipated and conststent with the diversification of plan
assets The Company’s investiment strategy includes a target asset allocation of 50% equity investments, 25% fixed income investments and 25% n other
investment types including hedge funds Approximately 76% ofthe U S plan assets were invested in actively managed investment funds

The majonty of the assets of the non-U S plans are invested through insurance contracts The insurance contracts guarantee a minumum rate of return The
Company has no mput into the investment strategy of the assets undertying the contracts but they are typically heavily invested 1n acttve bond markets and
are highly regulated by local law The target asset allocation for the non-U 8 pension plans 1s 80% insurance contracts, 15% debt investments and 5% equaty
investments

Refer to Note 8, Fair Value Measurements ™ for more deta:] surrounding the fair value of each major category of plan assets, including the inputs and
valuation techmques used to develop the fair value measurements of the plans’ assets, at December 31, 2014 and 2013

[nformation for detined benetit plans with projected benefit obligations 1n excess of plan assets

Other
Pension Bencefits Postemployment
United States Plans Non-U S Plans Benefits
1014 013 2014 2013 2014 2013
(Millions of Dollars)
Pro_pec{ed bc‘neﬁt'obhgutloni _ s l.29|d $ 1184 § 574 % 74:18 $ ﬁ36§ﬂ $ N 335J
Farr value of plan assets 912 909 53 52 — IR
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Information for pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets

Pension Benefits

United Statcs Plans Non-U S Plans
2014 2013 2014 2013
o {Milhons of Doliars)
Projected benefitobhiganon  § 1201 § 1,184 § 555§ 444)
Accumulated benefit obhgatlon‘ ) . 1.29] ; 1,184 514 409
Farvalweofplanasses 4127 9w a9

The accumulated benefit obligation forall pension plans s $1,.809 million and $1,598 mullion as of December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively

Components of net penodic benefit cost (credit) for the years ended December 31

Pension Benelits Other Postemployment
Uuited States Plans Non-U § Plaas Benefits
2014 2013 2012 2614 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
{Mullions of Dellars)

Sevicecost ' § 3’5 4 s 2 s 125 125 95 — 5 — S 1
Interest cost 52 47 53 16 14 16 15 11 14
Expected retum on plan assets 62 (% (52 @ @8 @ - = T
AII;.OIU.Z:]I"!_(;D of actuanal lmoss-es- T T ti T ‘l4m - 35___ _‘_AS‘ ’ _3— T T 3 ’ 6 2
Amortization of priorservice credit _ - === = Le e e
Settlement loss (gain) (3) — ) 1 1 — _ —_ —_
Comwlmentgam = — W = = o~ " a9 6D

Net peniodic cost (credit) $ %) $ 7 3 55 § 32 8 3208 24 0§ 13 8 (1Y §  @“@®

ther Postemplovment Benefits - US Welfare Benefit Plan

[n May 2013, the Company ceased operatiens at one of 1ts US manufactunng locations As this location participated in the Company’s U § Wetfare Benefit
Plan, the Company had this plan re-measured due to its curtailment implications The resulting reductton 1n the average remaining future service pened to
the tull ehgibility date of the remaiming active plan participants in the Company's US Welfare Benefit Plan tnggered the recognition ot a $19 mullion OPEB

curtallment gain, which was recogmzed 1n the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31,2013

[n July 2012, as a result of contract negotiations with a umon at one of the Company’s U S manufactunng locations, the benefits under the US Wellare
Benefit Plan were eliminated for the location’s active participants Since this plan change reduced benefits attnbutable to employee service already rendered
it was treated as a negative plan amendment, which created a $13 mlhion pnor service credit in accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI") The
comesponding reduction in the average remamning fiture service penod to the full ehigibility date also tnggered the recognition of a $51 million OPEB

curtailment gain which was recognized 1n the consolidated statements of operations during the third quarter of 2012

Amounts 1n * Accumulated other comprehensive loss * expecled to be recogmzed as components of net penodic benefit cost overthe next fiscal year

Pcasion Benefits Other
Postemployment
Unsted States Non-U % Plans Benefits
(Millions of Dollars)
Amortization of actuarial losses $ LU LY 5 :
Amortization of pnor service credit —_ —_ 4
Total $ 0§ 12 % 1
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The assumed health care and drug cost trend rates used to measure next year’s postemployment healthcare benefits are as follows

Other
Postemployment
Benefits
2014 2013

Health care cost trend rate T ) m_ 7 25% 6_8824;}
Ultimate health care cost trend rate T S 500% o 5 00%
Year ultimate health care cost irend rate reaE:_hcd B _- _ i i 2022 _ 2018 “J'
Drug costtrend rate R T S T T
Ultimate drug cost trend rate 5 00% . 500%
Year ultimate drug cost trend rate reached _j ) T 022 2018 ‘|

The assumed health care cost trend rate has a significant impact on the amounts reported for Other Postemployment Benefits plans The fellowing table

illustrates the sensitivity to a change in the assumed health care cost trend rate

Totak Service and

Interest Cost

APBO

100 basts pblllt:(“b;;“) 1r}c§eas'tifm heallh:c_qie_c_(_)_gt l;_en;i_;ale_ B H_ o o B
100 bp decrease in health care cost trend rate

{Miltlons of Dollars)

1

"y

$

32 |
(28)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity to a change 1n certain assumptions for projected benefit obligations (*PBO”), associated expense and other
comprehensive loss ("OCL”) The changes in these assumptions have no impact on the Company’s tunding requirements

Pension Benefits

Other Postemplovment

United States Plans Non-US Plans Benefits

Change Change Change Change

n 2015 Change m n 2015 Change n Change Change

pension in accumulated pension in accumulated m 2018 m

expense PBO OCL expense PRO OCL expense PRO

(Mullions of dollars)

25 bp decrease in discountrate . § (t) s 3 s @36 8 L 5 20 % 2D R __9__]
25 bp inergase tn discount rate _ (34) 34 (1) (20) 20 —_— (9}
. . e e e B LT . — - - - - =y
25 bp decrease 1n returm on assets !
rate A SLTT L LT LT o - T

25 bp increase 1n return on assets
rate 2) — -_— — —

Projected benefit payments from the plans are estimated as follows

Pension Benefits Other
Postemployment
Umited States MNon-U 5 Plans Benefits
{Millions of Dellars) B
N 015§ 94§ 26 8 27
2016 84 25 26
N 2017 - 25 27,
2018 81 : 26 26
- 2019 S s2 2 26
Years 2020 -2022 392 139 121

The Company expects to contnbute apprximately $108 nullion fo 1ts pension plansin 2015
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Defined Contrihution Pension Plans

The Company also maintains centain defined contnbution pension plans for eligible employees Effecuve January 1, 2013, the Company amended 1ts US
defined contnbution plan to allow for an enhanced company match and company provided age-based contnbutions for eligible U S salaned and non-union
hourly employccs The total expenses attnbutable to the Company's defined contnbution savings plan were $45 milhion, $42 million and $23 mulhien for the
years ended December 31 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively

The amounts contnbuted to defined contnbution pension plans include contnbutions to multi-mployer plans in France, Haly and the United States of $1
mullion duning each of the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 None of the multiemployer plans 1n which the Company participales are
tndividually significant

Other Bencfits

The Company accounts for benefits to former or mactive employees paid aflter employment but before retirement pursuant to FASB ASC Topie 712,
Cempensation — Nonretnrement Fostemployment Benefits The liabilities for such US and European postemployment benefits were $25 mulhon and $29
million at December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively

16 INCOME TAXES

Under the habihty method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and
liabihities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be 1n effect when the differences are expected to reverse

The components ot (loss) income from continuing opemtions before iIncome taxes consist of the following

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
{Milhons of Dollars)
Domeswe _ ___ ___ _ __ _ § _ _64s____ 28§ _ (03
Intemational i @ 129 a7
Total 7y (105) 5 157 S (120)!

Significant components of the (expense) benefit for income taxes are as follows

Ycar Ended
December 31
2014 2013 2012
{Mllicas of Dollars)
Camemt L T
Federal, state and local $ 4) 3 3) ¢ (2)
L mtematonal | ey 65 T d)
Total current (36) (58) (49)
Defered [ _ T
Federal, state and local — 3) 32
__ Itemavonal T T T T T ey S5 T Tae!
Total deterred T 20 2 78
S T B $ (56) S (56) $ 20
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Conhinued

The reconcihation of income taxes computed at the United States federal statutory tax rate to income tax (expense) benefit s

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Milhions of Dollars)

lncgn‘lhe !;l;(exl;en;c) bén_gfit at_l‘Jllﬂea“S_la_teg_st;iBto_{y r'flte: '_ _—___ __—‘ R :—27__ 7§ o (_5?__) V$—_ T a2 _I

Tax etlect from
Géodw:lhmpamnet;t o T ; ST o _ - T @2“)-; i"jm——. : T (3:3)]
US mcome mclusiens from foreign subsidianes €3} (5) 27)

‘_‘_ 'Non-c—onsolldl;te&_fore‘]gn af:ﬁh»nEe;* : A__ _ :,—,“ 7 _7_ o _i_: ;i_S ;_;;_ __v_ 1 A 7 . 3! ]
Tax holidays, incentives and munimum tax 2 . 14 9

*  Foreign rate vanance aintieéact}_:d rate chailge: S ) _u ) o ) __7 t :ZE T ) ._ _“l_l _- 7 ”'_: E:’:J
State income taxes 4) 3 ()

e Uncertan tax po_s:;mns a{:.d__a.;.sgsg_;ngnzq m . - w o ‘m ) h “jﬂ« ) W:EI :__ _-; —_ __(:l4j- mi_33¢5‘J
Valuation allowances (1 OS)L i {15) (327

Toomer T T TTT TTTS s = e mE
Income tax (expense”)bcneﬁl 5 (56) 3 (56) % 29
The following table summanzes the Company s total {provision) benefit for income taxes by component

Year Ended December 31
2014 M3 2012
(Ml!llons of Dollars)

Income tax (expensebenefit__ _ _ __ S 768 s 6& s 9]

Allocated to equity ) )

L Po§templuymem_t_yéneﬁt§ L ) : -ﬁ—: ﬁ: = w;_ . —H m—,- tl'OB_ I X 3] .‘ 1_ - :('J'l)j
Denvatives o _ L — . @ 18
Fomlgu~ cunenéyrt_r;nsiahon o M:m_ . . __” ,:(12)- [ 1 ¥ (2)1
Valuation allowance-s ’ (84) 77 29
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Significant components of the Company s deferred tax assets and hiabihties are as follows

Decembrer 31

2044 2013
{Millons of Dollars)
T
“Net operatmg loss cnnyfon:f;d; o Y s 895 3 783
o Postemploymenti%neﬁts including pensmn;: “:__j___: mj—:_“—_ o " : : — _— _363 . o 729l‘}
Reorganlzauon costs 11 27
wewoyy T T T TTITTIT g T Tw
Other lempomry“dlfferences o T T 78 98
" Tax oredits e - S 3
o Total deferred 1ax nsset; o T 1,544 1,387
~ Valuation allowances for deferred tax assats ) ) i : i mj 4.,-1. ) _w(].314) N ) (1.15|}E
Net deferrcd tax assets 230 236
}
Defermd tax llabulmcs
" Investmentin US subsidianes 1 ) Y 1Y
Intanglble assets (156)___ ‘_“w_(IGG)
C o Fwedassets o T @ (19
Total def'crred tax hablhtlcs o 494) (492)
T T T e e T T T e T ey 8 “'(25'5‘)}

Deterred tax assets and habilities arc recorded 1n the consolidated balance sheets as tollows

December 31
2014 2013
(Milhons of Dollars)

L L T OO o) —— Lk i oot o i s g st o i it 1 - m—— o

Asgt_:ts . _ o . o _ . ot
__ Prepad cxpenses and other current asscts e I e 40
R Othgrggncumm asscts . ~ N vAW#v o d“#_ o "8l L E?J
Lmbl]ll:cs )
Long-term pomo_t;uofdefemrd mcome tz-i;es B —jj_—j‘___: :— -:-“:7;—:# :: ;:_-—— T ‘(389) ) T w(3§3)‘]

$ (264) § (256)

The Company continues to maintain a valuation allowance related to s net deferred tax assets in multiple junsdictions As of December 31, 2014, the
Company had valuation allowances of $999 mllion related to tax loss and credit canryforwards The current and tuture provision for mcome taxes may be
significantly impacted by changes to valuation allowances in certain countries These allowances will be maintamed until it 1s more likely than not that the
deferred tax assets will be realized The future provision for income taxes will include no tax benefit with respect to losses incumed and no tax expense with
respect 1o income generated 1n these countries until the respective valuation allowance 1s ehiminated Dunng the cumrent year the Company recorded $9
million of valuatron allowances on deferred tax assets that the Company believes are not more likely than not to be realized in the foreseeable tuture

At December 31, 2014, the Company had a deferred tax assct before valuation allowance of $1,024 mithen for tax loss carryforwards and tax credits,
including $629 mlhon in the United States wath expiration dates from 2015 through 2034, 8181 million n the Umited Kingdom with no exprration date,

and $214 mullion 1n other yjunsdictions with vanous expiration dates
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The Company has also concluded that there 1s a more than remote possibality that existing valuation atlowances of up to 3148 mithon as of December 31,
2014 could be released within the next 12 months If releases of such valuation allowances occur, they may have a significant impact on results of operations
in the quarter in whaich 1t 1s deemed appropnate to release the reserve Income taxes paid, net of income tax refunds received, were $42 million, $38 mullion
and $56 mullion for the ycars cnded December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively

The Company did not record 1axes on ats undistnbuted camings of $902 millien at December 31, 2014 since these eamings are considered by the Company
to be permanently reinvested If at some future date these earnings cease to be permanently retnvested, the Company may be subject to Unuted States income
taxes and foreign withholding taxes on such amounts Determuning the unrecognized deferred tax liabthity on the potential distnbutton of these eamings 1s
not practicable as such Liability 1f any, 1s dependent on circumstances existing when remittance occurs

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had $332 mullion of cash and cash equivalents of which $138 mullilon was held by foreign subsidianes In
accordance with FASB ASC 740-30-25-17 through 19, the Company asserts that these funds are indefinitely remvested due to operational and mvesting
needs of the foreign locations Furthemore the Company will accrue any applicable taxes in the penod when the Company no longer intends to 1indefinitely
reinvest these funds The Company would expect that the impact on cash taxes would be immatenal due to the availability of net opermation loss
camryforwards and related valuation allowances, eamings considered previously taxed, and applicable tax treanes

At December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company had total unrecogmized tax benefits of $50 million, $78 milhion and $69 millien, respectively Of these
totals, $44 mullion, $47 milhon and $39 mullion respectively, represent the amounts of unrecognized tax benefits that, 1f recognized, would affect the

effective income tax rates The total unrecogmized tax benefits differ from the amounts which would affect the effective tax mtes pnmanly due to the impact
of valuation allowances

A summary of the changes in the gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31,2014,2013 and 2012 are shown below

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
{Millions of Dollars)

Change 1n unrecognzed tax_beneﬁts; )

Balance at January 1 s 7% % 69§ 375
B Addllgns_bzfsegi‘ciﬁ_ta_t ﬁos:}lon:s"r“;latmed to theuc:rrg;{ry_;;rv_« : T T ‘—_m 7 M_h-_ j— T—_— o f mu‘.’]
Additions for tax positions of prior years L 10 6 Lo
" Decreasss fortax posiionsofproryears T 7 T a0 @ o)
Decreases for statute of limitations expiration _ 1 4)] ‘ (13)
C Settements T T L T es 2T T ooy
Impact of currency translation (5) (3] (n
" Balance at December 31 T T T e e T $ 50 % 7% 0§ 69 |

The Company classifies tax-related penalties and net interest as income tax expense As of December 31,2014,2013 and 2012, the Company recorded $12
milhon, $23 million and $15 million, respectively, in habihties for tax-related net nterest and penalties on 1ts consohidated balance sheet Dunng the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded tax income (expense) related to a net increase (decrease) 1n its liability for interest and
penailties of $11 mullion, $(8) million and $(2) milhion, respectvely

The Company operates 1n multiple junsdictions throughout the wortd The Company 15 no longer subject to US federal tax examinations for years before
2011 or state and local for years before 2008, with hmuted exceptions Furthermore, the Company 1s no longer subject to income lax examinations tn major
foreign tax junsdicuons for years prior to 2005 The income 1ax retums of foreign subsidianes 1n vanous tax Junsdictions are cumrently under examination

The Company believes that 1t 15 reasonably possible that its unrecognized tax benetits in multiple junsdictions which pnmarily relate to transfer pricing,
corporate reorganmization and vaoous other matters, may decrease by approximately $3 miliion 1n the next 12 months due to audit settlements or statute
exptrations, of which approximately 32 million, 1f recognized, could impact the effective tax mte

On July 11,2013, Federal-Mogul Corporation became part of the Icahn Enterpnises affiliated group of corporations as defined in Section 1504 of the [ntemal
Revenue Code of 1986 ("the Code"), as amended, of which Amencan Entertainment Properties Corp
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{“AEP™} 15 the common parent The Company subsequently entered 1nto a Tax Allocation Agreement (the “Tax Allocation Agreement™) with AEP Pursuant
1o the Tax Allocation Agreement, AEP and the Company have agreed to the allocation of cenain income tax items The Company will join AEP in the filing
of AEP’s federal consolidated retum and cerntain state consolidated retums In those junsdictions where the Company 1s filing consolidated retumns with AEP,
thc Company will pay to AEP any tax 1t would have owed had 1t continued to file scparately To the extent that the AEP consolidated group 1s able to reduce
its tax habihity as a result of including the Company 1n 1ts consolidated group, AEP will pay the Company an amount equal to 20% of such reduction and the
Company will carryforward for 1ts own use under the Tax Allocatton Agreement 80% of the items that caused the tax reduction (the ‘Excess Tax
Benefits™) While a member of the AEP affiliated group the Company will reduce the amounts 1t would otherwise owe AEP by the Excess Tax Benefits
Moreover, if the Company should ever become deconsoiidated from AEP, AEP will reimburse the Company for any tax hability in postconsohdation years
the Company would not have paid had 1t actually had the Excess Tax Benefits for its own use The cumulative payments to the Company by AEP post-
consolidation cannot exceed the cumulative reductions in tax to the AEP group resulting from its use of the Excess Tax Benefits Separate retum
methodology will be used 1n detenmining income taxes

17 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Environmental Matters

The Company is a detendant 1n lawsuits filed, or the recipient of admimstrative ordets 1ssued or demand letters recerved, 1n vanous junsdictions pursuant to
the Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensanion and Luability Act of 1980 (“CERCLA™) or other similar national, provincial or state
environmental remedial laws These laws provide that responsible parties may be lhable to pay for remediaung contarmination resulung from hazardous
substances that were discharged into the environment by them, by pnor owners or occupants of property they currently own or operate, or by others to whom
they sent such substances for treatment or other disposition at third party locations The Company has been notified by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency, other national environmental agencies, and vanous provineial and state agencies that it may be a potentially responsible party (“PRP™)
under such laws for the cost of remediating hazardous substances pursuant to CERCLA and other natwonal and state or provincial environmental laws PRP
designation typically requires the funding of site investigations and subsequent remediat activities

Many of the sites that are likely to be the costliest to remediate are often current or former commercial waste disposal facilities to which numerous companies
sent wastes Despite the potential joint and several hability which might be imposed on the Company under CERCLA and some of the other laws pertaining
1o these sites, the Company's share of the total waste sent to these sites has generally been small The Company believes 1ts exposure for hability at these
sites 1s hnmted

On a global basis, the Company has also 1denufied certamn other present and former propenties at which 1t may be responsible for cleaning up or addressing
cnvironmental contamination, 1n some cascs as a result of contractual commitments and/or federal or state environmental laws The Company 15 actively
seeking to resolve these actual and potential statutory, regulatory and contractual obligations Although difficult to quantify based on the complexity of the
1ssues, the Company has accrued amounts comesponding to its best estimate of the costs associated with such regulatory and contractual obligations on the
basis of available information from site investigations and best professional judgment of consultants

Total environmental liabilities, determined on an undiscounted basis are included 1n the consohidated balance sheets as follows

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
{Muhons of Dollars)
Other current Liabilities 5 6 5 5
Otherscerued habites romureny | T T TTTTn o Tt oyt g
3 15 3 14

Management believes that recorded environmental hiabilities will be adequate to cover the Company s estimated liabihity for its exposure 1n respect to such
matters In the event that such habilities were to sigmificantly exceed the amounts recorded by the Company, the Company s results of operations and
financial condition could be matenatly affected At December 31 2014 management cstimates that reasonably possible matenal additional losses above and
beyond management’s best esnmate of required remediation costs as recorded approximate 340 mullion
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Asset Rehrement Obhigatrons

The Company records asset retirement obligations (“*ARO’ ) in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 410, Asses Reurement and Environmental Obhigations The
Company's pnmary ARO acuvities relate to the removal of hazardous building matenals at 1ts facilities The Company records an ARO at fair value upon
inthial recognition when the amount can be reasonably estimated typicatly wpon the expectation that an operating site may be closed or sold ARO fair
values are determined based on the Company’s determination of what a third party would charge to perform the remediation activities, generally using a
present value technique

For those sutes that the Company 1dentifies 1n the future for closure or sale, or for which 1t otherwise believes 1t has a reasonable basis to assign probabilities
to a range of potential settlement dates, the Company will review these sites for both ARO and impairment 1ssues

The Company has identified sites with contractual obligations and several sites that are closed or expected to be closed and sold In connection with these
sites, the Company maintains ARO habihities 1n the consolidated balance sheets as follows

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013
(‘Mullions of Dallars)
Other current ltabilities b} 3 8 4
Other accried lbihties (nopeumenty T T T T T TUTTTU T s T om0 g
3 24 3 26

‘Balance at Janua—'xy_i‘iﬁlai ) _ L o o } L $ : B _ i?q]
Liabilities incurred o o o s L _ I

: _Liabilities s_cttled}aci;ustrr;el}gswh o L o o ~._.____...:(fl‘|
Balunce:at December31,2013 e 26

MLl_abllltl_c;_m:cunédm u_ u_u R _—__,,_, o me—::j :_}:]
Liabilities settled/adjustments o _ . N (1)

- Foreign Currency o ) B R R : o o i ;“ ~ :_ . o ____;_(l)}
Balance at December 31,2014 $ 24

The Company has conditional asset retirement obligatons ( CARO'), pnmanly related to removal costs of hazardous matenals in buildings, for which 1t
believes reasonable cost estumates cannot be made at this time because the Company does not believe it has a reasonable basis to assign probabilities to a
range of potential settlement dates for these retirement obligations Accordingly the Company 15 cumrently unable to determuine amounts to accrue for CARO
at such sites

Affiliate Pension Obligations

In July 2013 the Company completed a common stock nights offening The purchases of shares of common stock in the nghts offenng increased the indirect
control of Mr Carl C [cahn to approximately 80 73% of the voting power As a result of the more than 80% ownership interest 1n the Company by Mr
Icahn’s affiltates, the Company 15 subject to the pension hiabihities of all entities in which Mr [cabn has a direct or indirect ownership interest of at least 80%
One such entity, ACF Industnes LLC ("ACF"), 1s the sponsor of several pension plans All the mimimum funding requirements of the Code and the Employee
Retirement Income Secunty Act of 1974 for these plans have been met as of December 31, 2014 It the ACF plans were voluntanly terminated they would be
underfunded by approximately $82 million as of December 31, 2014 These results are based on the most recent information provided by the plans’ actuanes
These hiabilities could increase or decrease, depending on a number of factors including future changes in benefits, investment returmns, and the assumptions
used to calculate the hiability As members of the controlled group, the Company would be liable for any falure of ACF to make ongotng pension
contributions or to pay the unfunded habilities upon a temmination of the pension plans of ACF In addition, other entities now or n the future within the
controlled group in which the Company 15 included may have pension plan obligations that are, or may become, underfunded and the Company would be
liable for any farlure of such entitics to make ongoing pension contnbutions or to pay the unfunded lrabihitics upon termination of such plans Further, the
failure to pay these pension obligations when due may result in the creation of hens
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in favor of the pension plan or the Pension Bencefit Guaranty Corporation (*PBGC™) against the asscts ot cach member of the controlled group

The current underfunded status of the pension plans ot ACF requires 1t to noufy the PBGC of centain “reportable events,” such as 1t the Company ceases to be
a member of the ACF controlled group, or the Company makes certain extraordinary dividends or stock redemptions The obligation to report could cause the
Company to seek to delay or reconstder the oceurrence of such reportable events

Icahn Enterpnses Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC have undertaken to indemmify Fedeml-Mogu! for any and all hability imposed upon the
Company pursuant to the Employee Retirement Income Secunty Act of 1974, as amended, or any regulation thereunder (“ERISA ) resulting from the
Company being considered a member of a controlled group within the meaning of ERISA § 4001(sa)(14) of which Amencan Entertainment Properties
Corporation 15 a member except with respect to liability 1n respect to any employec benefit plan, as defined by ERISA § 3(3), maintained by the Company
Icahn Enterpnises Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC are not required to mantain any spectfic net worth and there can be no guarantee Ecahn
Enterpnses Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC will be able to fund its indemnificauon abligations to the Company

Other Matters

On Apnl 25, 2014, a group of plaintitfs brought an action against Federal-Mogul Products, Inc (! I-M Products™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, alleging mnjunes and damages associated with the discharge of chlonnated hydrocarbons by the former owner of a facihity located in Kentucky
Since 1998, when F-M Products acquired the facility 1t has been cooperating with the applicable regulatory agencies on remediating the pnor discharges
pursuant to an order entered into by the facility’s former owner The Company 1s unable to estimate any reasonably possible range of loss tor reasons
including that the plamntifts did not claim any amount of damages n their compiaint F-M Products intends to vigorously defend this iugation

The Company 1s invelved in other legal actions and claims, directly and through its subsidianies Management does not believe that the outcomes of these
other actions or ¢claims ar¢ likely to have a matenal ady erse etfect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of opemtions or cash flows
18 CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS BY COMPONENT (NET OF TAX)

The following represents the Company’s changes 1n accumulated other comprehensive loss ("TAOCL") by component for the year ended December 31, 2014

Foreign Gams and
Currency Losses on Post.
Translation Cash Flow employ ment
Adjustments Hedges Benefits Total

(Millions of Dollars)

Balanceatfomwary 1,204 © T 7 T T s Tpag) s (e S a@sh 3§ @20)]
T Othercomprenamye o betoe eimntcaions @ L = Tain )
_Amountsreclassified fomAOCL _ —— T T N 10

_Incometaxes — () 22 21 |
Other comprehensive loss 233) () (282) (516)
e e o . e e e e e - O
Balance at December 31,2014 3 482) 3§ (17 % 643) § (1142)
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21  STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock Appreciation Rights

A summary of the Company’s stock appreciation nghts (“SARs"™) activity on an annual basis for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 1s as
follows

Wesghted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual [ntrinsic
SARs Price Lafe Value
. o L - (Thouﬂnds} e _ (Eeﬂ'“) N (Mll!mns)“
Outstanding at Janwary 1,2012 s 1388 § 1996 o - T
Granted 80? o 17 64
_ Forferted ) - o o @i 1850 ]
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 ~ l,§8§ $ 1921 14 § —
Granted - sy e o
_Forfetted - e (445) 1930 )
Outstanding at December 31,2013 i ~ o . 1259 8 1943 24 % - M}J
__ Exercised B e N (SW?)ww 17125 .
Forfeted S (406) 1956 T
Outstandimg at December 31 2014 796§ 1951 14 % —
e e s ot e i e it 1
- - - .- - .- - . .. e
Exercisable at December 31,2014 03 % 1976 14 % —

In February 2012,2011 and 2010, the Company granted approximately 809 000, 1,043,000 and 437,000 SARSs, respectively, to certain employees The SARs
granted 1n February 2012 (2012 SARs™) and 1n February 2011 {“2011 SARs' } vested 25 0% on grant date and 25 0% on each of the next three anniversaries
of the grant date The SARs granted 1n February 2010 (“2018¢ SARs”) vest 33 3% on cach of the three anmiversanes of the grant date All SARs have a term of
five years from date of grant The SARs are payable in cash or, at the election of the Company, n stock As the Company anticipates paymg out SARs
exercises i the form of cash, the SARs are being treated as hability awards for accounting purpeses The Company recognized SARs imncome of $4 malhon for
the year ended December 31, 2014, SARs expense of $5 millien for the year ended December 31, 2013, and SARs income of $4 million for the year ended
December 31,2012 The SARs farr values were estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation medel with the following assumptions

December3t, 2014 December 31, 2013
) _ N 2012 SARs 2011 SARs 2010 SARs 2012 SARs 2011 SARs 2010 SARs
Excrcise pnce S 1764 8 2103 S 1716 $__ 1764 _$ 2103 S 1716 |
Expected volanlity 39% 39% 39% 48% 48% 48%
Bpecieddwdendyidid "0 T T T T La 0 Tttt e
Expected forfeitures — —% —% —% —% —%
Rusetse e overtheoipesisd e T oawn” T les T 00w T oaed T ouwk T Toion
Expected life (in years) 1 } - 06 01 17 11 G6
Forvae(nmiion)  ~CCT s T 06 ST 037s 7§ 3e s 23 st 0s7]
Fair value of vested portion (in millions) $ 04 b 02 s - 3 11 5 1 7‘ vm~$~m 05

Lxpected volatility 15 based on the average ot five-year histonical volatihity and implied volatlity tor a group of comparable auto industry companies as of
the measurement date Risk-free rate 15 determined based upon U S Treasury rates over the estimated expected lives Expected dividend yield 15 zero as the
Company has net paid dividends to holders of 1ts common stock 10 the recent past nor does 1t expect to do so in the future Expected forfeitures are zero as
the Company has no histoncal experience with SARs, the impact of forfeitures 1s recognized by the Company upen occurrence Expected Iife 15 the average
of the time until the award 15 fully vested and the end of the term
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19 RECLASSIFICATIONS OUT OF ACCUMULATED OQTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS ("AOCL")

[tems not reclassified in their entirety out of AOCL to net income for the year ended December 31, 2014 are as follows

Year Ended December 31

Affected Line Item n the
Statement Where Net Income

is Presented

Qoslﬁquﬂrﬁt{ducts sold‘ _

[ncome tax {expense) beneﬁt

e ]

Cost ofproducts sold and sclling, general and admunistrative

Cost ofpmducts sold and SG&A

Loss I'mm discontinued  operattons, net of tax

—

o

“Loss from dtscontmued operations, netoftax

OPEB curtatlment gam

_Income tax (expense} beneﬁt

2014 013
Lomeson cash lawhedges T © T T " T To
—Commodlty contracts $ 1 $ 5) Cost ofproductssold
Foreign curmrency contmets B o EI) ) I
Intcrest rate swap comract; ““““““ 7 — T (é) [nterest cxpense, net
. _ Total - '__A' ) _7 o — (14) B
lncome taxes 7 1 ([}
 MNetoftax T 1 (i5)
Postemployment bencfits S
Amortization of actuanal losses 12) (29) _expenses | ("SG&A")
"~ Amorzation  of prior sér\;l_cgctc;in_s S 7; - ;' ;_5 - 14 9
i ‘Recognmon ot‘unamomzed losses S = (4)
- Cunm]r_n;:;lmt gain o - L N i ﬂf—- .
Cunmlmenl gam - h —_ : 19
o 'i';)tal T B (€)] 14
“Income taxes @y 9
Netoftax = " T 29) 23
Total reclassificauons S @8) § 8§

20 WARRANTS

On December 27, 2007, the Company 1ssued 6,951,871 warrants te purchase 6,951,871 common shares of the Company at an exercise pnce equal to 8§45 815,

exercisable through December 27 2014 All the warrants expired as of December 31,2014
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22 INCOME (L.OSS) PER COMMON SHARE
The following 1s a revonciliation of the numerators and the denominators of the basic and diluted 1ncome (loss) per common share

Year Ended December 31

2014 013 wi2
{in Milkons of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts)

unts attnbutable | t Fede

inbuta IMogul. . . .. o]

Net {loss) income from con continuing operations $ (168) % 93 3 (98)
Loss fro;xldnscohunued apgl-'au?ﬁs,inet oftax o T B - i 7 “ N :- H_ h N o - - - (SuZ)A T (i“‘)ﬂ
Net {loss) income $ (168) § 41 3 {17
Welghted average shares outstandmg, basic (in mllllon_s)— i ) ) N o k lSd 5 7 123 4 h 98 9_ J
Incremental shams;:)”n_ assumed_ét;nverswn of deferred co:;p;t:lsauon stock (m mnlhons) ; o o ) - ) :—_—_ T T s 1
Weighted average shares s outstanding d!]uted (n mllllons) 1500 1234 99 4

. L S - =,

Net (]o;s)-mcome p—er share attnbutable to—Fec{eral—Mogul -—b—asm a-nt:fd;]uted 7

Net (loss) income from continuing operations ; L _A: _: ) An__ A _i 3 ___ ﬂ{i 12_5 ) _§ ‘_-____ 075 8 i ) i w{vﬁ“:9+9)MT
Loss ﬁgrlldlfcpqtlnugd operatons, netoftax . o - (0 42) 019
Nel | (loss) rcome (112} ¢33 (118) ]

The Company had losses for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2012 As a result, diluted loss per share 1s the same as basic in those peniods, as any
potentially dilutive secunties would reduce the loss per share

Wamants to purchase 6,951,871 common shares, which expired December 27, 2014, were not included 1n the computation of diluted earntngs per share
because the exercise pnice was greater than the average market pnce of the Company's common shares dunng the years ended December 31,2014 2013 and
20i2 Options to purchase $4,000,000 common shares, which expired on June 29, 2012, were not included 1n the computation of diluted eamings per share
because the exercise price was greater than the average market price of the Company’s common shares dunng the year ended December 31,2012

As required by FASB ASC Topic 710, Compensation, there are 500,000 common shares 1ssued 11 connection with a deferred compensation agrecment that
are excluded from the basic eamings per share calculation for the year ended December 31 2014

_ 23 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 6, 2015, the Company completed the purchase of certain business assets of the TRW engtne components business The business was acquuired
through a combination of asset and stock purchases for a base purchase price of approximately $313 mullion, funded pnmanly from the available
Replacement Revolver Facility and subject to certamn customary closing and post-closing adjustments The purchase of TRW's engine valve busimess adds a
completely new product hine to the Company's portfolio, strengthens the Company's position as a leading developer and supplier of core components for
engines, and enhances the Company's ability to support 1ts customers to improve fuel economy and reduce emssions

The assets acquired and liabiiities assumed will be recorded at fair valuc as of the acquisition date in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 808, Business
Combinations The preliminary allocation of the purchase price will occur 1n the first quarter of 2015 There were no revenues or earmings related to TRW
included in the Company's consolidated statements of operations

On February 24, 2015, the Company announced that it intends to launch a registered nghts offenng on or about March 6, 2015 In the nghts offenng, cach
holder of the Company’s common stock as of the close ot business on the record date of March 6, 2015 will be 1ssued, at no charge onc transferable
subscnption nght for each whole share of common stock owned by that siockholder on the record date {the “basic subscnption privilege™ The nights
offering will also include an over-subscnption pnvilege, which will ennitle stockhelders who exercise all of their subscniption nghts 1n the basic subscnption
pnvilege the nght to purchase addrtional shares of common stock in the nghts offenng, subject to availability and pro rata allocation of shares among nghts
holders exercising such oversubscnption pavilege

The Company will offer a number of shares of 1ts common stock 1n the mghts offering, inclusive of the oversubscniption prvilege, representing
approximately 3250 million of gross proceeds The Company plans to use the proceeds from the nghts offering to strengthen its balance sheet

24 OPERATIONS BY REPORTING SEGMENT AND GEOGRAFPHIC AREA

The Company operates with two end<customer focused business segments The Powertrain segment focuses on onginal cquipment products for automotive,
heavy duty and industnal apphications The Motomparts segment sells and distnbutes a broad pontfolio of products 1n the globa! aftermarket, while also
serving onginal equipment manufacturers with products tncluding braking chassis, wipers and other vehicle components This erganizational model allows
for a strong product line focus benefitung both orginal equipment and aftermarket customers and enables the global Federal-Mogul teams to be responsive
to customers' needs for supenor products and to promote greater identification with Federal-Mogul premium brands Additionally, this orgamizational model
enhances management focus to capitalize on opportunities for orgaruc or acquisition growth, profit improvement, resource uttization and business model
optimization in line with the unique requirements of the twe duiferent customer bases

The Company evaluates reporting segment performance pnncipally on a non-GAAP Operational EBITDA basts Management behieves that Operational
EBTTDA provides supplemental information for management and investors to evaluate the operating performance of 1ts business Management uses and
behieves that mvestors benefit from refernng to Operational EBITDA 1n assessing the Company’s operating resulls, a8 welt as i planning, forecasting and
analyzing future periods as this financial measure approximates the cash flow associated with the operational eamings of the Company Additonally,
Operattonal EBITDA presents measures of corporate performance cxclusive of capital structure and the method by which asscts were acquired and financed




Accordingly, Operational EBITDA 1s defined as eamings from continuing opemations before 1nterest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization and cerfain
items such as restructunng and smpairment charges, Chapter 11 and U K, Administration related reorganization ¢xpenses, gains or losses on the sales of
businesses, the non-service cost components of the US based funded pension plan, OPEB curtailment gains or losses, the income statement impacts
associated with stock appreciation nghts, loss on extinguishment of debt and costs associated with acquisitons, legal separation and headquarters relocation

Net sales
Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2002
{Mullions of Dollars)

Powettran " 07 7 7 s 4430 S 44738 3926
Motorparts o 392 2935 2.853
Intersegmentemmatons _ . __._ ___ 6w ¢w o)

Total 3 7317 8 678 § 6444

Cost of products sold

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Millons of Dollars)
Powetm | U T T T S GRS T (Gese) S B4T0)
Motorpants (2668) A (2.39)
Interscgment ehmmations ______ — T 77 305 0 3 335 )
Total Reporuing Segment (6,260) (5,766) (5,525)
Comorate . e - =
Total Company $ (6,260) $ (5,766) § (5531
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Gross profit
Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
(Millions of Dollars)

Powedmn T C T T s 0 osas ST s ase]
Motorpans 524 503 463

Total Reporting Segment i T 1057 1020 919 |
Cor;;omte o ST — —_ {6)

Total—C_ompany - i ) ) - $ 1,057 1,020 § 913!

Powertrain
Moterparts
Totat Operational EBITDA
Items requ1red 1o reconcile Opemuonal EBITDA tu net 1ncome (loss)
DCpl‘ECl%;thh and amomzatlon T

_ Adjustment of assets to fair value

lmcrestexpensc net -

Restructunng expense, net
Loss an debt extinguishment

Acquisition related costs
_ Legal sepamtion costs

Heudquanem relocation costs

_ Non-service cost components assocmtcd wuh u S bascd ﬁmded pens:on plans
Stock appreciation nghts

_ Discontinued operations
OPEB curtailment gain

¢ _ _Incometax (expense) hcneht

th (Ioss) inLome

Year Ended December 31

2014 201% 2012
(Millions of Dollars)

420§ 38 s 289]
195 213 200
624 591 4§_9"j
S ®a e ass))
(144) 8) (187)
S ey 69 2y
(86) {40) (26)
ey - -
(16) S
ey - =]
N ) e -
T T - _35)]
A & 4
= (52) (19)]
19 51
e e ]
1 — 3)
(161) $ 49 8 (110}

Total assets, capital expenditures, and depreciation and amortization information by reporting segment 1s as set forth in the tables below Goodwill was
assigned to reporting segments and reporting units based on individual reporting unit fair values over values attnbuted to specific intangible and tangible
asscts Reporting umits arc comiponcnts ot the Company’s reporting scgments (which are also 1ts operating scgments) and gencrally align with specific

product groups for which segment managers regularly review operating results
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Depreciation and

Total Assets Capital Expenditures Amortization
December 31 Year Ended December 31 Year Eoded December 31
2014 2013 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

(Millions of Dollars)

5 3485_$ 3373 S 268 $§ 276 $ 278 S 196 $ 178 § 165!

va_ervtraxg_

Motorpants 3355 3,055 130 86 8 114 100 99
' 7 TowlRepoming Segment T 68a0 6428 398 362 364 310 278 264
Comporate "7 754 0 136 24 16 21
Discontinued operations [ — 5 s 7 = 1 4|

Total Company § 7067 35 7,182 % 413 3 380 % 387 3§ 334§ 206 § 289
The following table shows geographic information

Net Sales INet PPE
Year Ended December 31 December 31
2014 2013 012 2014 2013
L {Millions of Dollars)

United States T T s 2667 8 25168 2479 8 607 8 559 |
Germany o B i 1494 1326 1160 423 425
Cama, T T T T T T T T e T T aw T s
France ) 398 390 365 55 82
Mewieo T T T T T e e T IR T T i
Ttaly o 290 286 263 69 7
P S ST RS ST S
United Kingdom 242 233 235 77 80
wga - 203 198 329 T 134T 03s
Other e 930 823 827 402 365
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

25 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table presents selected unaudited quarterly operating results of the Company for 2014 and 2013, and the audited results of the Company for
the years ended December 31,2014 and 2013

First Second Third Fourth Year

{Amounts in mullions, cxcept per share amounts and stock prices)
Year ended December 31,2014

“Net sales $ 1779 S 1872 s 1871 § 1,794 § 7317
" Gross profit i ) o 273 297 262 2241057
Net (loss) mcome_;tmbutable to Federal-Mogul 40 3 (18) {185) - (168)

" Net {loss} income per common sharc attnbutable to Federal-Mogul - ; o h 7

_ basic and difuted o . ) _ a2 _ ©e03) o1y (123 (112
*\i’etghicd avg‘shares ou‘tst;;d-mg}bjasw (Tn ;n_ﬂl;ons)u A _“ T _ I-SB 0 _w_ __lSOWQ h AM__ 1:50“0_‘ o i 1500 ) M_M?SWJ

Wgtg_h}gd ‘:q'g shares outslanc}l‘ng — diluted (1n_m11110n5) L - 1500 _ B _1_50 4 . 1_5_0_0___ o 1500 o _1_5_9:0
B

Stockpnce“” T N o ST T T T T o o
JEE ™ - X A T TR R N T L

Low $ 1582 & 1619 % 1487 § 14 14

s ]

Dividend per share - - o -

104




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

First Second Third Fourth Year
{Amounts 1n mllllons. excepl per Share amuunls and stou:k prites)
Yearended December3(,2013 7 T T e
Net salcs $ 1,659 § 1 744 b 1690 § 1.694 § 6,786
CGrssprofic T T L 2v_ o wso 25 2% 1020
Amounts atnbutable to FederalMogul - T T ]
Ncl(loss) income from conlinuing operations . s 17 8 61 8§ 3 %  (le 3 93
V-_. Loss ﬁ'orﬁd:-scontmued opemtlc;ls. ne;;f};— j_ o _ 1: i W(SHI) fﬁw ) ) o 7 (3) “(52)—]
Net {loss) income attnbutable to Fedeml-Mogul' ) o $ (34) $ 56 % 38 % (19) 3 41
R ]
Net (loss) income per common share attnbutable to Federal- Mogul -basic
and diluted _ —— - -
. Net (loss)income from continumg operations | S 017 § 06 5 02§  (©Ih S 075]
~Loss from discontinued operations, netoftax ©51) ©05) 005 0 02) (0 42)
 Net (losE)“fn{éome}{uﬁﬁmafﬁfe to Federal-Mogul* s (034) § 057 S 026 § ©13) $ 033 |
bhlglghlgﬂ avy shares outstanding -~ basic (in milhons) . . 989 #’:M 982 ”flts_q_f_ 1500 fj:l}:izj
Weighted avg sharcs outstanding — diluted gmwullions) 989 989 1450 _ 1500 1234
Stock price T h - - - ——J
_ High i o s 988§ 1039 § 1733 s 2l1s
Low 3 598 % 484 % 992 % 1497 j
b e e e e e - ki GO o O
- mm[)lwdcnd pershare — _ — —
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ITEM 9 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM $A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Acontrol system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only rcasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system
are met Further the design of a control systemn must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative
to their costs Because of the herent limitations 1n all control sysiems, no evaluation of controls can provide abselute assurance that all control issues and
instances of fraud, 1fany, within the Company have been detected

The Company maintans disclosure controls and procedures that are designed te provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the
Company's penodic Exchange Act reports 15 recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods spectfied (n the SEC’s wles and fomms,
and that such information 1s accumulated and commumcated to the Company’s management includmg 11s Co-Chief Executive Officers and Chuief Financial
Officer, as approprate, to allow umely decisions regarding requircd disclosure

Management's Report on Internal Control Qver Fina ncial Reporting

The Company's management 18 tesponsible for establishing and mantaining adequate mtemal control over financial reporting, as defined 1n Exchange Act
Rule [3a-15(f) As of December 31, 2014, an assessment was performed under the supervision and with the parhcipation of the Company’s management,
mcluding the Co-Chief Executive Officers and the Chief Financial OHficer, of the effectiveness of the design and eperation of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures aver financial reporting based upon the framework 1n Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Commuttee of
Sponsonng Organizations (the “COS0 2013 Framework™) of the Treadway Commussion Based upon that evaluation, the Co-Chief Executive Officers and the
Cheef Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2014, at the reasonable assurance
level previously descnbed

Internal Control over Financaial Reporting

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Company included within this Form 10-K Management s Repert on Intemal Control over
Financial Reporting as of December 31, 2014 The Company’s independent regstered public accountung firm also auested to, and reported on, the
Company’s [ntemal Contrel over Financial Reporting Management's report and the independent registered public accounting firm's report are 1ncluded 1
liem § of this Form 10-K

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in the Company’s intemal controt over financial reporting dunng the quartcr ended December 31, 2014 that has matenally affected
or 15 reasonably likely to matenally affect the Company's intemal control over financial reporting
ITEM9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART IH

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERANCE

The information required by Item 10 regarding our directors and other corporatc govemnance matters 1s icorporated by reference to the Company's proxy
statement for the 2014 annual meeting of stockholders under the captions “Election of Directors”, “Cerporate Govemance’ and “Secunty Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management * The information required by Item 10 regarding the Company's executive officers is set forth below The
information required by ltem 10 regarding compliance with section 16{a) of the Secunties and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 1s incorporated by
reference to the Company’s proxy statement for the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting

Comphance *

Daniel A Ninivagg!
Apge 50

Rainer Jueckstock
Ape 55

Scott Pepin
Age 47

Brett D Pynnonen
Age 46

Mr Niuvagg has served as a duector ot the Company since March 2010 and as co<hief Executive Officer and Chief Executive
Officer of Motorparts segment since February 2014 Mr Nimivaggi was President of [cahn Enterprises L P a diversitied holding
company engaged 1n a variety of businesses, including mvestment, automotive, energy, gamng, railcar, food packaging, metals,
real estate and home fashion, from Apnl 2010 to February 2014 and its Chief Executive Officer from August 2010 to February
2014 From January 2011 to May 2012, Mr Nimivagg: served as the Intenm President and Intenm Chief Executive Officer of
Tropicana Entertainment Inc  a company that 1s pnmanly engaged 11 the business of owning and operating casimnos and resorts

From 2003 until July 2009, Mr Ninivaggt served 1n a vanety of executive posihions at Lear Corporation, a global supplier of
automotive seating and electncal power management systems and components, most recently as Executive Vice President and
Chief Admunistrative Officer from 2006 to 2009 Lear Corporation filed for bankrptey o July 2009 and emerged 1n November
2009 Mr Nimivagg served as Of Counscl to the law firm of Winsten & Strawn LLP from July 2009 to March 2010 Mr Nmvagm
has been a director of Hertz Global Holdngs, Inc , a rental car company, since September 2014, Ieahn Enterpnses stnce March
2012, and Tropicana Entertainment Inc , since January 2011 Mr NMimivagg was previously a durector of CVR Refimng, LP, an
mdependent downstream energy limited partnership, from January 2013 to September 2014, Amencan Rajlcar Industries, Inc, a
ratlear manufactunng company, from June 2013 to February 2014, CVR Energy, Inc, a diversified holding company pnmanly
engaged n the petroleum refining and mitrogen fertilizer manufacturing industnes, from May 2012 to February 2014, CVR
Partners LP, a mtrogen fertihizer company, from May 2012 to February 2014, PSC Metals Inc , a metal recycling company, from
Apni 2012 to February 2014, WestPoint Home LLC, a home textiles manufacturer, from Febrary 2012 to February 2014, Viskase
Companies, Inc, a meat casing company, from June 2011 to February 2014, XO Holdings, a competitive provider of telecom
services, from August 2010 to February 2014, Motorola Mobility Holdings, Inc, a provider of mobile communication devices,
video and data delivery solutions, from December 2010 to May 2012, and CIT Group Inc, a bank holding company from
December 2009 to May 2011 lcahn Enterpnises, Amencan Railcar Industnes, CVR Refining, CVR Energy, CVR Partners, PSC
Metals, WestPoint Hotne, Viskase Companies, XO Holdings and Tropicana Entertainment are each indirectly controlled by Carl
C lecahn Mr Icahn previously had interests in Lear, Motorola Mobility and CTT Group through the ownership of securities

Mr Nimivagg recetved 2 B A 1n History from Columbia University in 1986, a Masters of Business Administration from the
University of Chicago 1n 1988 and a J D from Stanford Law School in 1991

Mr Jueckstock has served as co-chief executive officer and a director of the Company and chief executive officer for the
Powertrmin Segment since Apnl 2012 Mr Jueckstock jomned the Company tn 1990, and has served as senior vice president,
Powertrain Energy. senior vice president, powertrain operations, senior vice president, pistons, nngs and liners, vice president,
nngs and hners, operations director, piston nngs, Europe, and managing director ot the Fnedberg, Germany, operation He also
was sales director for nngs and liners, Europe, finance controller in Burscheid, Germany, and finance manager mn Dresden,
Germany Since February 2013, Mr Jueckstock also serves on the board of directors of PLEXUS Corp

Mr Pepin has served as senior vice president, Global Human Resources since Apnl 2012 Previously, Mr Pepin was vice
president, labor relations and director of human resources, North Amenca and Global Powertrain Energy Mr Pepin jomned the
company 1n 1994 and had held several positions of increasing responsibihity He was also formerly sentor director, Kellogg North
America, human resources and organizational development Pepin earned a bachelor of arts degree :n English and psychology
trom the University of Westemn Ontane, London, Ontano, Canada, and a bachelor of commerce degree in busimess administration
and a master’s degree 1n business admimstration, both from The University of Windsor, Ontano, Canada

Mr Pynnonen has served as senior vice president, general counsel secretary and chief compliance officer since November 2010
Mr Pynnonen joined the Company as associate geneml counsel and assistant secretary 1n 2007 Pnor to joining the Company,
Mr Pynnonen was vice president, general counsel and secretary for Covansys Corporation Prior to that, Mr Pynnonen was an
attorney for the law firm of Butzel Long in Detroit, M1
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Jerbme Rouquet Mr Rouquet has served as senior vice president, finance, Motorpants, and controller and chief accounung officer of the Company

Age d7 since December 2013 Previously, he was intenm Chiet Financial Officer ot the Company trom August to December 2013, vice
president, controller and chief accounting officer of the company since August 2010, and chief financial officer, Motorparts
segment since July 2012 Mr Rouquet joined the Company wm 1996 and held varous finance positions of increasing
responsibility at regional and group levels across multuple product lines and busiess units, ulumately serving as Finance
Director, Vehicle Safety and Protection Mr Rouquet graduated 1n 1990 from the Institut Supencur de Gestion in Pans, France

Rajesh Shah Mr Shah has served as sentor vice president and chief financial officer of the company since December 2613 Previously, Mr

Age 63 Shah senved as executive vice president and chief financial officer at X-Rite, an 1ndustnal technology business Prior to that, he
held vanous executive-level positions in finance at comparues such as Cadence Innovation, LLC, Remy Intemational, Inc,
Collins & Aikman, UT Automotive, Vanty Comperauion, and Kelsey Hayes Group Mr Shah 1s a chartered accountant 1n both
India and Canada He eamed a bachelor’s degree from Bombay University, Bombay (Mumbai) India, and a master’s degree from
Bowling Green University, Bowling Green, Ghio

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to compensation of executive officers and directors of the Company under the captions “Dircctor Compensation™, “Compensation
Commuttee Interlocks and Insider Participation,” and “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” i the Company’s proxy statement for the 2015 annual
meenng of stockholders 15 incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this Annual Report

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Informatton under the captions “Secunty Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management™ in the Company’s proxy statement for the 2015 annual
meening of stockholders 1s incomporated herein by reference and made a pant of this Annual Report

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTORS INDEPENDENCE
Tax Allocation Agreement

On July 11,2013, Federal-Mogul Coemoration became part of the Icahn Enterpnises affiliated group of corporations as defined 1n Section 1504 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 ("the Code"). as amended, of which Amencan Entertminment Properties Corp (“AEP”) 15 the commeon parent The Company
subsequently entered into a Tax Allocation Agreement (the “Tax Allocation Agreement™) with AEP Pursuant to the Tax Allocation Agreement, AEP and the

Company have agreed to the allocation of cenain income tax 1tems The Company will join AEP in the filing of AEP's federal consolidated return and certain
state consolidated retums In those junsdictions where the Company 15 filing consolidated returns with AEP, the Company will pay to AEP any tax it would
have owed had 1t continued to file separately To the extent that the AEP consolidated group 1s able to reduce its tax liability as a result of including the
Company in its consohidated group AEP wll pay the Company an amount equal to 20% of such reduction and the Company will carryforward for its own
use under the Tax Allocation Agreement 80% of the 1tems that caused the tax reduction (the “Excess Tax Benefits”} While a member of the AEP affihated
group the Company will reduce the amounts 1t would otherwise owe AEP by the Excess Tax Benefits Moreover, 1f the Company should ever become
deconsolidated from AEP, AEP will reimburse the Company for any tax habihty in postconsolidation years the Company would not have paid had 1t
actually had the Excess Tax Bencfits for its own use The cumulative payments to the Company by AEP post-consohidation cannot ¢xceed the cumulative
reductions in tax to the AEP group resuluing from 1ts use of the Excess Tax Benefits Separate retum methodology will be used 1n determiming income taxes

Insight Portfolio Group LLC (formally known as Icahn Sourcing, LLC)

Teahn Sourcing, LLC (*Tcahn Sourcing™) ts an enlity formed by Mr Icahn in order to maximize the potential buying power of a group of entities with which
Mr Icahn has a relationship 1n negotiating with a wide range of suppliers of goods, services and tangible and intangible property at negotiated mtes The
Company was a member of the buying group 1n 2012 Pner to December 31, 2012, the Company did not pay Icahn Sourcing any fees or other amounts with
respect to the buying group amangement
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In December, 2012, Icahn Sourcing advised the Company that efiective January 1, 2013 1t would restructure 1ts ownership and change 1ts name to Insight
Portfolio Group LLC ("Insight Portfolio Group™) In connection with the restructuning, the Company acquired a minonty equity interest in Insight Portfolio
Group and agreed to pay a portion of Insight Portfolio Group's operating expenses in 2013 In addition to the minonty equity interest held by the Company,
certain subsichanes of Icahn Enterpnses Holdings, including CVR, Tropicana, AR Viskase PSC Metals and WPH alse acquired minonty equity interests in
Insight Portfolio Group and agreed to pay a portion of Insight Portfolio Group's operaling expenses A number of other entities with which Mr [cahn has a
rclationship also acquired cquity interests in Insight Portfolio Group and also agreed te pay certain operating expenscs

The Company’s payments to Insight Portfolio Group were less than $0 5 nmullion for both of the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 The Company
anticipates 1ts 2015 payments to Insight Portfohio Group to be similar to the amounts paid 1n 2014

Affilvate Pension Obhgations

In July 2013 the Company completed a common stock nghts offenng The purchases of shares of common stock 1n the nghts offenng 1ncreased the indirect
control of Mr Carl C lcahn to approximately 80 73% of the voting power As a result of the more than 80% ownership interest in the Company by Mr
Icahn’s affihates, the Company 18 subject to the pension liabilities of all entities 1n which Mr Icahn has a direct or indirect ownership interest of at least 30%
One such entity ACF Industnes LLC ("ACF"), 1s the sponsor of several pension plans All the mnimum funding requirements of the Code and the Employee
Retirement Income Secunty Act of 1974 for these plans have been met as of December 31, 2014 [f the ACF plans were voluntanly terminated they would be
underfunded by approximately $82 million as of December 31, 2014 These results are based on the most recent intormation provided by the plans’ actuanes
These hiabilities could increase or decrease, depending on a number ot factors, including future changes in benefits, investment returns, and the assumptions
used to calculate the habihty As members of the controlled group, the Company would be liable for any failure of ACF to make ongoing pension
contributions or to pay the unfunded habilities upon a termination of the pension plans of ACF In addition, other entsties now or n the future within the
controlled group 1n which the Company 1s included may have pension plan obligations that are, or may become, underfunded and the Company would be
liable for any failurc of such ¢ntittes to make ongoing pension contnbutions or to pay the unfunded habilities upon termination of such plans Further, the
failure to pay these pension obligations when due may result 1n the creation of hens 1 favor of the pension plan or the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation
(' PBGC ") against the assets of each member of the controlled group

The current underfunded status of the pension plans of ACF requires 1t te notify the PBGC of certain “reportable events,” such as 1f the Company ceases to be
a member of the ACF controlled group, or the Company makes cerntain extraordinary drvidends or stock redemptions The obligation to report could cause the
Company to seek to delay or reconsider the occurrence of such reportable events

Icahn Enterpnses Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC have undenaken to indemmfy Fedeml-Mogul for any and all hability imposed upon the
Company pursuant to the Employee Retirement Income Sccunty Act of 1974, as amended, or any regulation there under (“ERISA™) resulting from the
Company being considered a member of a controlled group within the meaning of ERISA § 4001(a)}14) of which Amencan Entertainment Properties
Corporation 1s a member, except with respect to hiability in respect to any employee benefit plan, as defined by ERISA § 3(3), mamntained by the Company
Icahn Enterpnses Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC are not required to maintain any specific net worth and there can be no guarantee Icahn
Enterprises Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC wll be able to fund 1ts indemnification obhiganons io the Company

Additronal Information

Additional information required by Item 13 1s incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s proxy statement for the 2015 annual mecting of
stockholders under the captions “Dhirector Independence and Controlied Company Status” and “Certain Relationships and Related-Party Transactions ™

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

[nfonmation with respect to the fees and services of the Company’s pnincipal accountant under the caption “Fees of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm” 1n the Company’s proxy statement for the 2015 annual meeting of stockhelders 1s incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this
Annual Report
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report
1 Financial Statements
Financial statements filed as part of th1s Annual Report on Form 10-K are listed under Part IL, Item 8 hereof
2, Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule [l — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Financial Statements and Schedules Omtted

Schedules other than the schedule listed above are omitted because they are not required or apphcable under instructions
contained 1n Regulation $-X or because the information called foris shown in the financial statements and notes thereto
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SCHEDULE IT — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION AND SUBSIIMARIES

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
- Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Begmmning Costs and Other End of
Description of Periad Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
(Millions of Dollars)
NYearended December3L20V4 o]
Valg_auon altowance for trade receivables $ 113 5 3 — 5 VES) o8 11
_j
Ycar ended December 31, 2013 T C T T T o T e
_ _Valuauon allowance fortraderecervables __ ___$ 138 3§ - S O ®_§ U]
Year ended December 31,2012 I _ ]
Valuation allowance for trade receivables $ 13 8 2 $ — 8 2y v 3 13

(1) Uncollectible accounts charged off net of recovenes
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15(b)} Exhibits

The Cempany will furmish upen request any of the following exhibits upon payment of the Company s reasonable expenses for furmishing such exhibit
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Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated Apnl |4, 2014, by and among Federal-Mogul Corporation, Federal-Mogul Heldings Corporation,
Federal-Mogul MergerCo Inc and Federal-Mogul Holding Sweden AB (Incomporated by Reference to Exhibit 2 1 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 14, 2014 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commussion on Apnt 16,2014)

Assect Purchase Agreement dated as of Januvary 21, 2014 between Affinia Group Ine and VCS Quest Acquisition LLC (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 21, 2014 and filed wath the Secunties and Exchange
Commission on January 22, 2014)

Letter Agreement, dated Apnl 29, 2014, by and between Federml-Mogul Chassis LLC and Affinia Group Inc (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2 | to the Company’s Cumrent Report on Form 8-K dated Apnl 29, 2014 and filed wath the Secunties and Exchange Commssion on
May 2,2014)

Amended and Restated Stock and Asset Purchase Agreerment dated as of January 7 2014 by and among Honcywell [ntemational Inc,
Platin 966 GmbH and Saxid SAS (Incomporated by reference to Exhibit 2 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 9,
2014 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commission on July 15,2014)

Certificate of Incorporation of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation (Incomorated by reference to Exhibit 3 1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated Apnl 14,2014 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commussion on Apnl 16, 2014)

Bylaws of Federal-Mogul Holdings Comporation (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated Apnl 14,2014 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commission on Apnl 16,2014}

Federal-Mogul US Asbestos Personal Injury Trust Agreement by and among the Company, the Future Claimants Representative, the
Official Commnttee of Asbestos Claimants, the Trustees, Wilmington Trust Company, and the members of the Trust Advisory Commuttee,
dated as of December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December
27,2007 and filed with the Secunities and Exchange Commmussion on January 3, 2008}

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of December 27, 2007 by and among the company, Thomwood Associates Limuted Partnership and
the Federal-Mogul Asbestos Personal Injury Trust {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 5 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated December 27, 2007 and filed with the Secunttes and Exchange Commission on January 3,2008 )

Amendment and Joinder to Federal-Mogul Corporation Registration Rights Agreement among Federal-Mogul Comoration and IEH FM
Holdings LLC (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 1 to the Company s Cumrent Report on Form 8-K dated July 9, 2013 and filed with
the Secunties and Exchange Commussion on July L, 2013)

Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement by and among the Company, as Borrower, the Lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA, Inc, as
Admunistrative Agent, and JPMorgan Chase Bank N A as Syndication Agent dated as of December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4 11 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange
Commssion on January 3, 2008 )

Federal-Mogul Comporation 2010 Stock Incentive Plan {Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10 1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated May 26,2010 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Comymission on June 2,2010)

Form ot Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement (Incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10 2 to the Company's Curment Report on Form 8-K
dated May 26, 2010 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commmussion on June 2 2010) +

Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Ramer Jueckstock dated as of Apnl | 2012 (Incorporated by Reference to
Exhibit 10 2 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 20, 2012 and filed with the Secunuies and Exchange Commussion
on March 14,2012) t

Federal-Mogul 2014 Motorparts Management Incentive Plan (MIP) t

Federal-Mogul 20§4 Povenrain Management Incentive Plan (MIP)

Federal-Mogul 2014 Corporate Management Incentive Plan (MIP) t
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Replacement Revolving Facility dated December 6, 2013, which i1s an amendment of the Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement,
dated as of December 27, 2007, among the Company, the lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA, Inc, as Administrative Agent, JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N A as Syndication Agent, and Wachovia Capital Finance Corporation and Wells Fargo Foothull, LLC, as Co-Documentation
Agents, to amend 1ts exasting revolving credit factlity to provide for a replacement revelving credit facility (Incomporated by Reference to
Exhibit 101 to the Company's Cument Report on Form 8-K dated December 6, 2013 and filed wath the Sccurities and Exchange
Commussion on December 9, 2013)

Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Rajesh K. Shah dated as of December 9, 2013 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhubit 10 15 to the Company's Anrual Repont on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013)

Amendment Agreement dated as of Apnl 15, 2014 to the Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of December 27, 2007
among Federal-Mogul Corporation, Citicorp USA, Inc and each of the lenders party thereto {Incorporated by reference to Exhabit 10 1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Apnl 14, 2014 and filed with the Secunttes and Exchange Commussion on Apnl 16,
2014)

Separation Agreement between the Company and Kevin P Freeland, dated February 4, 2014 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibut 101 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 4, 2014 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commussion on February
10,2614)

Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Daniel A Ninivaggi dated as of Febmary 5, 2014 (Incorporated by Reference
to Exhibit 10 2 to the Company’s Curent Report on Form B-K dated February 4, 2104 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange
Commussion on February 10,2014)

Federal-Mogul Comporation 2010 Stock Incentive Plan 2014-15 EVA Award Agreement - Powertrain Segment (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10 | to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December31,2013) +

Amended and Restated Share and Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of January 23, 2015 by and between TRW Automotive Inc and
Federal-Mogul Valvetrain Gmbh (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed dated
January 23,2015 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commission on January 29, 20135)

Tax Allocation Agreement by and among Amencan Entertainment Properties Corp and Federal Mogul Corporation dated as of July 11,
2013 (Incorporated by referenice to Exhibit 10 1 to the Company’s Current Repont on Form 8-K dated July 9, 2013 and filed with the
Secunties and Exchange Commussion on July 11,2013 )

Subsidianes of the Registrant

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm - Grant Thornton LLP

Certification by the Company’s Co-Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14

Certification by the Company’s Co-Chief Exccutive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14

Certification by the Company s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14

Certificanon by the Company’s Co-Chief Executive Officers and Chief Financial Officer pursuantto 18 US C Scction 1350 and Rule 13a-
14(b)

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document




* 101 PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extenston Presentatton Linkbase Document

* 101 DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Defimtion Linkbase Document

* Filed Herewith
1 Management contracts and compensatory plans or amrangements

15(c). Separate financial statements of affiliates whose securities are pledged as collateral

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on 1ts
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized

FEDERAL-MOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION

By s/ Rajesh Shah
Ragesh Shah
Sentor Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Dated February 26,2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securihies Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and 1n the capacities and on the dates indicated

/s/ Dantel A Nimvagg Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Holdings February 26,2015
Dantel A Nimivagg: Corporation Chief Executive Officer, Motorparts Division,
Dircctor
/s/ Ramner Jueckstock Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Holdings February 26,2015
Ramner Jueckstock Corporation Chief Executive Officer, Powertrain Division,
Director
/s/ Rajesh Shah Sentor Vice President and Chuef Financial Officer (Pnncipal Fcbruary 26,2015
Rajesh Shah Financial Officer)
/s/ Jerome Rouquet Senior Vice President and Controller (Principal Accounting February 26 2015
Jerdme Rouquet Officer)
/s/ Thomas W Elward Director February 26,2015
Thomas W Elward
s/ George Feldenkreis Director February 26,2015
George Feldenkreis
/s/ SungHwan Cho Director February 26,2015
SungHwan Cho
/s/ Hunter C Gary Durector February 26,2015
Hunter C Gary
/s/ ) Michael Laisure Director February 26,2015
J Michael Laisure
/s/ Ne1l § Subin Director February 26,2015

Neil § Subin
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Exhibit 105

Federal-Mogul 2014 VCS Management Incentive Plan (MIP)

Goal

This Vehicle Component Solutions (VCS} Management Incentive Plan {this “MIP™) 1s intended to align the actions of parttcipants with the goals of the
Federal-Mogul Corporation (the "Company”) VCS segment and reward participants for achieving or exceeding those goals

Participants

Individual employees of the Company providing services to VCS are eligible tor participation in this MIP as follows (1) employees below the level of Vice
President are selected and confirmed by the Company’s Semor Vice Prestdent of Human Resources, and (1) employees at or above, the level of Vice
President are selected and confinmed by VCS's Chiel Executive Officer, subject to approval and confirmation by the Compensation Committee of the
Company’s Board of Directors (the “Compensation Commuttee™)

Target Bonus,

“Target Bonuses” for purposes of this MIP shall be expressed as a percentage of the apphcable employee’s annual base salary rate in effect as of December 31,
2014 (“Annual Base Salary™), which Annual Base Salary 1s calculated as follows if the employee 1s paid by the Company on a menthly basis, the Annual
Basc Salary shall be cqual to an amount that 15 the product of such monthly payment rate multiplicd by 12, and 1f the employee 1s paid on an every-other-
week basts, the Annual Base Salary shall be equal to an amount that 1s the product of such every-other-week payment rate multiplied by 26 For the
avoidance of doubt, except for the employee’s annual base salary rate descnbed above, in no event shall any other amounts or compensation payments paxd
or payable to the employee be used for purposes of calculating the Annual Base Salary under this MIP

No changes may be made to the assigned Target Benus percentage without the wntten approval of the Company’s Director of Compensation and Benefits
and/or the Company's Semor Vice President of Human Resources, except that. in the case of any employee at, or above, the level of Vice President, any
changes made to the assigned Target Bonus percentage shall be subject to approval and confirmation by the Compensation Committee

Proration

Any paruicipant who 1s not employed with the Company 1n a MIP-eligible position on or prier to October 1, 2014 shall not be eligible to receive a MIP
payment for 2014, except as may otherwise be approved by the Company’s Semor Vice President of Human Resources and, in the case of any employee at or
above the level of Vice President, the Compensation Committee Any participant who s ehigible for a MIP payment but who did not serve in a MIP<chgible
position dunng the entire year 2014 will be entitled to a pro-rated MTP-payment based on the amount of tirme such eligible participant was actively and
continuously employed 1n an ehgible position dunng 2014 If, dunng 2014, a participant 1s promoted or demoted from a job wath one Target Bonus level to
another job with a different Target Bonus level, a participant transfers from cne operation to another operation with different performance metncs, or a
participant 1s rehired or takes an approved leave of absence from active employment, a separate computation shall be made to take into account the
participant’s tume at each level, operation or absence from employment (as applicable), and the sum of the separate computations shali be the participant’s
MIP payout

Communications

The Business Unit Human Resource Directors and Human Resource Director for Corporate Staffs are responsible for consistency of MIP targets and
communication of the MIP plan to participants

Metrics

2014 MIP metncs are outhined tn Appendix | attached hereto




Adjusements
The metnes and their achievement levels are the basts for payout calculations However, each participant’s individual performance and contnibutions may
also be considered and may alter the final payout In addition, VCS' Chief Executive Officer may reduce the 2014 MIP payment to any Business Unit

Operations Vice President/Director, Finance Director or Plant Manager based on his assessment of the results of an audit or senes of audits of plants or
locations within VCS

It 15 intended that increases and decreases in participant MIP bonus payouts which result from individual or group performance and contnbutions shaltl not
result 1n an increase 1n the proposed payout of the maximum bonus pool descnbed below In the event that the MIP bonus payout, otherwise calculated 1n

accordance with this MIP, would exceed the maximum benus poot, each of the proposed MIP bonus payeuts shall be reduced on a pro-rata basis so that the
aggregate MIP bonus payouts do not exceed the maximum bonus pool

MIP Pavout Ranges*

The payout range for the 2014 MIP 1s from 0 to 175% of a participant’s Target Bonus For example, 1f an employee’s Target Bonus 1s 10% of Annual Base
Salary, he or she may receive an amount ranging from zero up to 17 5% of Annual Base Salary Payout percentages are rounded to the nearest whole percent
(0 5 and above rounds up and any amount under 0 5 rounds down }

The VCS MIP bonus payment 1s himited to a maximum of 175% of an individual’s Target Bonus

Target Achieve tlev

If, for any metric, the achievement level equals 100% of the goal, the payout for that metnc will be 100%

Mimmum Metric Achievement Level,

If, for any metnc, the achievement level does not equal or exceed 85% of the target, the payout for that metnc will be zero At 85% achievement, the payout
for such metne will be 50%

Maximum Metric Achievement Level

The maximum level of achievement cligible for a payout 15 125% of the target for a metnc At 125% achicvement, the MIP payout level 1s | 75% for that
metnc

The payout curve between the minimum achievement level and 100% 1s based on linear interpolation, as 1s the payout curve between 100% and the
maximum achievement level

Thresho chievement Requ nt
In the event VCS does not achieve at least 90% of its EBITDA target for 2014, the EBITDA meinc will have zero payout
Maximu ol a diustmen

The maximum bonus pool under this MIP wall equal the sum of the Target Bonuses for the participants, assuming the payout level for all metncs 1s equal to
175%

In no cvent shall the sum of total payouts under this MIP cxceed the maximum bonus pool

Computation and Payout Timing

Payments under this MIP will be made only with respect to the Company’s 2014 fiscal year and only after completion ofthe annual audit of Federal-Mogul's
2014 consohdated financial statements and filing of Federal-Mogul's Form 10-K for the year ending December 31,2014, but in no event later than March 15,
2015 Management shall provide to the Compensation Committee, by Febmuary 1, 2015, the Company's 2014 unaudited consolhidated financial results, other
mformation required to calculate performance against the applicable metres, management’s calculation of the metne achievement levels against goals and
management’s recommendations for MIP payouts consistent with such financial performance and other intormation No payout shall be made unless and
until the Commuttee, 1n 1ts sole and absolute discretion, has approved the final achievement levels and




payouts, the completion of the audit of the 2014 consolidated financial statements and filing of the Company’s Form 10-K MIP participants must be actively
employed on the day of payout ta be eligible for a payment In all countnies, local tax laws apply, and payments will be reduced by amounts required to be
withheld tor taxes at the time payments are made MIP payments will not be considered compensation for purpeses of calculating the nights of any participant
under any ofthe Company’s employee benefit plans or programs, unless required by applicable law MIP payments wall be counted as compensation eligible
for401(k) plan contributions to the extent applicable

Compensation Committee of the Board of Darectors

All incentive plan designs, awards and payouts, if any, are subject to approval of the Compensation Committee The Compensation Commuitee has the sole
and absolute discretion, after consuitation with management of VCS, to make adjustments to any of the 2014 MIP metnics set forth 1n Appendix 1

Discretion

VCS’ Chief Executive Officer may alter, postpone or disallow individual payments as he deems appropnate for any employee (other than himself), within the
plan's payout range of zero to 175% of Target, except that, in the case of any employee at, or above, the level of Vice President, pnor approval by the
Compensation Committee 1s required VCS’ Chief Executive Officer may make other changes to this MIP with the prior approval of the Compensation
Comnmuttee

General Provisions

a) Withholding of Taxes The Company shall withhold the amount of taxes which, in the determination of the Company, 1s required to be withheld under
applicable law with respeet to any amount duc or paid under this MIP All amounts payable under this MIP are intended to be cxempt from the requirements
of Section 409A of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and this MIP and all bonus awards made hereunder shall be construed 1n a manner
consistent with such intent

b) Expenses The Company 1s responsible for all expenses and costs incurred in connection with the adoption and administration of this MIP

c) Active Employment Active employment means actively engaged 1n the employ of the Company (orits subsidianes) with respect to VCS Employees who
are subject to severance notice penod or on “garden leave” status pending termunation are nof considered to be 1 active employment

d) Voluntary Termunation  Unless VCS’ Chief Executive Officer exercises discretion in accordance with the “Discretion” provision above, 1n the event a
participant elects to terminate employment for any reason or elects to retire from the Company, in each case, before payment under this MIP 1s made, all nghts
with respect to such participant under this MIP shall cease and be immed:ately forfeited, and no benefits shall vest or be accrued or due under this MIP for
such participant

e) Involuntary Termination If'a participant is involuntarily terminated for reasons other than “for cause™, dies or becomes permanently disabled priorto the
payout date, VCS' Chief Executive Officer may determmne, in his sole discretion, whether such participant (or 1f termination is due to death, such participant’s
legal representatives) may be paid a prorated portion of his/her calculated bonus under this MIP, provided, that, 1o the case of any employee at or above the
level of Vice President, any such pro-rated payment shall require the prior approval of the Compensation Commuttee The pro-ration wall be calculated based
on the formula (x times an amount that 1s the product of the participant’s Target Bonus times the final calculated payout percentage for such participant)
where x equals a fraction where the numerator 1s the number of calendar days the employee 1s employed in 2014 and the denominatoris 365 Any such
payment will be made at the same ume and 1n the same manner active participants are paid In the event any such ternunation 1s made by the Company for
reasons other than “for cause,” payment ot any such prorated MIP bonus payment shall be subject to the employee signing and not revoking the Federal-
Mogul Corporation severance plan agreement and release within 30 days of such termination

f) No Continued Employment Neither the establishment of this MIP, participation 1n this MIP, nor any payment hereunder shall be deemed to constitute an
express or implied contract of employment of any participant for any pened of time or 1n any way abnidge the nghts of the Company to determuine the terms
and conditions of employment or to termmunate the employment of any employee with or without cause at any time

g) Other Plans Nothing contained herein shall hmit the Company’s power to make regular or discretionary payments to its employees, whether or not they
are participants 1n this MIP Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no payment shall be made under thus MIP to any participant if and to the extent
that such payment, whether alone or when taken together with other




payments from the Company to such participant, would result 1n such participant recelving compensation from the Company 1n excess of any compensation
limit contawned tn any wntten employment agreement between the Company and such participant

h ) Non-Assignability No nghts of the participants under this MIP shall be transferable or assignable, either voluntanly or involuntanly by way of
encumbrance, pledge, attachment, levy or charge of any nature (except as may be required by local, state, or federal law)

Nothing 1n this MIP shall require the Company to segregate or set aside any funds or other property for the purpose of paying any portien of an award
hereunder No partivipant, beneficiary or other person shall have any night, title or interest 1n any amount awarded under this MIP pnor to the payment of
such award to him or her Any nghts of a participant {or any person claiming through the participant) under this MIP shall be solely those of an unsecured
general creditor of the Company The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this MIP shall be govemed by the laws of the State of
Michigan without giving effect to the conflicts of laws principles thereof




Exhibit 10 6

Eederal-Mopul 2014 Powertrain Management Incentive Plan (MIP)

Goal-

This Powertrain Management Incentive Plan (this * MIP"} 1sintended to align the actions of participants with the goals of the Federal-Mogul Corporation (the
“Company™) Powerttain segment (“Powertrain”) and reward participants for achieving or exceeding those goals

Participants

Individual employees of the Company providing services to Powertrain are eligible for participation tn this MIP as follows (1) employees below the level of
Vice President are sclected and confirmed by the Company’s Sentor Vice President of Human Resources, and (u) cmployees at, or above the level of Vice

President are selected and confirned by Powertrain’s Chief Execunive Officer, subject to approval and confirmation by the Compensation Commuttee of the
Company’s Board of Directors (the “Compensation Committee™}

Target Bonus

“Target Bonuses” for purposes of this MIP shall be expressed as a percentage of the applicable employee’s annual base salary rate 1n effect as of December 31,
2014 ( Annual Base Salary”™), which Annual Base Salary 1s calculated as follows 1f the employee 1s paid by the Company on a menthly basis, the Annual
Base Salary shall be equal to an amount that 1s the product of such monthly payment rate multiplied by 12, and 1f the employee 1s paid on an every-other-
week basis, the Annual Basc Salary shall be egual to an amount that 1s the product of such every-other-weck payment rate multtphed by 26 For the
avoidance of doubt, except for the employee’s annual base salary rate descnibed above, 1n no event shall any other amounts or compensation payments pad
or payable to the employee be used for purposes of calculating the Annual Base Salary under this MIP

No changes may be made to the assigned Target Bonus percentage without the wnitten approval of the Company's Director of Compensation and Benefits
and/or the Company’s Senior Vice President of Human Resources, except that, 1n the case of any employee at, or above, the level of Vice President, any
changes made to the assigned Target Bonus percentage shall be subject to approval and confirmation by the Compensation Committee

Proration

Any participant who 1s not employed with the Company 1n a MIP-ehigible position on or pnior to October 1, 2014 shall not be eligible to receive a MIP
payment for 2014, except as may otherwise be approved by the Company’s Senior Vice President of Human Resources and, 1n the case of any employee at or
above the level of Vice President, the Compensation Committee Any participant who is eligible tor a MIP payment but who did not serve in a MIP-eligible
position dunng the entire year 2014 will be entitled to a pro-rated MIP-payment based on the amount of ime such eligible participant was actively and
continuously employed 1n an eligible position dunng 2014 If, dunng 2014, a participant 1s promoted or demoted from a job with one Target Bonus level to
another job with a different Target Bonus level, a participant transfers from one operation to another operation with different performance metrics, ora
particepant 1s rehired or takes an approved leave of absence from active employment, a separate computation shall be made to take into account the
participant’s time at cach level, operation or absence from employment (as applicable), and the sum of the separate computattons shall be the participant’s
MIP payout

Communications

The Business Unit Human Resource Directors and Human Resource Director for Corporate Staffs are responsible for consistency of MIP targets and
communication of the MIP plan to participants

Metrics
2014 MIP metncs are outhined in Appendix Tattached hereto
Adjustments

The metnes and their achievement levels are the basis for payout calculations However, each participant’s individual performance and contnbutions may
also be considered and may alter the final payout [n addition, Powertrain’s Chief Executive Officer may




reduce the 2014 MIP payment to any Busmess Unit Operations Vice President/Director, Finance Drrector or Plant Manager based on his assessment of the
results of an audit or series of audits of plants or locations withun Powertrain

It ts intended that increases and decreases in participant MIP bonus payouts which resubt from individual or group performance and contributions shall not
result 1n an increase in the proposed payout of the maximum bonus pool described below In the event that the MIP bonus payout, otherwmise caleulated 1n
accordance with this MTP, would exceed the maximum bonus pool, each of the proposed MIP bonus payouts shall be reduced on a pro-rata basis so that the
aggregate MIP bonus payouts do not exceed the maximum bonus pool

MIP Pavout Ranges:

The payout range for the 2014 MIP1s from 0 to | 75% of a participant’s Target Bonus For example 1f an employee’s Target Bonus 1s 10% of Annual Base
Salary, he or she may receive an amount ranging from zere up to 17 5% of Annual Base Satary Payout percentages are rounded to the nearest whole percent
{0 5 and above rounds up and any amount under 0 5 rounds down )

The Powertrain MIP bonus payment 1s inited to a maximum of 175% of an individual’s Target Bonus

Target Achievement Level, -
If, for any metric, the achievement level equals 100% of the goal, the payout for that metric wall be 100%
Mimmum Metric Achievement Level

If, for any metnc, the achievement level does not equal or exceed 85% of the target, the payout for that metnc will be zero At 85% achievement, the payout
for such metne will be 50%

Maximum Meiric Achievement Level

The maximum level of achievement ehigible for a payout 1s 125% of the target for a metnic At 125% achievement, the MIP payout level 1s 175% for that
metric

The payout curve between the mmimum achievement level and [00% 1s based on linear interpolation, as 1s the payout curve between 100% and the
maximum achievement level

Threshold Achievement Requirement

In the event Powertrain does not achieve at least 85% of 1ts EBITDA target for 2014, the EBITDA metrics for all Powertrain product lines and the
Restructunng metnc will have zero payout

Maximum Bonus Pool and Adjustments

The maximum bonus pool under this MIP will equal the sum of the Target Bonuses for the participants, assuming the payout level for all metncs 1s equal to
175%

in no event shall the sum of total payouts under this MIP exceed the maximum bonus pool

Computation and Payout Timing

Payments under this MIP will be made only with respect to the Company’s 2014 fiscal year and only after completion of the annual audit of Federal-Mogul’s

2014 consolidated financial statements and filing of Federal-Mogul's Form 10-K for the year ending December 31,2014, but in no event later than March 15,
2015 Management shall provide to the Compensation Commuttee, by Febmiary 1, 20135, the Company’s 2014 unaudited consolidated financial resuits, other
wnfommation required to calculate performance against the apphicable metrics, management'’s calculation of the metric achievement levels against goals and
management’s recommendations tor MIP payouts consistent with such financial performance and other information No payout shall be made unless and
until the Commuttee, in 1ts sole and absolute discretion, has approved the final achhevement levels and payouts, the completion of the audit of the 2014
consolidated financial statements and filing of the Company’s Form 10-K MIP participants must be actively employed on the day of payout to be eligible for
a payment In all countries, local tax laws apply, and payments will be reduced by amounts required to be withheld for taxes at the time payments are made

MIP payments will not be considered compensation for purposes of calculating the nghts of any participant under any ot the Company’s employee




benefit plans or programs, unless required by applicable law MIP payments will be counted as compensation chigible for 401(k) plan contnbutions to the
extent applicable

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

All incentive plan designs, awards and payouts, 1f any, are subject to approval of the Compensation Committee The Compensation Commuttee has the sole
and absclute discretion, after consultation with management of Powertrain to make adjustments to any of the 2014 MIP metrics set forth 1n Appendix [

Discretion

Powertrain’s Chief Executive Officer may alter, postpone or disallow individual payments as he deems appropriate for any employee (other than himself),
within the plan's payout range of zero to 175% of Target, except that, 1n the case of any employee at, or above, the level of Vice President, pnor approval by
the Compensation Commttee 1s required Powertrain’s Chict Excecutive Officer may make other changes to this MIP wath the pnor approval of the
Compensation Comnuttee

General Provisions

a) Withholding of Taxes The Company shall withheld the amount of taxes which, in the detemmination of the Company, 15 required to be withheld under
applicable law with respect to any amount due or paid under this MIP All amounts payable under this MIP are intended to be exempt from the requirements
of Section 409A of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and this MIP and all bonus awards made hereunder shall be construed 1n a manner
consistent with such 1ntent

b) Expenses The Company 1sresponsible for all expenses and costs incumred 1n connection with the adoption and administration of this MIP

c)Active Employment Active employment means actively engaged in the employ of the Company (or its subsidianes) with respect to Powertrain
Employces who are subject to severance notice period or on “garden leave™ status pending termunation are not considered to be 1n active cmployment

d)} Yoluntary Termunation Unless Powertrain’s Chief Executive Officer exercises discretion in accordance with the “Discretion ” provision above, in the event
a participant elects to tenmnate employment for any reason or elects to retire from the Company, 1n each case, before payment under this MIP 1s made, all
nghts with respect to such participant under this MIP shall cease and be immediately forfeited, and no benefits shall vest or be accrued or due under this MIP
for such participant

¢€) Involuntary lermination Ifa participant is involuntarily terminated for reasons other than * for cause”, dies or becomes permanently disabled prior to the
payout date, Powertrain’s Chief Executive Otficer may determine, 1n has sole discretion, whether such participant (or1f temunation 1s due to death, such
parttcipant’s legal representatives) may be paid a prorated portion of ms/her calculated bonus under this MIP, provided, that, in the case of any employee at
orabove the level of Vice President, any such pro-rated payment shall require the pnior approval of the Compensation Commttee The pro-ration will be
calculated based on the formula (x times an amount that 1s the product of the participant’s Target Bonus times the final calculated payout percentage for such
participant) where x equals a fraction where the numerator 15 the number of calendar days the employee 1s employed 1n 2014 and the denominator 15 365 Any
such payment will be made at the same tune and 1n the same manncr active participants are paid In the cvent any such termination 1s made by the Company
for reasons other than “for cause,” payment of any such prorated MIP bonus payment shall be subject to the employee signing and not revoking the Federal-
Mogul Comporation severance plan agreement and release within 30 days of such termimation

) No Continued Emplovment, Neither the establishment of this MIP, participation 1n this MIP, nor any payment hereunder shall be deerned to constitute an
express or imphied contract of employment of any participant for any period of time or 1n any way abnidge the nghts of the Company to detemune the terms
and conditions of employment or to temunate the employment of any employee with or without cause at any time

g} Other Plans Nothing contained herein shall linut the Company’s power to make regular or discretionary payments to 1ts employees, whether or not they
arc participants tn this MIP Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no payment shall be made under this MIP to any participant 1f and to the extent
that such payment, whether alone or when taken together with other payments from the Company to such participant, would result in such participant
receiving compensation from the Company in excess of any compensation limtt contained 1n any written employment agreement between the Company and
such participant




h ) Non-Assignability No nghts of the participants under this MIP shall be transferable or assignable, either voluntarily or involuntanly by way of
encumbrance pledge, attachment levy orcharge of any nature (except as may be required by local, state, or federal law)

Nothing in this MIP shall require the Company to segregate or set aside any funds or other property for the purpose of paying any portion of an award
hereunder No participant, beneficiary or other persen shall have any nght, title or interest in any amount awarded under this MIP pnor to the payment of
such award to him or her Any rights of a participant (or any person claimung through the participant} under this MIP shall be solely those of an unsecured
general creditor of the Company The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this MIP shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Michigan without giving effect to the conflicts of laws principles thereof




Exhibit 107
Federal-M o[porate 20 age t Incentive Plan (MIP
Goal

This Federal-Mogul Corporate (F-M Corporate} Management Incentive Plan (this MIP”)1s intended to alegn the actions of paricipants with the goals of the
Federal-Mogul Corporation (the “Company™) and reward participants for achieving or exceeding those goals

Participants

Individual employees of the Company providing services to F-M Corporate are eligible for participation 1n this MIP as follows (1) employees below the level
of Vice President arc sclected and confirmed by the Company’s Senior Vice President of Human Resources and (1) employecs at, or above, the level of Vice

President are selected and confimed by F-M Corporate’s Co-Chief Executive Officers, subject to approval and confirmation by the Compensation Commuttee
ofthe Company's Board of Directors (the “Compensation Committee™)

Target Bonus.

“Target Bonuses” for purposes of this MIP shall be expressed as a percentage of the applicable employee’s annual base salary rate in effect as of December 31,
2014 {* Annual Base Salary ’), which Annual Base Salary 1s calculated as follows if the employee 1s paid by the Company on a monthly basis, the Anpual
Base Salary shall be equal 10 an amount that 1s the product of such monthly payment mte muliphed by 12, and if the employee 15 paid on an every-other-
week basis, the Annual Base Salary shall be cqual to an amount that 15 the product of such every-other-week payment rate muluplhied by 26 For the
avoldance of doubt, except for the employee’s annual base salary rate descnbed above, 1n no event shall any other amounts or compensation payments paid
or payable to the employee be used for purposes of calculating the Annual Base Salary underthis MIP

No changes may be made to the assigned Target Bonus percentage without the wntten approval of the Company's Director of Compensation and Benefits
and/or the Company’s Semor Vice President of Human Resources, except that in the case of any employee at, or above, the level of Vice President any
changes made to the assigned Target Bonus percentage shall be subject to approval and confirnation by the Compensation Commuttee

at

Any participant who 15 not employed wath the Company 1n a MIP-eligible position on or prior to October 1, 2014 shall not be ehigible 1o receive a MIP
payment for 2014, except as may otherwise be approved by the Company’s Senier Vice President of Human Resources and, in the case of any employee at or
above the level of Vice President, the Compensation Commttee Any participant who 1s eligible for a MIP payment but who did not serve in a MIP<chigible
position dunng the entire year 2014 will be entitled to a pro-rated MIP-payment based on the amount of time such ehigible participant was actively and
continucusly employed 1 an eligible position dunng 2014 If, dunng 2014, a participant 1s promoted or demoted from a job with one Target Bonus level to
another job with a different Target Bonus level, a participant transfers from one operation to another operation with different performance metrics, or a
participant 1s rehired or takes an approved leave of absence from active employment, a separate computation shall be made to take 1nte account the
participant’s time at cach level, operation or absence from cmployment (as applicable), and the sum of the separate computations shall be the participant’s
MIP payout

Commumcatons,

The Human Resource Director for Corporate Staffs 1s responsible for consistency of MIP targets and communication of the MIP plan to participants
Metrics

2014 MIP metncs arc outlined 1n Appendix I attached hereto

Adjustments

The metnces and their achicvement levels are the basis for payout calculations However, cach particrpant’s individual performance and contnbutions may
also be considered and may alter the final payout In addition F-M Corporate’s Co-Chief Executive Officer




may reduce the 2014 MIP payment to any Business Unit Operations Vice President/Director or Finance Director, based on their assessment of the results ofan
audit or senes of audits of locations within F-M Corporate

It 15 intended that increases and decreases in participant MIP benus payouts which result from individual or group performance and contnbutions shall not
result tn an increase in the proposed payout of the maximum bonus pool descnbed below In the event that the MIP bonus payout, otherwise calculated 1n

accordance with this MIP, would exceed the maximum bonus pool, each of the proposed MIP benus payouis shall be reduced on a pro-rata basis so that the
aggregate MIP bonus payouts do not exceed the maximum bonus pool

MIP Pavout Ranges,

The payout range for the 2014 MIP ts from 0 to 175% of a participant’s Targei Bonus For example if an employee s Target Bonus 1s 10% of Annual Base
Salary, he or she may receive an amount ranging from zero up 10 17 5% of Annual Base Salary Payout percentages are rounded to the nearest whole percent
(0 5 and abovc rounds up and any amount under 0 5 rounds down )

The F-M Corporate MIP bonus payment 15 limted to a maximum of 175% of an mdividual’s Target Bonus

Tar, chievemnent Level

If. for any metnic, the achievement level equals 100% of the goal, the payout for that metric will be 100%

Minimurn Metric Achievement Level,

If, for any metric, the achievement level does not equal or exceed 85% of the target, the payout for that metric will be zero At 85% achievement, the payout
for such metric will be 50%

Maximum Metric Achievement Level

The maximum level of achievement eligible for a paycut 1s 125% of the target for a metric At 125% achievement, the MIP payout level 15 175% for that
metric

The payout curve between the oummum achievement level and 100% 1s based on linear mterpelation, as 15 the payout curve between 100% and the
maxtmum achievement Jevel

Thresh chievement Regquirement

In the event Powertrain does not achieve at least 85% of 1ts EBITDA target for 2014, the EBITDA metncs for all Powertrain product lines and the
Restructuning metric will have zero payout

In the event VCS does not achieve at least 90% of 1ts EBITDA target for 2014, the EBITDA metrics for all VCS product hines and the Restructunng metnc
will have zero payout

Max Bopus Pool and Adjus

The maximum bonus pool under this MIP will equal the sum of the Target Bonuses for the participants, assuming the payout level for all metncs 1s equal to
175%

In no ¢vent shall the sum of total payouts under this MIP exceed the maximum bonus pool

Computation and Pavout Taming

Payments under this MIP will be made only with respect to the Company’s 2014 fiscal year, and only after completion of the annual audit of Federal-Mogul’s
2014 consohdated financial statements and filing of Federal-Mogui's Form 10-K for the year ending December 31,2014, but in no event later than March 15,
2015 Management shall provide to the Compensation Commuttee, by February 1, 2015, the Company’s 2013 unaudited consolhidated financial results, other
information required to calculate performance against the applicable metrics, management’s calculation of the metnc achievement levels against goals and
management’s recommendations for MIP payouts consistent with such financial performance and other informauon No payout shall be made unless and
until the Committee 1n 1ts sole and absolute discretion, has approved the final achievement levels and




payouts, the completion of the audit of the 2014 consohdated financial statements and filing of the Company 's Form 10-K. MIP participants must be actively
employed on the day of payout to be eligible for a payment In all countnes, local tax laws apply, and payments will be reduced by amounts required to be
withheld for taxes at the time payments are made MIP payments will not be considered compensation for purposes of calculating the nghts of any participant
under any of the Company’s employee benefit plans or programs, unless required by applicable law MIP payments wall be counted as compensation eligible
for 401(k) plan contnbutions to the extent applicable

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.

All incentive plan designs, awards and payouts, 1f any, are subject to approval of the Compensation Commuttee The Compensation Commttee has the sole
and absolute discretion, after consultation with management of F-M Corporate, to make adjustments to any of the 2014 MIP metncs set forth in Appendix I

Discretion

F-M Corporate’s Co-Chief Executive Officers may alter, postpone or disallow individual payments as he deems appropnate for any employee (other than
himself), within the plan's payout range of zero to 175% of Target, except that, in the case of any employee at or above, the level of Vice President, prior
approval by the Compensation Commuttee 1s required F-M Corporate’s Co-Chief Executive Officers may make other changes to this MIP with the pnor
approval of the Compensation Cotnimittee

General Provisions

a) Withholding of Taxes, The Company shall withhold the amount of taxes which, in the determination of the Company, s required to be withheld under
applicable law with respect to any amount duc or paid under this MIP All amounts payable under this MIP are intended to be exempt from the requircments
of Section 409A of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and this MIP and all bonus awards made hereunder shall be construed in a manner
consistent with such atent

b) Expenses The Company 1s responsible for all expenses and costs incurred in connecuion wath the adoption and administration of thus MIP

c) Active Employment. Active employment means actively engaged n the employ of the Company {or 1ts subsidianes) with respect to Federal-Mogul
Employees who are subject to severance notice pertod or on “garden leave” status pending termination are not considered to be 1n active employment

d) Voluntary Termmnation Unless F-M Cormporate’s Co-Chief Executive Officers exercise discretion 1n accordance with the “Drscretion” provision above 1n
the event a participant elects to terminate employment for any reason or elects to retire from the Company, 1n each case, before payment under this MIP 1s
made, all nghts with respect to such participant under this MIP shall cease and be immediately forfeited, and no benefits shall vest or be accrued or due under
this MIP for such participant

¢) Involuntary Termination, If a participant 1s inveluntanly terminated for reasons other than “for cause”, dies or becomes permanently disabled pror to the
payout date, F-M Corporate’s Co-Chief Executive Officers may determine, in their sole discretion, whether such participant (or 1f termination 1s due to death,
such participant’s legal representatives) may be pawd a prorated ponion of hus/her calculated bonus under this MIP, provided, that, in the case of any
employcc at or above the level of Vice President, any such pre-rated payment shall require the prior approval of the Compensation Commuttee The pro-ration
will be calculated based on the formula (x times an amount that is the product of the participant’s Target Bonus iumes the final calculated payout percentage
for such participant) where x equals a fraction where the numerator 1s the number of calendar days the employee 1s employed 1n 2014 and the denominator1s
365 Any such payment will be made at the same time and 1n the same manner active participants are paid [n the event any such termination 1s made by the
Company for reasons other than “for cause,” payment of any such prerated MIP bonus payment shall be subject to the employee signing and not revoking the
Federal-Mogul Corporation severance plan agreement and release within 30 days of such tenmnanon

f) No Continued Employment Neither the establishment of this MIP, participation in this MIP, nor any payment hereunder shall be deemed to constitute an
express or imphed contract of employment of any participant for any pertod of time or in any way abndge the nghts of the Company to determuine the terms
and conditions of employment or to termunate the cmployment of any employee with or without cause at any time

g) Other Plans Nothing contamed herein shall it the Company’s power to make regular or discrettonary payments (o 1ts employees, whether or not they
are particapants in this MIP Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no payment shall be made under this MIP to any participant 1f and to the extent
that such payment, whether alone or when taken together with other




payments from the Company to such participant, would result 1o such participant receiving compensation from the Company 1n excess of any compensation
limut contained 1n any wntten employment agreement between the Company and such participant

h ) Nop-Assignabihity  No nghts of the participants under this MIP shall be transferable or assignable, either voluntanly or involuntanly by way of
encumbrance, pledge, attachment, levy orcharge of any nature (except as may be required by local, state, or federal law)

Nothing n this MIP shall require the Company to segregate or set aside any funds or other property for the purpose of paying any portion of an award
hereunder No participant, beneficiary or other person shall have any nght, title or wnterest 1n any amount awarded under this MIP prior to the payment of
such award to him or her Any nghits of a participant (or any person claimng through the participant) under this MIP shall be solely those of an unsecured
general creditor of the Company The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this MIP shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Michigan without giving effect 1o the conflicts of laws principles thereof




Exhibit 21

FEDERAL-MOGUL HOLDINGS CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES

The direct and indirect operating subsidianes of the Company and their respective States orother junsdictions of incorporation as of December 31, 2014 are
as follows

Percentage of Voting Stock
Owned Directly and Indirectly

b;
Name of Subsidiaries Country Federal{'\dogul

Federal Mogul Argentina SA Argentina 96 3%
Federal-Mogul Plasticos Puntanos, S A Argentina 96 3%
Federal-Mogul Pty Lid Australia 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Aulomotive Pty Lid Australia 100 0%
FM Motorparts Pty Ltd Austraha 160 0%
Federal-Mogul S A Belgium 166 0%
Federal-Mogul EMEA Dustribution Services, BYBA Belgium 100 0%
Federal-Moguil Global Aftermarket EMEA BVBA Belgwum 100 0%
Coventry Assurance, Ltd Bermuda 100 0%
Federal Mogu! Componentes de Motores Lida Brazil 100 0%%
Federal-Mugul Frichion Produdts Surocaba - Sistemas Automotives Lida

Brazil 100 6%
Federal-Mogul Industria de Autopecas Lida Brazil 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Sisteinas Automotivos Lida Brazil 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Participacoes e Invesumentos LTDA Braal 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Canada Lonited Canada 160 0%
Federal-Mogul { Changshu) Automotive Parts Co |, Ltd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul {Chongqing) Fricton Matenals Co  Lid Chmna 100 0%
Federal-Mogul {Dahan) Co Ltd China 100 0%
Federal-Megul (Shanghai} Autometive Parts Co  Lud China 100 0%
Fedcral-Mogul ARN (Anqing) Powder Metaliurgy Co  Litd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Dongsuh (Quingdac) Pistons Co , Ltd China 75 é%
Federal-Mogul Friction Products Co Ltd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul (China) Co  Lid China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Deva (Qingdao) Automotive Parts Co  Litd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Qingdao Pistons Co Lid China 61 5%
Federal-Mogul Scaling System (Nanchang) Co  Lid China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Shanghai Bearings Co , Ltd China 60 0%
Federal-Mogul Shanghai Compound Matenal Co , Ltd China 60 0%
Federal-Mogul Zhengsheng {Changsha) Piston Rmg Co  LTD China 95 0%
Federal Mogul de Costa Rica, Sociedad Anonima Costa Rica 100 0%
Sapav Marketing Ltd Cyprus 100 0%
Sibinica Energy Limited Cyprus 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Friction Products A S Czech Rep 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Aftermarket Egypt LTD Egypt 100 0%
Atchcrs Julictte Adam SAS France 100 0%
Federal Mogul Aftermarket France SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Financial Services SAS France 100 0%
Federatl-Mogul Fricuon Products SAS France 100 0%
Federai-Mogul Igniton Products SAS France 100 0%
Federal Mogul Operations France SAS France 100 0%
Federal Megul Piston Rings SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Sealing System SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Megul Services Sarl France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Sy~stermns Protection SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul SAS France 100 0%

Fonciere de Liberanon SAS France 100 0%




Saxid SAS

Fedural-Mogul Aflermarket GmbH
Federal-Mogul Automotive GmbH & Ce KG
Federal-Mogul Automotive Verwaltungs GmbH
Federal-Mogul Beiriebsgrundsticke Burscheid GmbH
Federal-Mogul Bremsbelag GmbH
Federal-Mogul Bursched Beterhgungs GmbH
Federal-Mogul Burstheid GmbH

Federal-Mogul Deva GmbH

Federal-Mogul Frictton GmbH

Federal-Mogul Friction Matenials Germany GmbH
Federal-Mogul Friction Products GmbH
Federal-Mogul Fricton Products International GmbH
Federal-Mogul Friedberg GmbH

Federal-Mogul Hemnsherg GmbH

Federal-Mogul Holding Deutschland GmbH
Federal-Mogul Ignimen GmbH

Federal-Mogul Immobilien GmbH
Federal-Mogul Nurenberg GmbH

Federal-Mogul Powertrain Russia GmbH
Federal-Mogul Scaling Systems Bretten GmbH
Federal-Mogul Sealing Systems GmbH
Federal-Mogul TP Europe Gmbh & Co KG
Federal-Maogul TP Pisten Rungs GmbH
Federal-Mogul Valvetrain GmbH

Federal-Mogul Vermogensverwaltungs GmbH
Federal-Mogul Verwaltungs und Beteibigungs GmbH
Federal-Mogul Wiesbaden GmbH

Goetze Wohnungsbau GmbH

Platin 966 GmbH

Weyburm-Bartel GmbH

Federal-Mogul de Guatemala S A

Curzon Tnsurance Limited

Federal-Mogul (T&N} Hong Kong Limited
Federal-Mogul World Trade (Asa) Luimited
Federal-Mogul Hungary Kft

Federal Mogul Wipers Hungary Kft
Federal-Mogul Igmtion Products India Limited
Federal-Mogul Bearing India Limsted
Federal-Mogul Goetze {India) Limited
Federal-Mogul PTSB India Private Limited
Federal-Mogul TPR {India) Limted
Federal-Mogul VSP (India) Limned
Federal-Mogul Italy S5 rl

Saxid srl

Fuderal Mogul Japan K K

Federal-Mogul Asia Investments Holding korea, L1d
kFM Bearmng Co , Ltd

KFM Innovative Technology Company Limuted
Federal-Mogul Luxemboutg S a r |
Federal-Mogul Holdings Ltd

Federal-Mogul Holding Mexico SA de C WV
Federal-Mogul de Matamorus, S A de CV
Federal-Mogul de Mextco, SA de CV
Federal-Mogul Distribucion de Mex:co, § de RL de CV
Federal-Mogul Lighting SA deCV
Federal-Mogul S A de CV

Federal-Mogul SP Mexico, § de RL de C.V

France
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany

Guatemala

Guernscy
Hong Kong
Hong Kong

Hungary

Hungary

India
India
India
India
[ndia
[ndia
ltaly
Italy
Japan
Korca
Korea
Korea
Luxembourg
Maurites Is
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico

100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
[00 0%
100 9%
100 0%
100 9%
100 9%
160 0%
100 0%
66 7%
66 6%
100 0%
190 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
190 0%

100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
63 9%
75 0%

100 0%
62 7%

100 9%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
9% 4%
100 0%
100 0%
98 3%

100 ¢°a




Federal-Mogul Valve Train § de RL de CV

McCord Payen de Muxico S de RL

Productos de Frenos Automotrices de Cahidad S A de CV
Ramsa SA deCV

Servicios Administratiy os Industriales, 5 A

Servicio de Componentcs Automotrices, SA de C A
Subensambles Internacionales, S A de SV

T&N de Mexico Sde R L

Federal-Mogul Systems Protection Morecco SARL AU
Cooperatief Federal-Mogul Dutch Investments B A
Federal-Mogul Investments BV

Federal-Mogul Metorparts Holding B V
Federal-Mogul Motorparts Minority Holding B V
Federal-Mogul VCS Helding BV

Federal-Megul Motorparts Phahippines Ine
Federal-Mogul Bimet Spolka Akeyjna

Federal-Mogul Gorzyce 5§ A

Federal-Mogul Frictuon Products Plolestu s r |
Federal-Mogul Fricuon Services s 1|

Federal-Mogul Dimitrovgrad LLC

Federal-Mogul Naberezhyne Chelny LLC
Federal-Mogul Powertramn Vostek 000
Federal-Mogul VCS QOO

Torgovy Dom DZV CJSC

Trend LLC

Federal-Mogul Motorparts {Singapore) Pte Ltd
Federal-Mogul Singapore Investments Pre Lid

Federal Mogul {Proprietary) Limuted

Federal Mogul Aftermarket Southern Africa (Pry) Limited
Federal Mogul of South Africa (Pty) Ltd

Federal Mogul Powertrain Systems 8 A (Proprictary Limnted)

Federal-Mogul Aftermarket Espana SA
Federal-Mogul Fricuon Producis Barcelona S L
Federal-Mogul Fricuon Products SA
Federal-Mogul Fricuon Spatn § L
Federal-Mogul Iberica SL

F-M Holding Daros AB

Federal-Mogul Goteborg AR

Federal-Mogul Holding Sweden AB
Federal-Mugul GmbH

Federal-Megul Moterparts Taiwan Co  Limited
Federal-Mogul {Thailand) Lid

Federal-Megul Motoerparts (Thatland} Lunted
A E Group Machines Limuied

AE International Limited

AE Limited

Federal-Mogul Aftermarket UK Limited
Federal-Mogul Asia Investments Limued
Federal-Mogul Bradford Limited

Lydmet Limited

Federal-Mogul Employee Trust Adm:nistration Limited
Federal-Mogul Engmnecttng Limited
Federal-Mogul Friction Preducts Limited
Federal-Meogul Glebal Growth Linuted

Payen Enternational Lunited

Federal-Mogul Sintered Producis Limited
Federal-Mogul Technology Limited
Federat-Mogul Valvewan Limited

Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Morocce
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Philippines
Poland
Poland
Ramania
Romania
Russia
Russia
Russia
Russia
Russia
Russia
Simgapore
Singapore
South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
Spam
Spain
Spamn
Spam
Spam
Sweden
Sweden
Sweden
Switzerland
Taiwan

Thailand
Thailand
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

100 0%
£00 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
95 0%
100 0%
160 0%
100 0%
100 0%
50 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 9%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
190 9%
51 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 9%

100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 9%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%




Ferodo Liumited

F-M Motorparts Lumited

F-M Trademarks Lumited

Leeds Piston Ring & Engineermg Co Ltd
Smitration Limited

FDML Holdings Limited
Federal-Mogul UK Investments Lunited
Federal-Mogul Limited

Piston Rings (UK) Lid

Saxwd Limited

T&N Shelf Twenty-Six Lamited
Wellworthy Limited

Federal-Mogul Fmance | LLC

Carter Autemotive Company, Inc
Federal-Mogul Corporation
Federal-Mogul Finance 2, LLC
Federal-Mogul Global LLC
Federal-Mogul Ignition Company
Federal-Mogul Piston Rings Inc
Federal-Mogul Powertrain 1P, LLC
Federal-Mogul Rusk Advisory Serivees LLC
Federal-Mogul Transaction LLC
Federal-Mogul Motorparts Corporation

Federal-Mogul Valve Tramn Intermational LLC

Ferodo Amencd, Inc

F-M Motorparts TSC, Inc

Felt Products Mfg Ceo

FM International, LLC

Gasket Hold:ngs Inc
Muzzy-Lyon Auto Parts Inc
T&N Industnes Ine
Federal-Mogul Chassis LLC
Federal-Mogul Powertram, inc
Federal-Mogu! World Wide Inc
Speyside Real Estate, Ine
Fuderal-Mogul Preducts, Inc
Federal-Mogul de Venezuela C A
Federal-Mogul {Vietnam) Lid

0 4

uKk

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

1.4

UK

Uk

UK
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have 1ssued our reports dated Febrary 26, 20135, with respect to the consohdated financial statements, schedule, and intemal control over financial
reporting included in the Annual Report of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corparation on Fotm 10K for the year ended December 31,2014 We hereby consent to
the incomperation by reference of said reports in the Registration Statements of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation on Form S-8 (File No 333- 168508) and
Form 8-3 (File No 333-187424)

fs! GRANT THORNTON LLP

Southfield, Michigan
February 26,2015




Exhibit 31 1

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant te Rule 13a-14¢{a) of the Secunties Exchange Actof 1934

[, Danmiel A Nimivaggy, the Co-Chief Executive Officer of Federal-Mogul Heldings Comporation (the “Company™), certify that

6 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation

7 Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenal fact or omt to state a matenal fact necessary to make the
statements made. tn Light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the penod covered by this
report,

8 Bascd on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information 1ncluded 1n thes report, fairly present in all matenal respects the

financtal condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the penods presented in this report,

9 The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaming disclosure controls and procedures (as defined tn
Exchange Act Rules i3a-15(e}and 15d-15{e)) and intemnal control over financial reporting (as defined 1n Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have

a Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, including 1ts censolidated subsidianes, 1s made known to us by others wathin
those entittes, particularly duning the period tn which this report 1s being prepared,

b Designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supcrviston, to provide rcasonable assurance regarding the reliability of tinancial reporting and the preparation ot financial statements for
external purposes 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnciples,

¢ Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation, and

d Disclosed in this report any change 1n the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred dunng the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s tourth fiscal quarter 1n the case of an annual report) that has matenially affected, oris reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting, and

10 The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit commuttee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons perferming the equivalent functions)

a All significant deficiencies and matenal weaknesses 1n the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summanze and report financial information, and

b Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that mvolves management or other employees who have a sigmficant role in the registrant’s intemal
control over financial reporting

Date February 26,2015

By /s/ Daniel A Nimivagg

Dantel A Ninivagg
Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation
Chief Executive Officer, Motorparts Division




Exhibit 31 2

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14{a) of the Secunties Exchange Actof 1934

[, Rainer Jueckstock, the Co-Chief Executive Officer of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation (the “Company™), certify that

1 I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation,

2 Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenal fact or omt to state a matertal fact necessary to make the
statements made, 1n light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the penod covered by this
repon, ;

3 Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included 1n this report, fairty present in all matenal respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the peniods presented 1n this report,

4 The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures {as defined 1n
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have

a

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure contrels and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, including 1ts consolidated subsidianes, 1s made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly dunng the penod in which this report 1s being prepared,

Designed such intemal conirol over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes m accordance with genenally accepted accounting pnnciples,

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness ot the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the penod covered by this report based on such evaluation, and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has matenally affected, oris reasonably likely to
matenably affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting, and

5 The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit commuttee of the registrant’s board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions)

a

All significant deficiencies and matenal weaknesses 1n the design or operation of intemal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summanze and report financial information, and

Any fraud, whether or not matenasl, that involves management or other employees who have a sigmificant role in the registrant’s intemal
contrel over financial reporting

Date Fcbruary 26,2015

By /s/ Raner Jueckstock
Ramncr Jucckstock

Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation Chief
Executive Officer, Powertrain Division




Extubit 313

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934

I, Rajesh Shah, the Chief Financial Officer of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation (the “Company ™), certify that

1 I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation,

2 Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenal fact or omut to state a matenal fact necessary to make the
statements made 1n light ofthe circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the penod covered by this
report,

3 Bascd on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, faurly present in all matenal respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the penods presented 1n this report,

4 The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaming disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 1n
Exchange Act Rules 13a-13(e) and 15d-15(e}) and intemal control over financial reporting (as defined 1in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(t)) for the registrant and have

a Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that matenal mformation relating to the registrant, including 1ts consolidated subsidianes, 1s made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly dunng the penod in which this repor 1s being prepared,

b Designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
extemal purposes 1n accordance with genemnlly accepted accounting pnnciples,

c Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by thss report based on such evaluation, and

d Dasclosed tn this report any change in the registnt’s intemnal control over financial reporting that occurred duning the registrant s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s tourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual repen) that has matenally affected, or 1s reasonably likely to
matenally affect, the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting, and

5 The registrant’s other certifying officerand 1have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal contrel over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit commuttee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons perfforming the equivalent functions)

a All significant deficiencies and matenal weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely 10 adversely affect the registrant’s abality to record, process, summanze and report financial information, and

b Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that invelves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s intemal
control over financial reporting

Date February 26,2015

By /s/Rajesh Shah
Rajesh Shah
Seror Vice President and
Chicf Financial Officer




Exhibat 32

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to 18 United States Code § 1350 and
Rule 13a-14(b) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934

The Undersigned hereby certifies that to his knowledge the annual report on Form 1 0-K of Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation (the “Company”'} filed with
the Secunties and Exchange Commission on the date hereof fally complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secunties Exchange Act of
1934 and that the information contained in such annual report farly presents, 1in all matenal respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company

Asigned onginal of this wntten statement, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signatures that appearn typed form
within the electronic version of this wniten statement, has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and fumished to the
Secunties and Exchange Commussion or its staff upon request

Date February 26,2015

By /s/ Danicl A Nimivagg
Damel A Ninivaggi
Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Holdings Comporation

Chiet Executive Officer, Motorparts Division

By /s/ Rawner Jueckstock

Rainer Jueckstock
CoChief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Holdings Corporation
Chief Executive Officer, Powertrain Division

By /s/ Rajesh Shah
Rajesh Shah
Semor Vice Prestdent and
Chief Financial Officer




